
 AGENDA 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Motto:  "Opportunity Through Diversity; Unity Through Cooperation." 

Mission Statement: "The City of Watsonville is dedicated to improving the economic vitality, safety & living environment for the 
culturally rich Watsonville community, by providing leadership for the achievement of community goals & high quality, responsive 
public services."

Mayor Karina Cervantez, District 2 
Mayor Pro Tempore Felipe Hernandez, District 1 

Lowell Hurst, Council Member, District 3 
Eduardo Montesino, Council Member, District 4 

Daniel Dodge, Council Member, District 5 
Trina Coffman-Gomez, Council Member, District 6 
Dr. Nancy A. Bilicich, Council Member, District 7 

Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 
Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 

CIVIC PLAZA COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
275 MAIN STREET, 4th FLOOR, 6TH LEVEL PARKING 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(b), 
Councilmember Member Montesino will be attending the Council meeting via 

teleconferencing from: 
Stanford Inn & Suites 

Tel: 562-732-4714 
2171 South Harbor Blvd Anaheim, CA 92802 

This teleconference location is accessible to the public. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Americans with Disabilities Act 

 
The Council Chambers is an accessible facility.  If you wish to attend a meeting and you will 
require assistance in order to attend and/or participate, please call the City Clerk's Office at least 
five (5) days in advance of the meeting to make arrangements. The City of Watsonville TDD 
number is (831) 763-4075. 

 
Meetings are televised live on Charter Cable Communications Channel 70 and AT&T 
Channel 99 and re-broadcast on Thursday at 5:00 p.m. and Saturday at 8:00 a.m. the 
same week of the meeting. 
 
For information regarding this agenda or interpretation services, please call the City Clerk's Office at (831) 768-3040. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERPRETATION SERVICES 
Spanish language interpretation is available 

 

POSTING DECLARATION 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by Stanford Inn & Suites, and that I posted 
this agenda on the bulletin board in the lobby of the Stanford Inn, 2171 South Harbor 
Blvd Anaheim, CA 92802, on the date indicated below. 
 
DATED: ____________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _____________________________________________ 



 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

 
June 10, 2014         City Council Chambers  
    275 Main Street, 4th Floor 
 

5:30 P.M. 
 
10.0 CLOSED SESSION 

(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 
(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda will only be accepted by the City 

Council at this time. 
(b) Closed Session Announcement 
 The City Council will now recess to discuss those items listed on the Closed Session 

Statement attached to the Agenda. 
  

6:30 P.M. 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
3.1 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 

(This time is set aside for members of the general public to address the Council on any item not on the 
Council Agenda, which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. No action or 
discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Council Member may respond to 
statements made or questions asked, or may ask questions for clarification.  All matters of an 
administrative nature will be referred to staff. All matters relating to Council will be noted in the minutes 
and may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or referred to staff for clarification and report. 
Any Council Member may place matters brought up under Oral Communications on a future agenda. 
ALL SPEAKERS ARE ASKED TO FILL OUT A BLUE CARD & LEAVE IT AT THE TABLE 
DESIGNATED NEAR THE PODIUM, GO TO THE PODIUM AND ANNOUNCE THEIR NAME AND 
ADDRESS IN ORDER TO OBTAIN AN ACCURATE RECORD FOR THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING.) 

 
3.2 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 
3.3 PRESENTATION BY PAJARO VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL & WATSONVILLE HIGH 

SCHOOL STUDENTS REGARDING THEIR IVY LEAGUE TOUR (10 Minutes) 
 
3.4 PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES TO WATSONVILLE YOUTH CITY 

COUNCIL FOR THEIR DEDICATION & SERVICE TO THE COMMUNITY  
 

4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are considered to be routine and will be 
acted upon as one consensus motion. Any items removed will be considered immediately after the consensus motion. 
The Mayor will allow public input prior to the approval of the Consent Agenda. 

 
Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item 

 
4.1 RESOLUTION REJECTING CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES: 

(a) Liz Nichols (Date of Occurrence: 5/15/14) 
(b) Anna Waidelich (Date of Occurrence: 4/28/14) 
 

1 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC0061014.Docx 
6/5/2014 5:33 PM 



 

 
4.2 RESOLUTION AWARDING $121,190 BID TO DUFOUR INCORPORATED, DBA 

CENTRAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, FOR THE GROVE STREET STORM DRAIN 
PUMP STATION EMERGENCY POWER PROJECT NO. SD-14-01 (Funded from 
Storm Drain Impact Fee Fund) (Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director 
Palmisano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  
 

4.3 RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENT WITH  FREITAS PLUS FREITAS 
ENGINEERING & PLANNING CONSULTANTS, INC., FOR THE PAJARO RIVER 
LEVEE STORM DRAIN PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $91,000 & APPROPRIATING $91,000 FROM STORM 
DRAIN IMPACT FEE FUND (Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director 
Palmisano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  

 
4.4 RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH COUNTY 

OF SANTA CRUZ HEALTH SERVICES AGENCY TO ESTABLISH & MAINTAIN A 
SEATS FOR KIDS CAR SEAT PROGRAM (Recommended by Fire Chief Bisbee) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  

 
4.5 RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENT WITH WORMHOUDT LANDSCAPE 

ARCHITECTURE, INC., FOR DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION COSTS, & 
DOCUMENTS FOR RELOCATION & EXPANSION OF RAMSAY PARK SKATE 
PARK, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $28,800 (Recommended by Parks & 
Community Services Director Espinoza) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  
 

4.6 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION TO CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR A GRANT 
OF $500,000 FROM THE 2014 HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS 
PROGRAM (HOME) FOR THE FIRST TIME HOMEBUYER PROGRAM 
(Recommended by Community Development Director Tavantzis) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  

 
4.7 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION FOR $600,000 TO 

CALIFORNIA STATE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT FOR FUNDING UNDER THE 2014 CALHOME PROGRAM FOR 
THE FIRST TIME HOMEBUYER MORTGAGE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
OPERATED WITHIN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE (Recommended by 
Community Development Director Tavantzis) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  

 
4.8 RESOLUTION ACCEPTING $24,694 FROM STATE HOMELAND SECURITY 

GRANT PROGRAM FOR 2013 FOR WATSONVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT; 
APPROVING CHIEF OF POLICE’S 2014-2015 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY 
GRANT PROGRAM EXPENDITURE PLAN TO BE USED FOR THE PURCHASE 
OF OPTICAL LIGHTING SYSTEMS; & APPROPRIATING SUCH FUNDS TO THE 

2 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC0061014.Docx 
6/5/2014 5:33 PM 



 

WATSONVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATE HOMELAND SECURITY – 
STATE FUND FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 (Recommended by Chief of Police 
Solano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  

 
4.9 MOTION RESCHEDULING REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 8, 2014, TO 

JULY 1, 2014  
 

5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
6.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, & APPEALS  

 
6.1 DETERMINATION OF APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION'S DECISION TO 

REVOKE ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT APPLICATION (PP2011-259), FOR 
THE SALE OF BEER AND WINE (TYPE 41 LICENSE) IN CONJUNCTION WITH A 
RESTAURANT (POPO'S), AT 1047 FREEDOM BOULEVARD (APN: 016-121-09), 
FILED BY APPELLATE RUDY ZUNIGA, JR. (Recommended by Community 
Development Director Tavantzis) 
(a) Staff Report 
(b) Appellant Presentation  
(c) City Council Questions 
(d) Public Hearing 
(e) City Council Discussion 
(f) Resolution Denying an Appeal Filed by Rudy Zuñiga, Jr., & Upholding 

Revocation of Administrative Use Permit (Pp2011-259) Prohibiting Sale Of 
Beer & Wine in Conjunction with the Restaurant for El Popo Mexican 
Restaurant  located at 1047 Freedom Boulevard (APN: 016-121-09) For a 
Period of One (1) Year 

 
6.2 CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATION (PP2013-243) FOR A PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT, SPECIAL USE PERMIT WITH DESIGN REVIEW & 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW, TO CONSTRUCT 20 AFFORDABLE APARTMENT 
UNITS, AT 56 ATKINSON LANE (APN:  019-226-42), FILED BY MIDPENINSULA 
THE FARM, INC., APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER & FUNDING COMMITMENT 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $1 MILLION TO MIDPENINSULA THE FARM, INC. TO 
ASSIST IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF PROJECT (Recommended by Community 
Development Director Tavantzis)  
(a) Staff Reports 
(b) City Council Questions & Discussion 
(c) Public Hearing 
(d) Resolution Approving Notice of Determination Indicating that Environmental 

Impact Report Addendum Complies with California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) for Environmental Review for Construction of Twenty Affordable 
Apartment Units Located at 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville (APN: 019-226-
42) 

(e) Resolution Approving Application No. PP2013-243 for Special Use Permit 
with Design Review Application Filed by Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc., to 
Construct Twenty Affordable Apartment Units, Located At 56 Atkinson Lane 
(APN: 019-226-42)  

(f) Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding with County of Santa 
Cruz & Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc., to Address Services & Financing for 
Entire 46-Unit Mid-Peninsula Development Project, Located at 56 Atkinson 
Lane 

3 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC0061014.Docx 
6/5/2014 5:33 PM 



 

(g) Uncodified Ordinance Approving Rezoning to Establish Planned 
Development Overlay District on Assessor’s Parcel Number 019-226-42 
Now Classified R-1 (Single Family Residential District) with General Plan 
Designation of R-HD (Specific Plan) to R-1/PD for Application No. PP2013-
243 Filed by Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc., to Construct 20 Affordable 
Apartment Units on a 1.3-Acre Vacant Parcel Located at 56 Atkinson Lane, 
Watsonville, & Directing Changes Be Made on Zoning Map of City of 
Watsonville  

(h) Resolution (1) Approving Funding Commitment in the Amount of $1,000,000 
to Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc. (Mid-Pen) for Construction of 46 Units of 
Affordable Housing, Located at 56 Atkinson Lane (APNs: 019-226-42 & 048-
211-25), Contingent Upon Approval of their Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits (“LIHTC”) Application & Compliance with all Requirements from the 
City’s Community Development Department; (2) Authorizing & Directing City 
Manager to Negotiate & Execute a Loan Agreement which will Contain 
Terms of Use of Loan for Project, in Form Developed & Approved by City 
Attorney; & (3) Authorizing Budget Appropriation of $1,000,000 from the 
City’s Inclusionary Housing Fund 

 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY & SUCCESSOR HOUSING AGENCY 

FOR THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 
 

6.3 ADOPTION OF BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 (Recommended by 
Administrative Services Director Vega)  
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions & Discussion 
(c) Public Hearing 
(d) Joint Resolution of City Council & City Council in its Capacity as 

Successor to Housing Assets & Functions of Former Redevelopment 
Agency of City of Watsonville, & Successor Agency of Former 
Redevelopment Agency adopting Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-
2015, Providing for Certain Transfers of Funds, & Approving Five 
Year (2014-2019) Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

(e) Resolution Establishing Total Annual Appropriations Pursuant to California 
State Constitution Article XIII-B for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 (Proposition 4 
Gann Spending Limit) 

(f) Ordinance Instructing County of Santa Cruz to Levy & Collect Property Tax 
on Taxable Property in City for Fiscal Year Beginning 7/1/14, Fixing Rate of 
0.077% Thereof & Allocating it to Retirement Fund 

(g) Resolution Approving New Compensation Schedule for Scorekeeper 
($10/hr) at Established Salary Range of 10-56, Sports Official ($20/hr) at 
Established Salary Range of 17-50 & Senior Sports Official ($25/hr) at 
Established Salary Range of 19-73 in Order to Comply with State’s Minimum 
Wage Requirements Effective July 1, 2014 

(h) Resolution Continuing Voluntary Time-Off Through 2014-2015 
(i) Resolution Approving Award of Community & Social Service Grants in the 

Amount of $213,516 to Designated Community & Social Service Agencies; 
& Authorizing & Directing the Payment of Same for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

(j) Resolution Approving & Setting Forth Internal Loan Terms & Conditions 
Between the Airport Fund & the City’s Pooled Money Investment Account for 
an Internal Loan of up to $5,000,000 & up to 15 Years & Authorizing City 
Manager to Execute Loan 

(k) Resolution of City Council in its Capacity as Successor to the Housing 
Assets & Functions of Former Redevelopment Agency of City of Watsonville 

4 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC0061014.Docx 
6/5/2014 5:33 PM 



 

Finding that Use of Funds from Low & Moderate Income Housing Asset 
Fund for Planning & General Administrative Costs is Necessary for Purpose 
of Producing, Improving, & Preserving the Community’s Supply Of Low & 
Moderate-Income Housing 

(l) Joint Resolution of City Council, of City of Watsonville in its Own Right & in 
its Capacity as Housing Successor Agency to Former Redevelopment 
Agency of City of Watsonville, Finding & Authorizing that the Use of Former 
Agency’s Funds & Other Assets Generated from the Watsonville 2000 
Redevelopment Project Area for the Purpose of Improving, Increasing, & 
Preserving the Community’s Supply of Low & Moderate Income Housing 
Outside the Project Area Will Benefit the Project Area 

 
10.1 EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA  
 
10.2 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  

(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents 
 

11.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Pursuant to Section 54954.2(a)(1) of the Government Code of the State of California, this agenda was posted at least 72 hours in 
advance of the scheduled meeting at a public place freely accessible to the public 24 hours a day and on the City of Watsonville 
website at www.cityofwatsonville.org. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office (275 Main Street, 4th Floor) during normal business hours. Such documents are also 
available on the City of Watsonville website at www.cityofwatsonville.org subject to staff’s ability to post the document before 
the meeting. 

5 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC0061014.Docx 
6/5/2014 5:33 PM 

http://www.ci.watsonville.ca.us/
http://www.cityofwatsonville.org/




RESOLUTION NO. _______ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REJECTING CLAIM OF LIZ NICHOLS FOR 
DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence: May 15, 2014) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the claim of Liz Nichols for damages, which was filed with the City Clerk 

on May 22, 2014, be and the same is hereby rejected. 

******************************* 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Council of 

the City of Watsonville, held on the  day of        , 2014, by Council 

Member    , who moved its adoption, which motion being duly seconded 

by Council Member  , was upon roll call carried and the resolution 

adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

   ______________________________ 
Karina Cervantez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
  City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
      City Attorney 

Reso No.           (CM)  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\RC 14-15 Nichols.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 8:21:52 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.1a

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp







RESOLUTION NO. _______ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REJECTING CLAIM OF ANNA WAIDELICH FOR 
DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence: April 28, 2014) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the claim of Anna Waidelich for damages, which was filed with the City 

Clerk on May 7, 2014, be and the same is hereby rejected. 

******************************* 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Council of 

the City of Watsonville, held on the  day of        , 2014, by Council 

Member    , who moved its adoption, which motion being duly seconded 

by Council Member  , was upon roll call carried and the resolution 

adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

   ______________________________ 
Karina Cervantez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
  City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
      City Attorney 

Reso No.           (CM)  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\RC 14-13 Waidelich.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 8:35:26 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.1b

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp







Page 1 of 2
AP 5/28/2014 2:44:06 PM 

 

CITY COUNCIL # _____________ 

__________________ 

Endorsed for presentation 

to the City Council 

 __________________ 

Carlos J. Palacios

City of Watsonville 

Public Works And Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 27, 2013 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works 
Tom Sharp, Senior Engineering Associate 
Monte Plasman, Assistant Engineer 

SUBJECT: Grove Street Storm Drain Pump Station Emergency Power Project 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council

RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution awarding a contract for the Grove 
Street Storm Drain Pump Station Emergency Power Project, Project No. SD-01-14, to the 
lowest responsive bidder, DuFour, Inc. d.b.a. Central Electric Company, in the amount of 
$121,190. 

DISCUSSION:   
At the April 22, 2014 meeting, City Council approved the plans, specifications, and called for 
bids for the Grove Street Storm Drain Pump Station Emergency Power Project.  The Project 
will provide an emergency generator for the Grove Street Storm Drain Pump Station.  This 
pump station drains a large area of the City, and the project would provide emergency power 
to ensure that the pump station can provide flood protection for the community during power 
outages, which are common during large storm events. 

Bids were opened on May 22, 2014.  The results are summarized as follows: 

Bidder  Amount 
Central Electric Company  $121,190 
Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. $139,000 
Pacific Infrastructure Corporation  $147,700 
Blocka Construction, Inc.  $148,350 
Day’s Generator Service, Inc. $152,564 

4.2

angela.paz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 

AP 5/28/2014 2:44:06 PM 
 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution awarding a contract for the Grove 
Street Storm Drain Pump Station Emergency Power Project, Project No. SD-01-14, to the 
lowest responsive bidder, DuFour, Inc. d.b.a. Central Electric Company, in the amount of 
$121,190. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:   
This action is consistent with the strategic plan goal of improving infrastructure. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The project is approved in the 2013-14 Capital Improvement Program and funded by the Storm 
Drain Impact Fee Fund.  There is no impact to the General Fund. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The Council can choose not to award the bid and not proceed with the project. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None. 
 
cc: City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AWARDING $121,190 BID TO DUFOUR 
INCORPORATED, DBA CENTRAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, A 
CORPORATION, FOR THE GROVE STREET STORM DRAIN PUMP 
STATION EMERGENCY POWER PROJECT, NO. SD-14-01 (FUNDED 
FROM THE STORM DRAIN IMPACT FEE FUND) 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 37-14 (CM) adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Watsonville on April 22, 2014, approved plans and specifications and authorized calling 

for bids for the Grove Street Storm Drain Pump Station Emergency Power Project,  No. 

SD-14-01; and 

WHEREAS, the bids received for the Grove Street Storm Drain Pump Station 

Emergency Power Project, No. SD-14-01 were opened in the “Old City Council 

Chambers,” City Hall, 250 Main Street, Watsonville, California, on Thursday, May 22, 

2014, at 11:00 A.M., and later tabulated by the Purchasing Officer for the consideration 

of the City Manager and submission to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that the bid from DuFour 

Incorporated, dba Central Electric Company, a corporation, [Contractor License 

#246326], for the Grove Street Storm Drain Pump Station Emergency Power Project, 

No. SD-14-01, in the amount of $121,190, be accepted as the low responsible bid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the bid of DuFour, Incorporated, dba Central Electric Company, a

corporation, for the Grove Street Storm Drain Pump Station Emergency Power Project, 

No. SD-14-01, in the amount of $121,190 be accepted, and the execution of a contract 

by the City Manager is hereby authorized. 

2. That all other bids are hereby rejected.

********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\AB SD-14-01 Grove Street Pump Station.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 8:45:57 AM AJS ______ CJP ______PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.2

angela.paz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



City of Watsonville 

Public Works and Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 20, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works and Utilities 
Monte Plasman, Assistant Engineer  
Tom Sharp, Sr. Engineering Associate 

SUBJECT: Design of the Pajaro River Levee Storm Drain Pump Station 
Improvement Project  

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council

RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a consulting engineering contract with Freitas and Freitas Engineering and Planning 
Consultants, Inc. for engineering design services for the Pajaro River Levee Storm Drain Pump 
Station Improvement Project, and approve a resolution appropriating $91,000 from the Storm 
Water Impact Fee Fund to fund the contract. 

BACKGROUND: 
In 1949, the Army Corps of Engineers implemented the Pajaro River Levee Project.  The 
project constructed levees from the river mouth to Murphy’s Crossing Road. Part of the project 
included construction of pump stations on the City side of the levee to pump storm water from 
City neighborhoods into the river. The facilities prevent localized flooding in the City during 
large storm events. Some of the levee pump stations have been replaced with new stations but 
some of the original facilities remain in service.   

The storm drain pump stations located at ends of Marchant Street, Lincoln Street and Coolidge 
Avenue are stations that have not been modernized since the levee was originally built and 
serve relatively large areas of the City.  Staff has determined that these stations are highest 
priority for upgrade and modernization, and are the subject of this proposed project. 

DISCUSSION:   
The Zone 7 Flood Control and Water Conservation District is operated by the Santa Cruz 
County Public Works Department, and is responsible for maintenance and operation of the 
flood control levees and all facilities appurtenant to the levees, such as the storm drain pump 
stations. City Public Works staff has taken on the operation and maintenance of the levee 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

pump stations in order to insure rapid response capability to the community during storm 
events.  
 
Staff has partnered with Zone 7 to replace the three aging pump stations. The Zone 7 budget 
has been fully allocated for the coming year with other projects that will benefit the City, 
including levee top elevation restoration work along the Pajaro River, and design and 
permitting for a soil removal project in the Salsipuedes Creek flood control channel that will be 
constructed in a future year.   
 
Due to staffing and financial constraints in Zone 7, and in order to  expedite the project, City 
staff has agreed to design the pump stations, and Zone 7 staff has agreed to fund the 
construction of these projects in their future budgets. The construction of each storm water 
pump station is estimated to be approximately $250,000, for a total cost of $750,000 over three 
to four years. 
 
The City issued a request-for-proposal for consulting design engineering services for the 
Pajaro River Levee Storm Drain Pump Station Improvement Project.  Freitas+Freitas 
Engineering and Planning Consultants, Inc., in Aptos were the only firm to propose.  The City 
has contracted with Freitas+Freitas several times in the past and they have performed high 
quality engineering services for a number of water well projects and storm drain pump stations.   
 
Staff reviewed the Freitas+Freitas proposal and found it to be responsive to the services 
required.  Staff negotiated a fee for the services of $91,000 and believes this represents a 
good value to the City and is competitive relative to current market rates for these types of 
services. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:   
This action is consistent with the strategic plan goal of improving infrastructure. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The budget appropriation would be made from the Storm Drain Impact Fee Fund, which is 
funded by developer-paid storm drain impact fees.  There is adequate funding available for the 
project in the fund, and there is no financial impact to the general fund associated with the 
project.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
City Council may decide not to authorize the contract and the budget appropriation and not 
have the plans for the storm drain pump station improvements prepared. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Vicinity map 

 
 
cc: City Attorney 



LEVEE

LINCOLN ST

RIVERSIDE DR

ALLEY

BRIDGE ST

MARCHANT ST

ELM ST

BLACKBURN ST

EAST FRONT ST

WILDCATZ WY

WHITE ST
BOCKIUS ST

COOLIDGE AV

J S
T

MAPLE AV

BECK ST
EAST BEACH ST

BARON ST

UNION ST

LOUGHEAD ST

DAWSON ST

RIVERSIDE RD

DRIVEWAY

BARON CT
BLACKBURN CT

LE
VE

E

ALLEY

ALLEY

LEVEE

ALLEY

ALLEY

ELM ST

LEVEE STORM DRAIN PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS
Legend

Coolidge SD Pump Station
Lincoln SD Pump Station
Marchant SD Pump Station
SDInlets
SDManholes
SDPipes

£
1 inch = 300 feet

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT 
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND FREITAS PLUS 
FREITAS ENGINEERING AND PLANNING CONSULTANTS, INC., A 
CORPORATION, FOR THE PAJARO RIVER LEVEE STORM DRAIN PUMP 
STATION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$91,000, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE SAME; AND AUTHORIZING A $91,000 BUDGET 
APPROPRIATION FROM THE STORM DRAIN IMPACT FEE FUND 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Agreement for Consultant Services between the City of Watsonville

and Freitas plus Freitas Engineering and Planning Consultants, Inc., a corporation, for the 

Pájaro River Levee Storm Drain Pump Station Improvement Project, in an amount not to 

exceed $91,000, a copy of which Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

this reference, is fair and equitable and is hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

such Agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

3. That the budget appropriation of $91,000 from the Storm Water Impact Fee

Fund is hereby authorized. 

****************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Agrmt Freitas Engineering - Levee Pump Stations.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 5:10:11 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ PWU ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3

angela.paz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 1 of 10 

CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND [ADD NAME] 

 
 THIS CONTRACT, is made and entered into this June ___, 2014, by and 
between the City of Watsonville, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "City," and 
Freitas + Freitas Engineering and Planning Consultants, Inc., hereinafter called 
"Consultant." 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, the City needs to obtain certain professional, technical and/or 
specialized services of an independent contractor to assist the City in the most 
economical manner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Consultant has represented that consultant has appropriate skill, 
training, qualifications, and experience to render such services called for under this 
Contract to City. 
  

THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
  

SECTION 1.  SCOPE OF SERVICES. Consultant shall perform those services 
described in detail in Exhibit “A,” entitled “SCOPE OF SERVICES” which exhibit is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 2. TERM OF CONTRACT. The term of this Contract shall be from 
June 11, 2014 to September 30, 2014, inclusive. 

SECTION 3. SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. The services of Consultant are 
to be completed according to the schedule set out in Exhibit “B,” entitled “SCHEDULE 
OF PERFORMANCE,” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. Consultant will 
diligently proceed with the agreed Scope of Services and will provide such services in a 
timely manner in accordance with the “SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE.” 

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION. The compensation to be paid to Consultant 
including both payment for professional services and reimbursable expenses as well as 
the rate and schedule of payment are set out in Exhibit “C” entitled “COMPENSATION,” 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. This amount shall not exceed 
$15,000. 

SECTION 5. METHOD OF PAYMENT. Except as otherwise provided in Exhibit 
“C,” each month, Consultant shall furnish to the City a statement describing the work 
performed for compensation during the preceding month. Such statement shall also 
include a detailed record of the month's actual reimbursable expenditures. 

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. It is understood and agreed that 
Consultant, in the performance of the work and services agreed to be performed by 



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 2 of 10 

Consultant, shall act as and be an independent Consultant and not an agent or 
employee of City, and as an independent Consultant, shall obtain no rights to retirement 
benefits or other benefits which accrue to City's employees, and Consultant hereby 
expressly waives any claim it may have to any such rights. 

SECTION 7. ASSIGNABILITY. Consultant shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Contract nor the performance of any of Consultant's obligations 
hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, and any attempt by Consultant to so 
assign this Contract or any rights, duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void 
and of no effect. Consultant represents that Consultant does not have any employees. 

SECTION 8. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law 
(including, without limitation, California Civil Code Sections 2782 and 2782.8), 
Consultant shall defend (with legal counsel reasonably acceptable to City), indemnify 
and hold harmless City and its elected and appointed officers, agents, departments, 
officials, representatives and employees (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and against 
any and all claims, loss, cost, damage, injury (including, without limitation injury to or 
death of an employee of Consultant or its Sub-consultants), expense and liability of 
every kind, nature and description (including, without limitation, incidental and 
consequential damages, court costs, attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses and fees of 
expert consultants or expert witnesses incurred in connection therewith and costs of 
investigation) that arise out of; pertain to, or relate to, directly or indirectly, in whole or in 
part, the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, any Sub-
consultant, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone that they control 
(collectively “Liabilities”).  Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify any 
Indemnitee shall not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused in part by the 
sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee. 

To the extent there is an obligation to indemnify under this Section, Consultant shall be 
responsible for incidental and consequential damages resulting directly or indirectly, in 
whole or in part, from Consultant’s negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct. 

SECTION 9. INSURANCE. 

A. Errors and Omissions Insurance. Consultant shall obtain and maintain in 
full force throughout the term of this Contract a professional liability insurance policy 
(Errors and Omissions), in a company authorized to issue such insurance in the State of 
California, with limits of liability of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) to 
cover all professional services rendered pursuant to this Contract. 

B. Auto and Commercial General Liability Insurance. Consultant shall also 
maintain in full force and effect for the term of this Contract, automobile insurance and 
commercial general liability insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to City, 
which insurance shall include protection against claims arising from bodily and personal 
injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from any 



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 3 of 10 

actual occurrence arising out of the performance of this Contract.  The amounts of 
insurance shall not be less than the following: 

(1) Commercial general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence.  If such insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, such limit shall apply separately to each project 
Consultant performs for City. Such insurance shall (a) name City, its appointed and 
elected officials, and its employees as insureds; and (b) be primary with respect to 
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by City and (c) contain standard 
separation of insured's provisions. 

(2) Business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence.  Such insurance 
shall include coverage for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. 

C. Workers’ Compensation Certification. Consultant certifies that, in the 
performance of this Contract, Consultant shall not employ any person in any manner. 
 

D. Proof of Insurance to City before Notice to Proceed to Work. Consultant 
shall satisfactorily provide a certificate of insurance to the City Clerk before Notice to 
Proceed to Work of this Contract will be issued. Consultant shall not perform any work 
under this Contract until Consultant has obtained the required insurance and until the 
required certificate has been submitted to the City and approved. If Consultant fails or 
refuses to produce or maintain the insurance required by these provisions, or fails or 
refuses to furnish City required proof that insurance has been procured and is in force 
and paid for, City shall have the right at City's election to forthwith terminate this 
Contract immediately without any financial or contractual obligation to the City.  As a 
result of such termination, the City reserves the right to employ another consultant to 
complete the project. 

E. Written notice. Contractor shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any 
insurance policy required by this Contract is terminated; (2) any policy limit is reduced; 
(3) or any deductible or self insured retention is increased.   

SECTION 10. NON-DISCRIMINATION. Consultant shall not discriminate, in any 
way, against any person on the basis of age, sex, race, color, creed, national origin, or 
disability in connection with or related to the performance of this Contract. 

SECTION 11. TERMINATION. 

A. City and Consultant shall have the right to terminate this Contract, without 
cause, by giving not less than ten (10) days written notice of termination. 

B. If Consultant fails to perform any of its material obligations under this 
Contract, in addition to all other remedies provided by law, City may terminate this 
Contract immediately upon written notice. 



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 4 of 10 

C. The City Manager is empowered to terminate this Contract on behalf of 
City. 

D. In the event of termination, Consultant shall deliver to City copies of all 
work papers, schedules, reports and other work performed by Consultant and upon 
receipt thereof, Consultant shall be paid in full for services performed and reimbursable 
expenses incurred to the date of termination. 

SECTION 12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Consultant shall comply with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of the federal, state and local 
governments.  

SECTION 13. GOVERNING LAW. City and Consultant agree that the law 
governing this Contract shall be that of the State of California.  Any suit brought by 
either party against the other arising out of the performance of this Contract shall be 
filed and maintained in the Courts of the County of Santa Cruz. 

SECTION 14. PRIOR CONTRACTS AND AMENDMENTS. This Contract 
represents the entire understanding of the parties as to those matters contained herein.  
No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to 
those matters covered hereunder. This Contract may only be modified by a written 
amendment. 

SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. Except as may be required by 
law, all data, documents, discussions, or other information developed or received by or 
for Consultant in performance of this Contract are confidential and not to be disclosed to 
any person except as authorized by the City Manager. 

SECTION 16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS. All reports, documents or other 
materials developed or received by Consultant or any other person engaged directly by 
Consultant to perform the services required hereunder shall be and remain the property 
of City without restriction or limitation upon their use. 

SECTION 17. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES. The Consultant 
covenants that Consultant has not employed or retained any company or person to 
solicit or secure the Contract, and that Consultant has not paid or agreed to pay any 
company or person, any fees, commissions, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any 
other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. 
For breach or violation of this covenant, the City shall have the right to annul this 
Contract without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage 
fee, gift, or contingency. 

SECTION 18. WAIVER. Consultant agrees that waiver by City or any one or 
more of the conditions of performance under this Contract shall not be construed as 
waiver of any other condition of performance under this Contract. 



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 5 of 10 

SECTION 19. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 

A. A Consultant shall avoid all conflict of interest or appearance of conflict of 
interest in performance of this Contract. Consultant shall file a FPPC Form 700 
disclosure statement, which form shall be filed the City Clerk within thirty (30) days from 
the effective date of this Contract as applicable. 

B. No member, officer, or employee of the City, during their tenure, or for one 
(1) year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the 
proceeds thereof and Consultant agrees not to allow, permit, grant, transfer, or 
otherwise do anything which will result in such member, officer, or employee of the City 
from having such interest. 

SECTION 20. AUDIT BOOKS AND RECORDS.  Consultant shall make 
available to City, its authorized agents, officers and employees, for examination any and 
all ledgers and books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks and other 
records or documents evidencing or related to the expenditures and disbursements 
charged to the City, and shall furnish to City, its authorized agents and employees, such 
other evidence or information as City may require with respect to any such expense or 
disbursement charged by Consultant. 

SECTION 21. NOTICES. All notices shall be personally served or mailed, 
postage prepaid, to the following addresses, or to such other address as may be 
designated by written notice by the parties: 

CITY 
 

City Clerk’s Office 
275 Main Street, Suite 400 

Watsonville, CA 95076 
(831) 768-3040 

CONSULTANT 
 

Freitas+Freitas Engineering and Planning 
Consultants, Inc. 

3233 Valencia Avenue, A1 
Aptos, CA 95003 
(831) 688-1168 

 
 

SECTION 22. EXHIBITS: 

 
  Exhibit A: Scope of Services 
  Exhibit B: Schedule of Performance 
  Exhibit C: Compensation 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 6 of 10 

 



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 7 of 10 

 WITNESS THE EXECUTION HEREOF, on the day and year first hereinabove 
written. 
 

CITY 
 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 
 
BY ______________________________ 
      Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY ______________________________ 
      Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
BY ______________________________ 
      Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
 
 
BY_________________________________ 

 
 
 



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 8 of 10 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
 
See attached proposal. 
 
  



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 9 of 10 

EXHIBIT "B" 
 

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE 
 
 

Services shall commence immediately upon execution of this Contract. All 
services performed under the provisions of this Contract shall be completed in 
accordance with the following schedule: 

 
Work will occur June 11, 2014 through September 30, 2014.



P:\PROJECTS\Utilities Projects\Storm Drain Projects\Levee Storm Drain Pump Retrofit\Lincoln, Marchant, Coolidge PS 
Upgrades\CONTRACT\Consultant Agrmt City Architects or Engineers no employees1.doc 
6/3/2014 12:59:37 PM 

Page 10 of 10 

EXHIBIT "C" 
 

COMPENSATION 
  
a.  Total Compensation. The total obligation of City under this Contract shall not exceed 
$91,000.00. 
 
b.  Basis for Payment. Payment(s) to Consultant for services performed under this 
contract shall be made as follows and shall [not] include payment for reimbursable 
expenses: 
 
c.  Payment Request. Consultant shall submit a request for payment for services on a 
monthly basis by letter to Director, or said Director's designated representative. Such 
request for payment shall cover the preceding monthly period during the term hereof, 
shall note the City's purchase order number for this contract, shall contain a detailed 
listing of the total number of items or tasks or hours for which payment is requested, the 
individual dates on which such services were rendered, and invoices for reimbursable 
expenses, if any. Upon receipt in the Office of Director of said payment request, Director 
shall cause payment to be initiated to Consultant for appropriate compensation. 



Freitas + Freitas 
Engineering and Planning Consultants, Inc. 
 

3233 Valencia Ave., Suite A1, Aptos, California 95003 
831-688-1168    fr8tus@aol.com  www.freitasplusfreitas 

May 13, 2014           14002 
 
Monte Plasman 
Assistant Engineer 
City of Watsonville Department of Public Works and Utilities 
250 Main Street 
Watsonville, CA 95076 
 
Subject:  Proposal For Consulting Engineer 
  Marchant, Lincoln, and Coolidge Storm Water Pump Stations 
 
As requested, this letter is our fee breakdown for the Marchant, Lincoln, and Coolidge Storm Water Pump 
Stations Proposal we prepared and submitted 5/5/14. The tasks required to complete this project include survey & 
base mapping, hydrology /hydraulic studies, preparation of a conceptual plan, and preparation of construction 
documents (plans, special provisions, and estimates).  
 
The engineering work to analyze and reconstruct these storm water pump stations would consist of the following 
tasks: 
 

Task 1. Develop Understanding of Project Purpose and Need 
We will meet with City staff to gather information and develop an understanding of the project and identify 
City goals and preferences.  
 
Task 2 - Survey and Base Mapping 
We will perform a topographic survey in order to prepare base maps for each pump station location. The 
survey shall be based on the bench marks described and shown on the Record of Survey recorded in 
Volume 115 of Maps, page 7. We will provide survey control to be used for construction of the project.  
 
Task 3 - Hydrology/Hydraulic Study 
We will prepare a hydrologic/hydraulic study for each pump station location. The hydrology work will 
include a review of the City's mapping of the tributary area which flows into each pump station location 
and any necessary revision, and an estimate of runoff for the 2 year, 10 year and the 100 year recurrence 
storm events based on the rational method. A hydraulic analysis shall provide the basis of design for the 
pumps and motors, the wetwell, and level control settings.  
 
Each pump station location will be designed so that the pumps and motors operate in an efficient manner 
for a range of storm events. This includes containing the inflow in the wet well for the 10 year storm event 
and, to the maximum extent practicable, prevent flooding from beyond the street area for the 100 year 
storm event. The hydrology/hydraulic study need not consider the effect of different flood stages of the 
Pajaro River.  
 
Task 4 - Preliminary Engineering Design Report 
We will prepare a report describing the basis for design and a concept plan for each of the pump stations 
including a preliminary site plan and cost estimate. 
 
Task 5 - Final Design and Engineering Services 
We will prepare construction documents which will include plans, specifications (special provisions) and 
quantity and cost estimates (PS&E) for each pump station. The plans shall include a site plan, a profile or 
section, details of all the various items of construction and prefabricated facilities, electric single line 
diagrams and any other plans, and details necessary to construct the facilities and manage its construction. 
We will prepare special provisions providing specifications and the criteria for acceptance for all the 
electrical and mechanical equipment, fabrications, and construction materials. 
 

mailto:fr8tus@aol.com
http://www.freitasplusfreitas/


Monte Plasman 
May 13, 2014 
Page 2 

Freitas + Freitas Engineering and Planning Consultants, Inc. 

 
Our proposed fee and breakdown is shown below: 
 

 
 
The total fee for all three pump stations is $91,000. 
 
We will invoice monthly on the time and material basis in accordance with our Rate Schedule enclosed with the 
proposal. We will not exceed $91,000. 
 
Thank you for considering Freitas + Freitas Engineering and Planning Consultants for this important work.  If 
you have any questions, please call me. 
 
Sincerely,   

Michael J. Freitas 
Michael J. Freitas 
Freitas + Freitas Engineering and Planning Consultants, Inc.

Proposed Fee Breakdown All Three Sites
Tasks 1 -  Develop Understanding

8  hours Principal Engineer @ $187.50  per hour 1,500$               
 Subtotal Tasks 1 1,500$             

Task 2 - Survey and Base Mapping
16,500 Surveying Sub Contract 16,500$             
1,000 Expenses 1,000$               

 Subtotal Tasks 2 17,500$           
Task 3 - Hydrology/Hydraulic Studies

120  hours Principal Engineer @ $187.50  per hour 22,500$             
1,000  Expenses 1,000$               

 Subtotal Task 3 23,500$           
Task 4 - Preliminary Engineering Design Report

60  hours Principal Engineer @ $187.50  per hour 11,250$             
500  CAD Drafting 500$                  
500  Expenses 500$                  

 Subtotal Task 4 12,250$           
Task 5 -  Final Design Phase

180  hours Principal Engineer @ $187.50  per hour 33,750$             
2,000  CAD Drafting 2,000$               

500  Expenses 500$                  
 Subtotal Tasks 5 36,250$           

Total Fee for All Three Sites 91,000$           



Page 1 of 2

S:\Staff Reports\SafeKids MOU\Staff Report SEATS for KIDS program.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Fire Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 28, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Bisbee, Fire Chief and Rosa Meyer, Administrative 
Analyst 

SUBJECT: SEATS for KIDS Program 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager to approve a memorandum of 
agreement with the County of Santa Cruz Health Services Agency-County Child Passenger 
Safety Program to establish and maintain a SEATS for KIDS car seat program. 

DISCUSSION: 
According to the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, 72 percent of nearly 3,500 
observed car seats and booster seats were misused in a way that could be expected to 
increase a child’s risk of injury during a crash. In June 2006, the administrative assistant was 
certified as a Child Passenger Safety Technician.  Since that time, over 300 seats have been 
inspected. Watsonville Fire joined the SafeKids Santa Cruz Coalition, partnering with other 
local agencies to provide car seat inspections to residents of Santa Cruz County. The County 
of Santa Cruz Health Services Agency-SEATS for KIDS program director has obtained grants 
over the years to purchase child safety seats and distributed those seats to the members of 
the coalition. Watsonville Fire distributed their share of seats to more than two-thirds of the 
children whose seats were inspected because they were damaged, old and/or recalled. These 
seats were given to low income families. With the economic downturn, there has been an 
increased need for child safety seats by our community not just for infants but for older 
children. 

Entering into an agreement with the County of Santa Cruz Health Services Agency will enable 
Watsonville Fire to continue providing child safety seats to low income families in our 
community. The agreement is needed by the County of Santa Cruz for their own departmental 
accountability, reporting and tracking for the child safety seat grants. 

CITY COUNCIL 4.4

rosa.meyer
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 

 
Writer’s name  5/28/2014 4:12:46 PM 
S:\Staff Reports\SafeKids MOU\Staff Report SEATS for KIDS program.doc 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 
This proposal meets the City Council’s goals to Protect Public Safety by developing and 
promoting partnerships with other agencies and organizations; and Reduce Reliance on 
Reserve Funds. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
There is no financial impact to the City. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The alternative is to not enter into the agreement with the County of Santa Cruz Health 
Services Agency. If an agreement is not made, seats will no longer be distributed to 
Watsonville Fire. The next closest agency is Aptos/La Selva Fire District. Child safety seats will 
no longer be available to low income families in Watsonville without traveling outside the City, 
which could in turn increase potential injuries to children in our community if they are involved 
in a crash. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ HEALTH SERVICES 
AGENCY AND THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE TO ESTABLISH AND 
MAINTAIN A SEATS FOR KIDS CAR SEAT PROGRAM IN 
COLLABORATION WITH THE COUNTY’S CHILD PASSENGER 
SAFETY PROGRAM AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE SAME 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Memorandum of Agreement between the County of Santa Cruz

Health Services Agency and the City of Watsonville, to establish and maintain a SEATS 

for KIDS Program in collaboration with the County’s Child Passenger Safety Program, 

which Memorandum of Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference, is fair and equitable and is hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

such Memorandum of Agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

*************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\MOA SEATS for Kids Program - County and Fire.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 8:43:19 AM  AJS ______ CJP ______ Fire ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.4

rosa.meyer
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



rosa.meyer
Typewriter
Watsonville Fire





Page 1 of 3
P:citycouncil\staffreports\2014\revisedwormhoudtagreementstaffrpt061014 

City of Watsonville 
Parks & Community Services Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 3, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Ana Espinoza, Director Parks & Community Services 
Robert Berry & Fabian Guzman, Public Works and Utility Project 
Managers 

SUBJECT: Resolution approving architectural services with Wormhoudt Landscape 
Architecture Incorporated for design, construction costs and documents 
for the relocation and expansion of Ramsay Park Skate Park for an 
amount not to exceed $28,800. 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a contract with Wormhoudt Landscape Architecture Incorporated for design, 
construction costs and documents for the relocation and expansion of Ramsay Park Skate 
Park for an amount not to exceed $28,800. 

DISCUSSION: 
Background.  
The existing City skate park is located at the Harkins Slough Road entrance to Ramsay Park.  
It was built in 2001 and is approximately 7,600 square feet in size. The design consists of a 
steel course and half pipe secured to an asphalt ground. By current design standards it offers 
skateboarders a basic and novice skill experience. The skate park is used by both youth and 
adults. 

Proposed Relocation and Expansion. 
It is proposed that the skate park be relocated next to the Sotomayor soccer field and that the 
size of the skate park be expanded to approximately 10,300 sq. ft.;  and that the new and  
uniquely designed skate park  offer opportunities for the novice to advanced skateboarders. 
(Attachment 1- Proposed New Skate Park Location) 

CITY COUNCIL 4.5

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 3 

P:citycouncil\staffreports\2014\revisedwormhoudtagreementstaffrpt061014 

 

  
The relocation will address the concern of residents that the skate park is unsafe at its current 
location.  Placing the skate park in a more visible location and closer to Main Street will attract 
more skateboarders of all ages to use the skate park.  
 
An additional improvement proposed to Ramsay Park as part of the skate park renovation is 
the remodel of the main public restroom facility near the soccer field.  The public restroom is in 
need of renovation due to its age and extent of use and will include Americans with Disability 
Act (ADA) improvements. 
 
 
Community Input Process and Opportunities for Community Support. 
The City will continue with its practice of providing opportunities for public input on the  
remodel and design of public facilities. The skateboarding community and residents will be 
invited to provide input on the new design of the skate park.  Input from the community is an 
important component of designing a skate park that will meet their needs and interests.  A total 
of two public workshops will be scheduled, the first in July 2014 and the second workshop will 
be offered in August 2014.  The specific dates will be determined as soon as the landscape 
architect begins work on this project. 
 
In addition to obtaining input on the design of the skate park, residents will be invited to make 
financial contributions to the Ramsay Skate Park Renovation Project.  Their support will ensure 
that an effective skate park is built.  A few individuals have expressed their interest in making 
financial contributions and supporting the enhanced skateboarding opportunities for the 
community. 
 
Consultant Scope of Services. 
It is recommended that the City contract with Wormhoudt Landscape Architecture, 
Incorporated, an architectual and landscape design firm from Santa Cruz, CA,  to provide 
architectural design services as a sole source consultant.  They are a local expert in skate park 
design since 1974.  Their park designs are based on rider input, safety, affordability, durability 
and environmental sensitivity and they have designed over 100 skate parks and bike parks 
throughout the United States.  Also, they have received over 12 skate park facility design 
awards. 
 
An overview of the scope of services to be performed by Wormhoudt Landscape Architecture, 
Incorporated are as follows: 
 
Phase I:  Skate Park Design Development 

 Conduct Two Public Workshops 
 Develop Preliminary Design Plan - three dimensional scale model and virtual tour video 

of the skate park design 
 Develop Final Design Plan - three dimensional scale model and virtual tour video of the 

skate park design 
 Develop Probable Construction Costs 

 



Page 3 of 3 

P:citycouncil\staffreports\2014\revisedwormhoudtagreementstaffrpt061014 

 

Phase 2: Construction Documentation (Plans and Specifications & Estimates) 
 Prepare Construction Documents (Bid Set) 
 Provide Two Opinions of Probable Construction Costs 

 
Phase 3: Bidding and Construction Support 

 Bidding Assistance 
 Pre-construction Information and Clarification to Responsible Bidder 
 Construction Administration Support  
 Construction Observation – Field Observation Meetings 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
The Ramsay Park improvements address the City Council’s goal of engaging youth in positive 
activities and enhancing the image of the City.  The improved skate park and public restroom 
facility at Ramsay Park serve as an economic development tool to attract more youth and 
visitors; allow the City to maintain its investment in public facilities; improve safety; and further 
engage diverse community partners. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The relocation and improvement of the skate park is estimated at a cost of $600,000.  On April 
22, 2014, the City Council approved an allocation of $225,000 from the Community 
Development Block Grants to support this project.  The remaining funds needed are proposed 
to be allocated from the Park Development Fund and from community donations. The City 
Council will approve the City’s FY 14-15 Budget at their June 10, 2014 meeting that will include 
the Park Development Fund allocation of $375,000 for this renovation project. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Attachement 1: Proposed  New Skate Park Location 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



10,300 SF

ATTACHMENT: Proposed Skate Park Relocation Site



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT 
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND WORMHOUDT 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, INCORPORATED, FOR DESIGN, 
CONSTRUCTION COSTS, AND DOCUMENTS FOR THE RELOCATION 
AND EXPANSION OF RAMSAY PARK SKATE PARK, IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $28,800, AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAME  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Agreement for Consultant Services between the City of Watsonville

and Wormhoudt Landscape Architecture, Incorporated, a corporation, for design, 

construction costs and documents for the relocation and expansion of Ramsay Park Skate 

Park, in an amount not to exceed $28,800, a copy of which Agreement is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by this reference, is fair and equitable and is hereby ratified and 

approved. 

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

such Agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

****************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Agrmt Wormhoudt Inc Ramsay Skate Park Design.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 5:21:49 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ PCS ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.5

ana.espinoza
Stamp

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 1 of 13 

CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND WORMHOUDT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, 

INCORPORATED. 
 
 

THIS CONTRACT, is made and entered into this June 11, 2014, by and between 
the City of Watsonville, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "City," and 
WORMHOUDT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, INCORPORATED, a corporation, 
hereinafter called "Consultant." 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, the City needs to obtain certain professional, technical and/or 
specialized services of an independent contractor to assist the City in the most 
economical manner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Consultant has the requisite skill, training, qualifications, and 
experience to render such services called for under this Contract to City. 
  

THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
  

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. Consultant shall perform those services as 
specified in detail in Exhibit "A," entitled "SCOPE OF SERVICES" which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 2. TERM OF CONTRACT. The term of this Contract shall be from 
June 11, 2014 to June 30, 2015, inclusive. 

SECTION 3. SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. The services of Consultant are 
to be completed according to the schedule set out in Exhibit "B," entitled "SCHEDULE 
OF PERFORMANCE," which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. Consultant will 
diligently proceed with the agreed Scope of Services and will provide such services in a 
timely manner in accordance with the "SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE." 

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION. The compensation to be paid to Consultant 
including both payment for professional services and reimbursable expenses as well as 
the rate and schedule of payment are set out in Exhibit "C" entitled "COMPENSATION," 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 5. METHOD OF PAYMENT. Except as otherwise provided in Exhibit 
"C," each month, Consultant shall furnish to the City a statement of the work performed 
for compensation during the preceding month. Such statement shall also include a 
detailed record of the month's actual reimbursable expenditures. 

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. It is understood and agreed that 
Consultant, in the performance of the work and services agreed to be performed by 
Consultant, shall act as and be an independent Consultant and not an agent or 
employee of City, and as an independent Consultant, shall obtain no rights to retirement 



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 2 of 13 

benefits or other benefits which accrue to City's employees, and Consultant hereby 
expressly waives any claim it may have to any such rights. 

SECTION 7. ASSIGNABILITY. Consultant shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Contract nor the performance of any of Consultant's obligations 
hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, and any attempt by Consultant to so 
assign this Contract or any rights, duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void 
and of no effect. 

SECTION 8. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law 
(including, without limitation, California Civil Code Sections 2782 and 2782.8), 
Consultant shall defend (with legal counsel reasonably acceptable to City), indemnify 
and hold harmless City and its elected and appointed officers, agents, departments, 
officials, representatives and employees (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and against 
any and all claims, loss, cost, damage, injury (including, without limitation injury to or 
death of an employee of Consultant or its Sub-consultants), expense and liability of 
every kind, nature and description (including, without limitation, incidental and 
consequential damages, court costs, attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses and fees of 
expert consultants or expert witnesses incurred in connection therewith and costs of 
investigation) that arise out of; pertain to, or relate to, directly or indirectly, in whole or in 
part, the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, any Sub-
consultant, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone that they control 
(collectively “Liabilities”).  Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify any 
Indemnitee shall not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused in part by the 
sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee. 

To the extent there is an obligation to indemnify under this Section, Consultant shall be 
responsible for incidental and consequential damages resulting directly or indirectly, in 
whole or in part, from Consultant’s negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct. 

SECTION 9. INSURANCE. 

A. Errors and Omissions Insurance. Consultant shall obtain and maintain in 
full force throughout the term of this Contract a professional liability insurance policy 
(Errors and Omissions), in a company authorized to issue such insurance in the State of 
California, with limits of liability of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) to 
cover all professional services rendered pursuant to this Contract. 

B. Auto and Commercial General Liability Insurance. Consultant shall also 
maintain in full force and effect for the term of this Contract, automobile insurance and 
commercial general liability insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to City, 
which insurance shall include protection against claims arising from bodily and personal 
injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from any 
actual occurrence arising out of the performance of this Contract. The amounts of 
insurance shall not be less than the following: 

(1) Commercial general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $500,000.00 per occurrence. If such insurance 



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 3 of 13 

contains a general aggregate limit, such limit shall apply separately to each project 
Consultant performs for City. Such insurance shall (a) name City, its appointed and 
elected officials, and its employees as insureds; and (b) be primary with respect to 
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by City and (c) contain standard 
separation of insured's provisions. 

(2) Business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $500,000.00 per occurrence. Such insurance shall 
include coverage for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. 

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance. In accordance with the provisions of 
Section 3700 of the Labor Code, Consultant shall be insured against liability for 
Workers’ Compensation or undertake self-insurance. Consultant agrees to comply with 
such provisions before commencing performance of any work under this Contract.  

D. Proof of Insurance to City before Notice to Proceed to Work. Consultant 
shall satisfactorily provide certificates of insurance to the City Clerk before Notice to 
Proceed to Work of this Contract will be issued. Certificates and policies shall state that 
the policy shall not be canceled or reduced in coverage without thirty (30) days written 
notice to City. Approval of insurance by City shall not relieve or decrease the extent to 
which Consultant may be held responsible for payment of damages resulting from 
services or operations performed pursuant to this Contract. Consultant shall not perform 
any work under this Contract until Consultant has obtained the required insurance and 
until the required certificates have been submitted to the City and approved by the City 
Attorney. If Consultant fails or refuses to produce or maintain the insurance required by 
these provisions, or fails or refuses to furnish City required proof that insurance has 
been procured and is in force and paid for, City shall have the right at City's election to 
forthwith terminate this Contract immediately without any financial or contractual 
obligation to the City. As a result of such termination, the City reserves the right to 
employ another consultant to complete the project. 

E. Written notice. Contractor shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any 
insurance policy required by this Contract is terminated; (2) any policy limit is reduced; 
(3) or any deductible or self insured retention is increased.   

SECTION 10. NON-DISCRIMINATION. Consultant shall not discriminate, in any 
way, against any person on the basis of age, sex, race, color, creed, national origin or 
disability in connection with or related to the performance of this Contract. 

SECTION 11. TERMINATION. 

A. City and Consultant shall have the right to terminate this Contract, without 
cause, by giving not less than ten (10) days written notice of termination. 

B. If Consultant fails to perform any of its material obligations under this 
Contract, in addition to all other remedies provided by law, City may terminate this 
Contract immediately upon written notice. 



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 4 of 13 

C. The City Manager is empowered to terminate this Contract on behalf of 
City. 

D. In the event of termination, Consultant shall deliver to City copies of all 
work papers, schedules, reports and other work performed by Consultant and upon 
receipt thereof, Consultant shall be paid in full for services performed and reimbursable 
expenses incurred to the date of termination. 

SECTION 12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Consultant shall comply with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of the federal, state and local 
governments. Consultant shall obtain and maintain a City of Watsonville business 
license during the term of this Contract. 

SECTION 13. GOVERNING LAW. City and Consultant agree that the law 
governing this Contract shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either 
party against the other arising out of the performance of this Contract shall be filed and 
maintained in the Municipal or Superior Court of the County of Santa Cruz. 

SECTION 14. PRIOR CONTRACTS AND AMENDMENTS. This Contract 
represents the entire understanding of the parties as to those matters contained herein. 
No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to 
those matters covered hereunder. This Contract may only be modified by a written 
amendment. 

SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. All data, documents, 
discussions or other information developed or received by or for Consultant in 
performance of this Contract are confidential and not to be disclosed to any person 
except as authorized by the City Manager or his designee, or as required by law. 

SECTION 16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS. All reports, documents or other 
materials developed or received by Consultant or any other person engaged directly by 
Consultant to perform the services required hereunder shall be and remain the property 
of City without restriction or limitation upon their use. 

SECTION 17. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES. The Consultant 
covenants that Consultant has not employed or retained any company or person, other 
than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, to solicit or secure the 
Contract, and that Consultant has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fees, commissions, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting 
from the award or making of this Contract, for breach or violation of this covenant, the 
City shall have the right to annul this Contract without liability, or in its discretion, to 
deduct from the Contract price or consideration or otherwise recover, the full amount of 
such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency. 

SECTION 18. WAIVER. Consultant agrees that waiver by City or any one or 
more of the conditions of performance under this Contract shall not be construed as 
waiver of any other condition of performance under this Contract. 



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 5 of 13 

SECTION 19. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 

A. A Consultant shall avoid all conflict of interest or appearance of conflict of 
interest in performance of this Contract. Consultant shall file a disclosure statement, if 
required by City Council Resolution, which shall be filed within thirty (30) days from the 
effective date of this Contract or such Resolution, as applicable. 

B. No member, officer, or employee of the City, during their tenure, or for one 
(1) year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the 
proceeds thereof and Consultant agrees not to allow, permit, grant, transfer, or 
otherwise do anything which will result in such member, officer, or employee of the City 
from having such interest. 

SECTION 20. AUDIT BOOKS AND RECORDS. Consultant shall make available 
to City, its authorized agents, officers and employees, for examination any and all 
ledgers and books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks and other records 
or documents evidencing or related to the expenditures and disbursements charged to 
the City, and shall furnish to City, its authorized agents and employees, such other 
evidence or information as City may require with respect to any such expense or 
disbursement charged by Consultant. 

SECTION 21. NOTICES. All notices shall be personally served or mailed, 
postage prepaid, to the following addresses, or to such other address as may be 
designated by written notice by the parties: 

CITY 
 

City Clerk’s Office 
275 Main Street, Suite 400 

Watsonville, CA 95076 
(831) 768-3040 

CONSULTANT 
 

Wormhoudt Landscape Architecture, 
Incorporated 

849 Almar Avenue 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

(831) 426-8424 
 
 

SECTION 22. EXHIBITS: 

  Exhibit A: Scope of Services 
  Exhibit B: Schedule of Performance 
  Exhibit C: Compensation 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
 
 
 





P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
The scope of services is as follows: 
 
      PHASE 1 – SKATE PARK DESIGN DEVELOPMENT  

1.0 Project Start-Up  

To initiate the design process, Consultant. will participate in a project kickoff meeting 
with City Staff. The meeting will provide a key opportunity to specifically discuss 
programmatic items, the budget, issues or concerns, design considerations, and 
discuss the upcoming community workshop details. As part of the project start-up 
process Consultant will review the available base data to become familiar with the 
project area’s opportunities and constraints. This data will play a critical role in 
assessing all aspects of the skate park’s design.  

Consultant will obtain from City Staff all relevant available data for the design effort, 
to include the following:  

 Survey  

 Geotechnical Reports  

 As-Built Drawings  

 Underground and/or Overhead Public Utility Maps  
  

Deliverables: Prepare for and participate in one (1) Kickoff Meeting.  

 1.1 Public Workshop No. 1  

Consultant along with City Staff will conduct a public design workshop with interested 
local skaters and community members. The workshop will be designed to introduce 
the project to the public and engage participants in the preliminary design 
development process. The goal of the workshop will be to develop project specific 
skate park elements to reflect the local skating style.  

The first workshop will consist of the following activities:  

 Brief site analysis overview to communicate any physical and policy/planning 
constraints that will influence the design.  

 Introduction to the skate park planning process and the project specific design 
options and opportunities.  

 Focused interactive design and brainstorming session: Interested skaters will 
work with modeling clay or other medium to form and shape their ideas of 
features they would like to see included in the skate park facility.  



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 8 of 13 

Deliverable: Prepare for and conduct one (1) public workshop.  

1.2 Preliminary Design Plan  

Based on the design concepts developed with the community’s input in Workshop 
No. 1, Consultant will prepare a preliminary design plan, three dimensional model 
and virtual tour video of the proposed skate park. The preliminary design plan will 
illustrate the major skate park components and how they relate to each other, and 
the site. Consultant will respond to questions and comments from City.  A conference 
call or meeting shall be scheduled as needed with Consultant and City to review the 
preliminary design. 

 Deliverables: One (1) preliminary design plan, three dimensional scale model and 
virtual tour video of the skate park design.  

 1.3 Public Workshop No. 2  

Consultant along with the City Staff will conduct a second public design workshop 
with interested local skaters and community members. The preliminary skate park 
design will be presented and evaluated through an interactive process with the goal 
of arriving at a community supported final design. Following the workshop, 
Consultant will prepare a Summary of  Results memo for review by City Staff 
documenting the design consensus and will serve as the guide for preparation of the 
final design plan.  

 Deliverables: Prepare for and conduct one (1) public workshop and a summary of  
 results memo.  
  

1.4 Final Design Plan  

Based on the results of Workshop No. 2 and direction from City Staff; Consultant will 
refine the preliminary design plan for the skate park. The final skate park design plan 
will be color rendered and the skate park’s design clearly communicated through a 
final design plan, three dimensional model and virtual tour video.  

 Deliverables One (1) final design plan, three dimensional model and virtual tour 
video.  

 1.5 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost  

Based on the final design for the skate park, Consultant will prepare an opinion of 
probable construction cost. The opinion will break the major construction components 
of the skate park structure in into a spread sheet format. Consultant will respond to 
questions and comments from City.  A conference call or meeting shall be scheduled 
as needed with Consultant and City to review the probable construction costs. 

 Deliverable: One (1) opinion of probable construction cost  



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 9 of 13 

 
PHASE 2 - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION (PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS & 
ESTIMATES)  

 2.0  Construction Document Package Contents – Consultant will prepare 
Construction Documents for the skate park terrain for submittal to City Staff at the 
50%, 90%, and 100% (bid set) levels.  

Horizontal Control Plans  
Consultant will prepare horizontal control plans, at an appropriate scale, for the 
approved design. The plans will establish all horizontal control for the skate park 
terrain. The plans will also establish construction layout control points and establish a 
coordinate system for locating the various skate elements.  
  

Grading and Drainage Plans  
Consultant will prepare grading and drainage plans, at an appropriate scale, for the 
construction and drainage of water from the skate park structures. Consultant will 
coordinate with City Staff for the connection of the skate park structure drainage and 
site drainage.  
  

Construction Details  
As a companion to the construction plans, Consultant will prepare details for all the 
construction items illustrated on the construction plans. The details will specify 
materials and all of the necessary information to construct the various design 
elements.  

  
Specifications  
Consultant will prepare technical specifications for all of the construction work 
associated with the skate park structure. The specification will include contractor 
prequalification language for all of the skate park specialty work.  
  
Deliverable: Plans and Specifications submitted at 50%, 90%, and 100% (bid set)  
levels.  
 
2.1 Construction Cost Opinions 

Consultant will estimate construction costs for the skate park at the 50% and 100% 
(bid set) stage. The detailed Construction Cost Opinion will break out each 
component of the scope of work on a line item spreadsheet with item descriptions 
and unit costs.  

Deliverable: Two (2) opinions of probable construction costs submitted at 50% and  
100%  levels.  

 
 PHASE 3 - BIDDING AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT  



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 10 of 13 

 3.0 Pre-Bid Phone Conference  

Consultant will prepare for and participate in one (1) Pre-Bid Phone Conference to 
respond to questions and provide clarifications as necessary to all potential bidders.  
  
Deliverables: Prepare for and participate in one (1) pre-bid conference.  
  

3.1 Bidding Assistance  

Consultant will assist City Staff during the bidding phase of the project. Consultant 
will prepare responses to requests for clarifications as determined by City Staff to be 
reasonable or necessary for the bidding process. All bidder questions will be received 
by City Staff and forwarded in writing to the Consultant for response back to the City 
Staff in writing. Under this task, we will review all bids and assist City Staff in 
selecting the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  

Deliverables: Addenda and plan clarification response documents. Bid review and bid  
award recommendation.  
  

3.2 Pre-Construction Phone Conference  

Consultant’s project manager, will prepare for and participate in one (1) Pre-
Construction phone conference with City Staff to provide information and clarification 
as necessary to the successful bidder prior to beginning construction activities.  

 Deliverables: Prepare for and participate in one (1) pre-construction phone 
conference.  

3.3 Construction Administration  

Following award of the general construction contract, Consultant will support City 
Staff during the construction phase of the project. Consultant will review and respond 
to Requests for Information (RFI), Change Orders (CO), submittals, and contractor 
supplied shop drawings.  

Under this task, we will also prepare and issue Supplemental Instructions as 
necessary to clarify technical details and prepare preliminary and final punch lists. 
We will also coordinate with consultants, agency, and City Staff as necessary.  

 Deliverables: RFI, CO, submittal reviews, shop drawings responses, supplemental  
instructions, and general record keeping documents. 

 
 
 

 3.4 Construction Observation  

Consultant’s project manager and/or designated representative will prepare for and 



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 11 of 13 

attend four (4) field observation meetings at intervals appropriate to the stage of 
construction to observe construction progress. Field observation meetings will be 
planned to coordinate with key milestones during the skate park construction 
process. In the interest of cost efficiency, we will encourage meeting consolidation by 
strategically scheduling meetings to maximize productivity whenever possible, such 
as meeting with City Staff, construction inspectors, contractors, and any other agency 
representatives in a single visit.  

Deliverables: Prepare for and attend four (4) field observation meetings, site visit  
reports and final punch-list.  
  

This scope of work includes the design development of a poured-in-place concrete 
skate park structure up to 12,000 square feet in size as measured by plan footprint.   

     This proposal excludes: 
 Site improvements design and documentation including: restrooms, sports 

lighting, security lighting, parking lot, sidewalks, planting, irrigation, 
fencing, electrical and  storm sewer. 

 Additional meetings not specifically identified in the Scope of Services. 
 

It is assumed that the Consultant will be provided with the following information 
before the development of the preliminary design: 
 
1. A survey of the site showing existing conditions including property lines, utilities, 

grades, contours, plant materials and any other items that would remain or would 
be removed (AutoCAD compatible format). 

2. A project specific Geotechnical report, analyzing the soil conditions, the depth of 
the water table, and providing structural design recommendations. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE 
 
 

Services shall commence immediately upon execution of this Contract. All 
services performed under the provisions of this Contract shall be completed in 
accordance with the following schedule: 

 
 

The work described in Phase 1 shall be completed within four (4) weeks of the project 
kick-off meeting.  

 Public Workhop I will be held in July 2014 and the Public Workshop II will be held in 
August 2014. 

The final skate park design, specifications and plans will be completed by October 
2014. 

 
The work described in Phase 2 shall be completed within three (3) weeks of notice to 
proceed.  

The work described in Phase 3 shall be completed per the Construction Contract 
schedule estimated to begin in October 2014.  Construction scheduled to begin January 
5, 2015. 



P:administration/Parkprojects/Ramsay/Skateparkrelocation/wormhoudtincarchitectcontract060314 
6/4/2014 12:46:46 PM  
 

 

Page 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

COMPENSATION 

 
a.  Total Compensation. The total obligation of City under this Contract shall not exceed 
$28,800. 
 
b.  Basis for Payment. Payment(s) to Consultant for services performed under this 
Contract shall be made as follows and shall include payment for reimbursable expenses 
for  printing, postage and miscellaneous expenses approved by the Director prior to 
Consultant incurring the reimbursable expense. 
 
c.  Payment Request. Consultant shall submit a request for payment for services on a 
monthly basis by letter to Director, or said Director's designated representative. Such 
request for payment shall cover the preceding monthly period during the term hereof, 
shall note the City's purchase order number for this Contract, shall contain a detailed 
listing of the total number of items or tasks or hours for which payment is requested, the 
individual dates on which such services were rendered, and invoices for reimbursable 
expenses, if any. Upon receipt in the Office of Director of said payment request, Director 
shall cause payment to be initiated to Consultant for appropriate compensation. 
 
The Rate Schedule for the professional services is as follows: 
 

a. $7,600.00 will be payable upon completion of work identified under Phase 1.  

b. $8,400.00 will be payable upon completion of work identified under Phase 2.  

c. $6,600.00 will be payable upon completion of work identified under Phase 3.  

     d. $6,200 will be established as a design contingency for excluded items as needed. 

 
 Total Compensation: $28,800  

 
HOURLY RATES AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES   

Additional services requested will be compensated as negotiated  based on the 
following hourly rate schedule:  

 Position        Hourly Rate 
 Principal     $125.00 
 Landscape Architect/Project Manager $90.00 
 Draftsperson     $75.00 
 Clerical      $55.00 
 

 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 2

Laurie Blackwood  5/27/2014 11:54:06 AM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\2014 HOME grant\2014 HOME Grant staff report.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 27, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Laurie Blackwood, Administrative Analyst 

SUBJECT: Application to the State of California Housing and Community 
Development Department (HCD) for a 2014 Home Investment 
Partnership Program (HOME) grant for $500,000 for the City’s First 
Time Homebuyer Program 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing 
submittal of an application to the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) for a 2014 Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Grant for the 
First Time Homebuyer Program; and, if awarded, authorizing the City Manager and/or his 
designee to execute a standard agreement and any amendments thereto, and any related 
documents necessary to participate in the HOME Program. 

DISCUSSION:  On May 1, 2014, HCD issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the 
HOME Program.  This Program provides grants to local governments for first time homebuyer 
programs serving qualified low-income households (those at or below 80% of county median 
income).  Applications are due to HCD by July 1, 2014.  Staff proposes applying for a 
$500,000 grant, which is the maximum amount allowed per the NOFA, for the First Time 
Homebuyer Program and anticipates providing eight (8) loans with an average amount of 
approximately $60,000. 

First Time Home Buyer Program 
The First Time Homebuyer program provides deferred, “silent second” mortgage loans to low 
income, first time homebuyers purchasing a market rate home within the City of Watsonville. 
The loan term is 30 years with 3% simple annual interest, and payment is due in full when the 
owner moves, sells, or transfers interest in the home, including certain refinances, or when the 

4.6

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 

 
Laurie Blackwood  5/27/2014 11:54:06 AM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\2014 HOME grant\2014 HOME Grant staff report.doc 

 

first mortgage matures. The program requires a buyer down payment of three (3%) percent of 
the home price, which may come from savings and/or gift funds.  
 
Current market-rate home prices in Watsonville have increased over the last several months 
and homeownership would be out of reach for most lower-income households without the 
assistance of silent second mortgages from the City’s loan program.  
 
The City’s current HOME grant was awarded in December 2011 and will expire on December 
31, 2014.  It is anticipated that 60% of the current grant will be expended before the July 1, 
2014, deadline to apply for the new grant. During the current grant contract, the City will have 
helped eight (8) low income households become first time homebuyers and the demand 
continues to increase.  The City must apply for new grants to ensure continued operation of 
the First Time Homebuyer Program as it provides a valuable resource for this community. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Application for this grant is consistent with the goals in the Housing 
Element of the City’s General Plan, related to increasing homeownership opportunities for low 
income households.  It is also consistent with the City’s Strategic Plan in that it provides a 
Community Resource to our residents. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  No matching funds are required for this grant, and implementation of 
this program will not impact the General Fund.  If the grant is awarded, the City will receive up 
to $500,000 for the First Time Homebuyer Program.  In addition, the grant allows up to 
$12,500 of the funds to be used for administrative purposes plus 6.5% of each loan for activity 
delivery costs to pay for staff time related to grant management and processing of the loans 
funded through the Program. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  The City Council could choose not to apply for this grant.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None. 
 
cc: City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, TO 
SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR A GRANT OF 
$500,000 FROM THE 2014 HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS 
PROGRAM (HOME) FOR THE FIRST TIME HOMEBUYER PROGRAM, 
AND IF AWARDED, AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER AND/OR HIS 
DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE A STANDARD AGREEMENT AND ANY 
AMENDMENTS THERETO AND NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS 
PROGRAM AND APPROPRIATING SUCH FUNDS TO THE GRANT 
BUDGET  

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development, 

hereinafter referred to as the (“Department”), is authorized to allocate HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program (“HOME”) funds made available from the U. S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”); and 

WHEREAS, “HOME” funds are to be used for the purposes set forth in Title II of 

the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, in federal 

implementing regulations set forth in Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 

92, and in Title 25 of the California Code of Regulations commencing with Section 8200; 

and 

WHEREAS, on May 1, 2014, the Department issued a 2014 Notice of Funding 

Availability announcing the availability of funds under the HOME Program (the “NOFA”); 

and 

WHEREAS, in response to the 2014 NOFA, the City of Watsonville, a municipal 

corporation (the “Applicant”), wishes to apply to the Department for, and receive an 

allocation of HOME funds. 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\HOME Grant 2014.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 8:47:58 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.6

angela.paz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Manager of the City of Watsonville, and/or his designee, in 

response to the 2014 NOFA, is authorized and directed to submit on behalf of the City 

of Watsonville to the Department an application to participate in the HOME Program for 

an allocation of funds not to exceed Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) from 

the HOME Investment Partnerships Program for mortgage assistance for low or very 

low income first-time homebuyers to purchase a home located in the City of 

Watsonville. 

2. That if said application for funding is approved, the City of Watsonville 

hereby agrees to use the HOME funds for eligible activities in the manner presented in 

the application as approved by the Department in accordance with the statutes and 

regulations found in Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 92, and Title 25 of 

the California Code of Regulations, Section 8200 et. seq. 

3. That the City Manager of the City of Watsonville and/or his designee is 

authorized and directed to execute in the name of the City of Watsonville, the 

application, the Standard Agreement, and all other documents required by the 

Department or HUD for participation in the HOME program, and any amendments 

thereto, and take the appropriate steps and all other documents or instruments 

necessary or required by the Department or HUD for participation in the HOME program 

(collectively, the required documents.) 

4. That the City Manager of the City of Watsonville is authorized and 

directed, if said grant is awarded, to appropriate the $500,000 to the Grants Fund. 

************************************** 
Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\HOME Grant 2014.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 8:47:58 AM 

2 



The undersigned, Beatriz V. Flores, City Clerk, of the City of Watsonville does 

hereby attest and certify that the foregoing is a true and full copy of a resolution of the 

City Council of the City of Watsonville passed and adopted at a duly convened meeting 

on the date set forth below and said resolution has not been altered, amended, or 

repealed. 

 

____________________________                                              _________________ 
Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk         Date 
City of Watsonville                        

 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\HOME Grant 2014.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 8:47:58 AM 

3 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 2
Laurie Blackwood  5/27/2014 11:59:33 AM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\2014 CalHome grant\2014 CalHome Grant staff report.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 27, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Laurie Blackwood, Administrative Analyst 

SUBJECT: Application to the State of California Housing and Community 
Development Department (HCD) for a 2014 CalHome grant for 
$600,000 for the City’s First Time Homebuyer Program 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing submittal of an 
application to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for a 
2014 CalHome Grant for the First Time Homebuyer Program; and, if awarded, authorizing the 
City Manager and/or his designee to execute a standard agreement and any amendments 
thereto, and any related documents necessary to participate in the CalHome Program. 

DISCUSSION:   
On April 29, 2014, the State of California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the CalHome Program.  This 
Program provides grants to local governments for first time homebuyer programs serving 
qualified low-income households (those at or below 80% of county median income).  The 
maximum grant award is $1,000,000.  Applications are due by July 10, 2014, and HCD plans 
to announce the awards by December 2014.  Staff proposes applying for a grant of $600,000 
for the First Time Homebuyer Program and anticipates providing approximately ten (10) loans 
with an average loan amount of approximately $60,000. 

First Time Home Buyer Program 
The First Time Homebuyer program provides deferred, “silent second” mortgage loans to low 
income, first time homebuyers purchasing market rate homes within the City of Watsonville. 
The loan term is 30 years with 3% simple annual interest, and payment is due in full when the 
owner moves, sells, or transfers interest in the home, including certain refinances, or when the 

4.7

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 

 
Laurie Blackwood 5/27/2014 11:59:33 AM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\2014 CalHome grant\2014 CalHome Grant staff report.doc 

 

first mortgage matures. The program requires a buyer down payment of three (3%) percent of 
the home price, which may come from savings and/or gift funds.  
 
Current market-rate home prices in Watsonville have increased over the last several months 
and homeownership would be out of reach for most lower-income households without the 
assistance of silent second mortgages from the City’s loan program.  
 
The City’s current CalHome grant was awarded in June 2012 and will expire on April 5, 2015.  
Approximately 63% of the current grant has been expended to date to assist seven (7) low 
income households to become first time homebuyers and the demand continues to increase.  
The City must apply for new grants to ensure continued operation of the First Time Homebuyer 
Program as it provides a valuable resource for this community. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:   
Application for this grant is consistent with the goals in the Housing Element of the City’s 
General Plan, related to increasing homeownership opportunities for low income households.  
It is also consistent with the City’s Strategic Plan in that it provides a Community Resource to 
our residents.  It is also consistent with the Agency’s Implementation Plan. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
No matching funds are required for this grant, and implementation of this program will not 
impact the General Fund.  If the grant is awarded, the City will receive up to $600,000 for the 
First Time Homebuyer Program of which $1,200 for each loan funded can be used for activity 
delivery fees to pay staff time related to the processing of the loans funded through the 
Program. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The City Council could choose not to apply for this grant.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None. 
 



    RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, TO 
SUBMIT A GRANT APPLICATION FOR $600,000 TO THE CALIFORNIA 
STATE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT FOR FUNDING UNDER THE 2014 CALHOME 
PROGRAM FOR THE FIRST-TIME HOMEBUYER MORTGAGE 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM OPERATED WITHIN THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE; TO EXECUTE A STANDARD AGREEMENT IF 
SELECTED FOR SUCH FUNDING AND ANY AMENDMENTS 
THERETO AND ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE CALHOME PROGRAM; AND IF AWARDED, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROPRIATE THE 
$600,000 TO THE GRANT FUND 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville, a municipal corporation, wishes to apply for 

and receive an allocation of funds through the California Department of Housing and 

Community Development CalHome Program; and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development 

(hereinafter referred to as HCD) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for 

the CalHome Program established by Chapter 84, Statutes of 2000 (SB 1656 Alarcon) 

and codified in Chapter 6 (commencing with Section 50650) of Part 2 of Division 31 of 

the Health and Safety Code (the “statute”). Pursuant to the statute, HCD is authorized to 

approve funding allocations utilizing monies made available by the State Legislature to 

the CalHome program, subject to the terms and conditions of the statute and the 

CalHome Program Regulations adopted by HCD in April 2004; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville wishes to submit an application to obtain 

from HCD an allocation of CalHome funds in the amount of $600,000 for the first-time 

homebuyer mortgage assistance program operated within the City of Watsonville. 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\CalHome Grant 2014.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 8:46:50 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.7

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City of Watsonville shall hereby submit to HCD an application to 

participate in the 2014 CalHome Program in response to the NOFA issued on April 29, 

2014, requesting a $600,000 funding allocation for mortgage assistance for low or very 

low income first-time homebuyers to purchase a home located within the City of 

Watsonville limits. 

2. That if said application for funding is approved, the City of Watsonville 

hereby agrees to use the CalHome funds for eligible activities in the manner presented 

in the application as approved by HCD and in accordance with program regulations 

cited above. It also may execute any and all other instruments necessary or required by 

HCD for participation in the Cal Home Program. 

3. That the City Council of the City of Watsonville hereby authorizes and 

directs the City Manager and/or his designee to execute in the name of the City of 

Watsonville, the application, the Standard Agreement, and all other documents, and any 

amendments thereto, required by HCD for participation in the CalHome Program,  

4. That the City Manager is authorized, if said grant is awarded, to 

appropriate the $600,000 to the Grant Fund. 

 
 

************************************************ 

 

 

 

 
Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\CalHome Grant 2014.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 8:46:50 AM 

2 



 

The undersigned, Beatriz V. Flores, City Clerk, of the City of Watsonville does 

hereby attest and certify that the foregoing is a true and full copy of a resolution of the 

City Council of the City of Watsonville passed and adopted at a duly convened meeting 

on the date set forth below and said resolution has not been altered, amended, or 

repealed. 

 

____________________________                                              _________________ 
Beatriz Vazquez Flores, City Clerk                   Date 
City of Watsonville 

 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\CalHome Grant 2014.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 8:46:50 AM 

3 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 2
L.Maldonado  5/28/2014 7:36:58 AM 
H:\Homeland Security\FY 2013\Homeland Security Grant 2013 Final.docx 

City of Watsonville 
Watsonville Police Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 28, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Manny Solano, Police Chief 
Lola Maldonado, Sr. Administrative Analyst 

SUBJECT: 2013 Homeland Security Grant Funds 

AGENDA ITEM:  June 10, 2014 City Council

RECOMMENDATION: 
That City Council adopt a resolution accepting $24,694 for the 2013 State Homeland Security 
Grant Program allocation and appropriate the funds to the Watsonville Police Department’s 
State Homeland Security account for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 

DISCUSSION: 
In August 2013, the County of Santa Cruz submitted an application for $297,596 to the Federal 
2013 State Homeland Security Grant Program on behalf of the Santa Cruz County Operational 
Area (City of Watsonville is part of the operational area). The County received notification from 
the California Emergency Management Agency (CalEMA) on September 2013 that the 
application was accepted.  The Watsonville Police Department’s 2013 State Homeland 
Security allocation is $24,694.  Allocations are distributed at 20 percent law enforcement, 20 
percent fire, 20 percent emergency management services, and 40 percent discretionary by 
jurisdictions.  

Although the grant approval was received in September 2013, additional approvals for 
environmental and historic preservation were required to be submitted by the County of Santa 
Cruz.  The Watsonville Police Department received an approval from the County of Santa Cruz 
in May 2014, allowing for the acceptance of the grant award.  The Watsonville Police 
Department’s 2013 Homeland Security funding will be used for the purchase of an Optical 
Lighting System.  This system will allow police officers to pinpoint accuracy even at a relatively 
short distance when using their rifles and will improve effectiveness in low-light conditions.  

4.8

ttraub
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 
 
L.Maldonado  5/28/2014 7:36:58 AM 
H:\Homeland Security\FY 2013\Homeland Security Grant 2013 Final.docx 

 

All funds must be expended for specific projects rather than generally allocated to jurisdictions 
and/or emergency response disciplines.  Each California County Operational Area Coordinator 
is responsible for administering the Homeland Security grants.  In Santa Cruz County that is 
the Emergency Services Manager.  These funds must be utilized for: planning, equipment, 
trainings, or exercises related to or supporting preparation for a terrorist attack. 
 
The Operational Area Council, Santa Cruz County Emergency Management Council, appoints 
the Anti-Terrorism Approval Body (known as the Approval Authority).  The Approval Authority 
reviews and ensures that funds are equitably distributed among first responder agencies and 
recommends to the Board of Supervisor’s the Operating Area Council’s allocation of funds. 
Due to the project-based allocation method of this grant, the City of Watsonville must 
independently arrange for the purchase of the allocated equipment and provide the Office of 
Emergency Services with proof of purchase and request for reimbursement of funds.  
 
Staff recommends City Council approval in the acceptance and appropriation of grant funds 
from the 2013 Homeland Security Program in the amount of $24,694 for the purchase of an 
Optical Lighting System.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The Watsonville City Council is interested in protecting public safety.  In order to achieve this 
goal, it’s essential for sworn personnel to have the necessary equipment that supports the 
reduction of incidents of crime in the community.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
This $24,694 grant from the Federal 2013 State Homeland Security Grant Program does not 
require any local matching funds and has no financial impact to the General Fund. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may choose to not accept the grant.  However, such action will result in the 
loss of federal funds.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
County of Santa Cruz, Office of Emergency Services Letter dated May 14, 2014. 
 
cc: City Attorney 



Attachment 1 

1 of 5



Attachment 1 

2 of 5



Attachment 1 

3 of 5



Attachment 1 

4 of 5



Attachment 1 

5 of 5



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE ACCEPTING THE $24,694 FROM THE STATE 
HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM FOR 2013 FOR THE 
WATSONVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT; APPROVING THE CHIEF OF 
POLICE’S 2014-2015 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT 
PROGRAM EXPENDITURE PLAN TO BE USED FOR THE PURCHASE 
OF OPTICAL LIGHTING SYSTEMS; AND APPROPRIATING SUCH 
FUNDS TO THE WATSONVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATE 
HOMELAND SECURITY – STATE FUND FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council hereby accepts the $24,694 for the 2013 State

Homeland Security Grant Program to the Watsonville Police Department. 

2. That the City Council hereby approves the Chief of Police’s 2014-2015

State Homeland Security Grant Program Expenditure Plan of $24,694 attached hereto 

and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A,” to be used for the purchase of twenty-one (21) 

Optical Lighting Systems.  

3. That the Council hereby appropriates such amount to the Watsonville

Police Department Homeland Security – State Fund for fiscal year 2014-2015. 

******************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Homeland Security Grant and Expenditure 2014.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 8:37:15 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ Police ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.8

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Exhibit "A"

2014/2015 State Homeland Security Allocation Expenditure Plan 
Funding Sources Revenue
2013 State Homeland Security       -      Total Amount Allocated 24,694
Item Cost
Twenty One (21) Optical Lighting Systems 24,694

1 of 1



Page 1 of 5
Suzi Merriam 5/28/2014 12:23 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Staff Report.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 28, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Suzi Merriam, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Appeal of Planning Commission decision to revoke 
Administrative Use Permit application (PP2011-259) for the 
sale of beer and wine in conjunction with a restaurant at 1047 
Freedom Boulevard (APN: 016-121-09). 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council deny the applicant’s appeal by adopting a Resolution 
upholding the Planning Commission’s decision to revoke Administrative Use Permit (PP2011-
259) prohibiting the sale of beer and wine in conjunction with the restaurant El Popo. This 
recommendation is based on the finding that the action of the Planning Commission was 
based on substantial evidence that a public nuisance has arisen as a result of the sale of 
alcoholic beverages at 1047 Freedom Boulevard 

APPEAL PROCEDURE: 
Watsonville Municipal Code (WMC) Section 14-10.1100 allows any member of the public to file 
an appeal when they believe that the action taken by an official or decision making body of the 
City (Planning Commission) was made in error.  Appeals are due within fourteen calendar 
days of the decision and are to be made in writing.  Per Section 14-10-1104, the City shall 
schedule the appeal for the next available City Council meeting.   

The Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 07-14 (PC) revoking Administrative Use 
Permit (PP2011-259) and prohibiting the sale of beer and wine in conjunction with the 
restaurant at 1047 Freedom Boulevard on April 1, 2014.   

On April 15, 2014, Mr. Rudy Zuniga, son of the business owner, submitted a written appeal to 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1a

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 5 

 
Suzi Merriam  5/28/2014 12:23:52 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Staff Report.doc 

 

the City Clerk’s office (see Attachment 2).  The appeal letter does not specifically address 
erroneous actions that were taken by the Planning Commission, but refutes the finding that the 
business has created a nuisance, and states that incidents brought forward at the Planning 
Commission hearing will be abated. 
 
Per WMC, the next available meeting of the City Council was determined to be this meeting 
(June 10, 2014). 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 07-14(PC) revoking Administrative Use 
Permit (PP2011-259) for El Popo at 1047 Freedom Boulevard on April 1, 2014.  The Planning 
Commission found that the business had become a nuisance due to the owner’s continued 
lack of compliance with the Conditions of Approval and ABC regulations.  The following 
violations were addressed in the staff report (see Attachment 3): 
 

1. Not requiring food with the order of alcohol 
2. Service of alcohol to minors 
3. Possession of distilled spirits 

 
The Watsonville Police Department received a grant from the State to conduct enforcement of 
ABC (California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control) regulations in 2013, and the 
Department has been undergoing inspections of existing establishments that serve alcohol and 
running minor decoy operations in an effort to educate licensees and protect the public health, 
safety and welfare. 
 
The Police Department visited Popo’s on two occasions, on October 18, 2013, and on March 
14, 2014.  On both occasions the restaurant was cited for serving alcohol to minors.   
 
REPORT FROM PLANNING COMMISSION: 
At the April 1, 2014 Planning Commission hearing, staff presented documentation to support 
the recommendation to revoke the Administrative Use Permit.  The primary factors in the 
recommendation for denial were a lack of compliance with both City and State Department of 
Alcohol and Beverage Control (ABC) regulations. 
 
The appellant indicated that food is always served before alcohol at the restaurant, and he felt 
that it was his bad luck or a trap by another restaurant that is jealous because gang members 
were present both times that the Police Department inspected the restaurant.  Mr. Zuniga 
indicated that he knew it was his responsibility to check for ID, and that they ask for ID all the 
time.  Mr. Zuniga indicated that his patrons felt harassed by the Police coming into the 
restaurant, and that they cannot control the type of patrons that come into the business.   
 
The Planning Commission discussed the responsibility of the business owner to determine 
when to serve alcohol to a patron, and how to monitor the consumption of alcohol when a 
bucket of beers is served to a table.    The Planning Commission considered the gravity of the 
revocation and the impact it might have on the business; however, the Commission indicated 
that the business was causing a strain on the City’s resources in the time and energy taken by 



Page 3 of 5 

 
Suzi Merriam  5/28/2014 12:23:52 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Staff Report.doc 

 

staff to attempt to rectify the violations.  The Commission adopted a Resolution to revoke the 
Administrative Use Permit on evidence provided. 
 
RESPONSE TO APPEAL: 
 
1. No Disciplinary History 
 
Appellant Contention:  Rudy Zuniga indicates that there had been no disputes, issues, 
complaints or even warnings from the City before the hearing on April 1, 2014.   
 
Staff Response:  The Watsonville Police Department visited the restaurant with officers from 
the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control on October 18, 2013.  During the inspection, the 
owner of the business was cited for possession of distilled spirits and purchasing beer for the 
restaurant from a retail location (ABC Case #13-23-214).  Two minors were cited for underage 
drinking at the restaurant on the same evening, in full view of the restaurant owner (WPD Case 
#13W-05040 and #13W-05046).  During that same visit, a man was arrested on a parole 
violation in the restaurant (WPD Case #13W-05047).   
 
In order to prevent the business from being closed for a period of time by ABC, the business 
owner paid a fine for the citation that was issued on October 18th.   
 
After the inspection, the owner’s son, Rudy Zuniga, met with City staff to discuss the future of 
the business, and he indicated that the family was trying to sell the business.  To give the 
owner time to find a buyer and sell the business, staff held off on scheduling the project for 
review by the Planning Commission.   
 
After the second inspection on March 14, 2014, it was evident that the business remained a 
nuisance and therefore staff scheduled review of the Use Permit by the Planning Commission. 
 
The business owner and his son were aware of the City and ABC’s concern with the operation 
of the business, and the public hearing at the Planning Commission was in response to 
citations generated at the business, while the owner was present. 
 
Recommended Finding: The Planning Commission reviewed all pertinent information 
regarding interaction with the business owner and citations issued for the business, and 
determined that the business was continually operating in violation of both the Use Permit 
Conditions of Approval and ABC regulations.    This decision was not made by the Planning 
Commission in error. 
 
2. Patrons at Fault Does not Equate to Business at Fault 
 
Appellant Contention:  The business owner’s son indicates in his letter that because the 
business owner was not cited, they are not responsible for citations issued to their patrons. 
 
Staff Response:  As noted previously, the business owner was cited by ABC for violations that 
occurred on October 18, 2013.  The ABC officer and Watsonville Police both talked to the 



Page 4 of 5 

 
Suzi Merriam  5/28/2014 12:23:52 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Staff Report.doc 

 

business owner on October 18 and went over the violations found on the premises, including 
the possession of distilled spirits on the premises. 
 
Further, it is the business owner’s responsibility to ask for identification from patrons, and to 
effectively manage the service and distribution of alcohol within their business.  These issues 
were discussed at length at the Planning Commission hearing, and the Planning Commission 
determined that violations could have been prevented had the business owner effectively 
managed the service of alcohol at Popo’s.  
 
Recommended Finding:  The Planning Commission reviewed the evidence provided through 
police reports and photographic evidence from the two visits to the restaurant.  The Planning 
Commission discussed the role of management in the sales and service of alcohol, and did not 
make their determination in error when making the finding that the business had become a 
nuisance in the continued sale of alcohol to minors, and the presence of distilled spirits on the 
premises. 
 
3. Business Improvements to Address These Issues Proactively 
 
Appellant Contention:  Mr. Zuniga’s son, Rudy Zuniga, contends that new management has 
taken over operation of the business.  All those over 21 will be given wristbands to identify 
them, and without a wristband, those under 21 will not be served alcohol. 
 
Staff Response: Mr. Zuniga is the sole owner of the ABC license and is the only name on the 
Special Use Permit for beer and wine sales at Popo’s, and he remains responsible for the 
management of the business.  It is evident that the problems with service of alcohol to minors 
at the restaurant stem from not carding patrons, and the service of buckets of beer to tables 
that include a mix of minors and those over 21.   
 
These problems were witnessed by the Police Department on two separate occasions, and 
were reviewed and discussed by the Planning Commission at their meeting on April 1, 2014.  
Community Development Department staff met with Rudy Zuniga after the October 18, 2013 
visit, and Rudy Zuniga indicated at that time that they were trying to sell the business and 
would be tightening their policies on alcohol sales and entertainment at the business.  
However, no changes in operation were noted on the Police visit on March 14, 2014.  It was 
evident to staff and the Planning Commission that there was a lack of effort to comply with 
Special Use Permit Conditions and ABC law. 
 
Recommended Finding:  Staff presented the Planning Commission with information on the 
laxity of requiring proper identification before serving alcohol, and the service of buckets of 
beer to tables that included minors and customers that were over 21.  The Planning 
Commission took the management of the business into consideration at their meeting, and did 
not make their decision in error. 
 
CONCLUSION/ RECOMMENDATION: 
The business owner, Mr. Rodolfo Zuniga, was given the opportunity to modify the 
management of his business between Police visits in October, 2013 and March, 2014.  Mr. 



Page 5 of 5 

 
Suzi Merriam  5/28/2014 12:23:52 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Staff Report.doc 

 

Zuniga was not able to effectively manage the sale of beer and wine at the restaurant, in 
violation of his ABC license as well as the Special Use Permit Conditions of Approval.  
 
Staff met with both Rodolfo Zuniga and his son prior to the Planning Commission hearing in 
April, 2014, and they were unwilling to accept responsibility for the sale of alcohol to minors 
and the presence of distilled spirits at the business.   
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the staff report and all pertinent documentation related to 
the Special Use Permit at their April 1, 2014 hearing, and voted to revoke the Special Use 
Permit based on that documentation.  Rudy Zuniga’s letter did not outline an instance in which 
the Planning Commission’s denial was made erroneously. Staff recommends that the City 
Council adopt a Resolution upholding the Planning Commission’s denial of Special Use Permit 
(PP2011-259), based on the attached findings. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The revocation of the Special Use Permit follows the Strategic Plan policy of creating a safe 
and healthy community as well as the Plan for effective ABC licensing and regulation. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Upholding the Planning Commission’s revocation of Special Use Permit (PP2011-259) will not 
have a financial impact on the City.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may find that the Planning Commission’s revocation of Special Use Permit 
(PP2011-259) was made in error. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Restaurant floor plan 
2. Appeal from Rudy Zuniga, Jr. 
3. Planning Commission Staff Report from April 2, 2014 
4. Excerpt of Minutes from April 1, 2014 Planning Commission Hearing 
5. Photos from October 18, 2013 Bar Check 
6. Photos from March 14, 2014 Bar Check 

 
cc: City Attorney 



Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



Attachment 2
Page 1 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 2 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 3 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 4 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 5 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 6 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 7 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 8 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 9 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 10 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 11 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 12 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 13 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 14 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 15 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 16 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 17 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 18 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 19 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 20 of 21



Attachment 2
Page 21 of 21



Attachment 3
Page 1 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 2 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 3 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 4 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 5 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 6 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 7 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 8 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 9 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 10 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 11 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 12 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 13 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 14 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 15 of 16



Attachment 3
Page 16 of 16



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Attachments\Attachment 4 April 1 minutes.doc 

1 

 
EXCERPT OF M I N U T E S  

FOR THE APRIL 1, 2014 CITY OF WATSONVILLE PLANNING COMMISSON MEETING 
 

  
5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS  

  

5.1 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER REVIEW AND REVOCATION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT (PP2011-259), FOR THE SALE OF BEER AND 
WINE (TYPE 41 LICENSE) IN CONJUNCTION WITH A RESTAURANT (POPO’S), AT 
1047 FREEDOM BOULEVARD (APN: 016-121-09), BASED ON CONTINUED 
NONCOMPLIANCE WITH THE PERMIT’S CONDITIONS. 

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Senior Planner Suzi Merriam.  She explained the 
process to modify or revoke an Administrative Use Permit based on public 
nuisance.  She spoke about the compliance checks performed by the Police 
Department on October 18, 2013 and March 14, 2014.   
 
Commissioner Danna asked besides the two compliance checks performed by 
the Police Department have there have been a lot of calls for service for this 
establishment.   
 
Lt. Michael McKlinley replied recently the Police Department is limited on patrol 
officers and have not received that many calls for service.  The issues are mainly 
the underage drinking and the presence of gang members.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked how many other instances regarding sales of 
alcohol to minors have been discovered in the City since the grant from ABC 
became effective in July 2013. 
 
Lt. McKinley replied 16 employees out of 14 establishments have been cited. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if Popo’s has conducted the LEAD training. 
 
Lt. McKinley replied Mr. Zuniga was at the October 2013 training. 
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked if the 14 establishments that were cited were 
restaurants. 
 
Lt. McKinley replied that it was a mixture of both restaurants and convenience 
stores. 
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated that other problematic establishments will be coming 
to the Planning Commission in the future. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if the owner decides to sell the business, will the 
new owner have to wait a year before applying for a Special Use Permit. 
 
Ms. Merriam replied new owner will be able to apply any time. 

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

Attachment 4
Page 1 of 3



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Attachments\Attachment 4 April 1 minutes.doc 

2 

 
Rodolfo Rodriquez Zuniga, applicant and owner, stated he has only been 
operating for one and half years and it took four months to open.  He explained 
that food is served first, then the alcohol.  After the customers finish eating the 
plates are removed for hygiene reasons. He feels that it is his bad luck or it is a 
trap by another restaurant that is jealous because the same gang members were 
present both times Lt. McKinley came by.  He acknowledged that it is his 
responsibility to check for ID.  If his alcohol license is revoked, he will be forced 
to close his business. 
 
Commissioner Danna stated one of the minors that were questioned by the 
Police stated he had been there multiple times and was never carded. He asked 
Mr. Zuniga if they are actually asking for ID. 
 
Mr. Zuniga replied that they ask for ID all the time.  It is a requirement. 

 
c) Public Hearing 

 
Chairperson Corley opened the Public Hearing 
 
Rudy Zuniga, son of Rodolfo Zuniga, stated the restaurant is a family 
establishment and lots of kids are present.  He stated they cannot control the 
type of patrons that come in but they do as much as we can.  Patrons felt 
harassed when the Police came by on October 18, 2013. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked Rudy Zuniga if he knew he needed an 
Entertainment Permit for the karoke. 
 
He replied that he has been to the City to get a permit for the karaoke when 
needed. 
 
Hearing no further public comments, Chairperson Corley closed the Public 
Hearing. 

 
d) Commission Discussion 

 
Commissioner Danna asked how does a restaurant owner distinguished when to 
stop serving an extra beer to patrons after they have finished their meal and how 
do they monitor a bucket of beers at a table with minors. 
 
Ms. Merriam’s response to the first questions is that it is up to the discretion of 
the management.  The bigger issue is that minors are not being carded and there 
were a lot of minors drinking without food and without no family or parents 
present at Popos.  Her response to the second question is if it was her restaurant 
she would only serve one beer at a time and would not put out a bucket of beer. 
Under ABC law, it is the owner’s responsibility. 
 

e) Motion: 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Castillo, seconded by Commissioner Jenkins, 
and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving the Revocation 
of Administrative Use Permit (PP2011-259):  

 

Attachment 4
Page 2 of 3



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\1047 Freedom\Attachments\Attachment 4 April 1 minutes.doc 

3 

AYES:  COMMISSIONERS: Castillo, Danna, Jenkins, Sarmiento,  
                                                           Gomez-Contreras, Corley  
NOES:  COMMISSIONERS: None 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:   Gonzalez 
 

Mr. Boyle stated the applicant can appeal the Planning Commission’s decision to the 
City Council.  The appeal period is 14 days from the meeting date and the appeal is filed 
with the City Clerk. The applicant can continue to operate until the appeal is heard by the 
City Council.  
 
Secretary Tavantzis asked City Interpreter Sofia Vazquez-Quintero to interpret in 
Spanish to Mr. Rodolfo Zuniga what Mr. Boyle stated about the appeal process.  

  

  
 
 
 

 
 

Attachment 4
Page 3 of 3



Photographic Evidence of Violations 
Popo’s 

October 18, 2013 

 

  

 

Parole violation arrest 

Distilled in the bar area of restaurant 

Attachment 5
Page 1 of 3



Photographic Evidence of Violations 
Popo’s 

October 18, 2013 

 

 

 

Minor cited for underage drinking 

Buckets of beer at most tables, unsupervised 

Attachment 5
Page 2 of 3



Photographic Evidence of Violations 
Popo’s 

October 18, 2013 

 

 

 
 

  

  

 

Table directly inside the door with 2 minors and alcohol, no food 

The owner, Mr. Zuniga, at left, directly across from the table with minors 

Attachment 5
Page 3 of 3



 

Evidence Photos 3.14.14m:\cdd\pc packet\pcpkt 2014\04-01-14\1047 freedom\evidence photos 3.14.14.docx 

Evidence Photos from 
WPD Case #14W-01118-297-01 

Popo’s Compliance Check 
March 14, 2014, approximately 9:00 p.m. 

 

 
Table where minor was sitting, having been served a chavela.   

 

 

Attachment 6
Page 1 of 2



 

Evidence Photos 3.14.14m:\cdd\pc packet\pcpkt 2014\04-01-14\1047 freedom\evidence photos 3.14.14.docx 

 

20 year old cited for underage drinking 

 

Attachment 6
Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE DENYING AN APPEAL FILED BY RUDY ZUÑIGA, JR., 
AND UPHOLDING THE REVOCATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE USE 
PERMIT (PP2011-259) PROHIBITING THE SALE OF BEER AND WINE 
IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE RESTAURANT FOR EL POPO MEXICAN 
RESTAURANT  LOCATED AT 1047 FREEDOM BOULEVARD  
(APN: 016-121-09) FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR  

WHEREAS, on or about November 2, 2011, an Administrative Use Permit 

(PP2011-259) was issued to Rodolfo Zuñiga, owner, to operate a restaurant with beer 

and wine sales at El Popo Mexican Restaurant located at 1047 Freedom Boulevard, 

Watsonville; and 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2014, the Planning Commission conducted a public 

hearing for Review and Revocation of Administrative Use Permit (PP2011-259) based on 

non-compliance of Conditions of Administrative Use Permit; and 

WHEREAS, section 14-14.022 of the Watsonville Municipal Code allows for the 

Planning Commission to terminate or modify the conditions of the Administrative Use 

Permit for any use that has been determined to be unlawful and a public nuisance; and 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2014, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 

7-14 (PC) revoking the Administrative Use Permit for the sale of beer and wine in 

conjunction with a restaurant for El Popo Mexican Restaurant located at 1047 Freedom 

Boulevard for a one (1) year period; and 

WHEREAS, section 14-10.1100 allows applicant to file an appeal when they 

believe that the action taken by an official or decision making body of the City (Planning 

Commission) was made in error; and 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Appeal El Popo Restaurant.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 5:19:31 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1f

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, on April 15, 2014, Rudy Zuñiga, Jr., son of the owner, appealed the 

Planning Commission’s decision to revoke the Administrative Use Permit to the City 

Council; and  

WHEREAS, an appeal hearing was scheduled on June 10, 2014, before the City 

Council, which was the earliest possible hearing in accordance with Section 14-10.1104 

of the Watsonville Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriate public noticing procedures have been followed and a 

public hearing was held according to section 14-10.1000 of the Zoning Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council considered all written and verbal evidence regarding 

the appeal of revocation at the appeal hearing and has made Findings, attached hereto 

and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A,” to deny the appeal and revoke Administrative 

Use Permit (PP2011-259) to discontinue the sale of alcohol as a permitted use at El 

Popo Mexican Restaurant located at 1047 Freedom Boulevard, Watsonville, for a one (1) 

year period. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Good cause appearing, the City Council of the City of Watsonville does hereby 

deny the appeal and uphold the revocation of Administrative Use Permit (PP2011-259) 

for the sale of beer and wine as a permitted use at El Popo Mexican Restaurant located 

at 1047 Freedom Boulevard, Watsonville, due to continued non-compliance of the permit 

conditions and specifically finds that the Planning Commission’s action of April 1, 2014, 

was not taken in error and is supported by the evidence. 

 
******************************************* 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Appeal El Popo Restaurant.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 5:19:31 PM 

2 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL 
                 Application No.  PP2011-259 
                 APN: 016-121-09 
       Applicant: Rodolfo Zuniga 
                 Hearing Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
APPEAL FINDINGS (Section 14-10.1106) 
 
1.  In order for an official action to be overturned by an appeal, the acting body must find: 

that the action taken by the official or advisory body was taken erroneously and was 
inconsistent with the intent of the zoning district regulations that regulate the proposed 
action. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
 
The Planning Commission weighed the following evidence when the Resolution was 
passed revoking Special Use Permit (PP2011-259): 
 

1. Lack of food service, not a bona-fide eating place 
2. Service of alcohol to minors 
3. Possession of distilled spirits on the premises 

 
In his appeal, Mr. Rudy Zuniga, Jr. did not present compelling information outlining how 
the Planning Commission took erroneous action in passing a resolution revoking 
Special Use Permit (PP2011-259).   
 
1.  No Disciplinary History 
 
Staff Response:  The Watsonville Police Department visited the restaurant with officers 
from the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control on October 18, 2013.  During the 
inspection, the owner of the business was cited for possession of distilled spirits and 
purchasing beer for the restaurant from a retail location (ABC Case #13-23-214).  Two 
minors were cited for underage drinking at the restaurant on the same evening, in full 
view of the restaurant owner (WPD Case #13W-05040 and #13W-05046).  During that 
same visit, a man was arrested on a parole violation in the restaurant (WPD Case 
#13W-05047).   
 
In order to prevent the business from being closed for a period of time by ABC, the 
business owner paid a fine for the citation that was issued on October 18th.   
 
After the inspection, the owner’s son, Rudy Zuniga, met with City staff to discuss the 
future of the business, and he indicated that the family was trying to sell the business.  
To give the owner time to find a buyer and sell the business, staff held off on scheduling 
the project for review by the Planning Commission.   
 
After the second inspection on March 14, 2014, it was evident that the business 
q:\council\2014\061014\popo's appeal exhibit a.docx    EXHBIT A   
         Page 1 of 3 
 



remained a nuisance and therefore staff scheduled review of the Use Permit by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
The business owner and his son were aware of the City and ABC’s concern with the 
operation of the business, and the public hearing at the Planning Commission was in 
response to citations generated at the business, while the owner was present. 
 
Finding: The Planning Commission reviewed all pertinent information regarding 
interaction with the business owner and citations issued for the business, and 
determined that the business was continually operating in violation of both the Use 
Permit Conditions of Approval and ABC regulations.    This decision was not made by 
the Planning Commission in error. 
 
2.  Patrons at Fault Does not Equate to Business at Fault 
Staff Response:  As noted previously, the business owner was cited by ABC for 
violations that occurred on October 18, 2013.  The ABC officer and Watsonville Police 
both talked to the business owner on October 18 and went over the violations found on 
the premises, including the possession of distilled spirits on the premises. 
Further, it is the business owner’s responsibility to ask for identification from patrons, 
and to effectively manage the service and distribution of alcohol within their business.  
These issues were discussed at length at the Planning Commission hearing, and the 
Planning Commission determined that violations could have been prevented had the 
business owner effectively managed the service of alcohol at Popo’s.  
Finding:  The Planning Commission reviewed the evidence provided through police 
reports and photographic evidence from the two visits to the restaurant.  The Planning 
Commission discussed the role of management in the sales and service of alcohol, and 
did not make their determination in error when making the finding that the business had 
become a nuisance in the continued sale of alcohol to minors, and the presence of 
distilled spirits on the premises. 
 
 
3.  Business Improvements to Address These Issues Proactively 
Staff Response: Mr. Zuniga is the sole owner of the ABC license and is the only name 
on the Special Use Permit for beer and wine sales at Popo’s, and he remains 
responsible for the management of the business.  It is evident that the problems with 
service of alcohol to minors at the restaurant stem from not carding patrons, and the 
service of buckets of beer to tables that include a mix of minors and those over 21.   
These problems were witnessed by the Police Department on two separate occasions, 
and were reviewed and discussed by the Planning Commission at their meeting on April 
1, 2014.  Community Development Department staff met with Rudy Zuniga after the 
October 18, 2013 visit, and Rudy Zuniga indicated at that time that they were trying to 
sell the business and would be tightening their policies on alcohol sales and 
entertainment at the business.  However, no changes in operation were noted on the 
q:\council\2014\061014\popo's appeal exhibit a.docx    EXHBIT A   
         Page 2 of 3 
 



Police visit on March 14, 2014.  It was evident to staff and the Planning Commission 
that there was a lack of effort to comply with Special Use Permit Conditions and ABC 
law. 
Finding:  Staff presented the Planning Commission with information on the laxity of 
requiring proper identification before serving alcohol, and the service of buckets of beer 
to tables that included minors and customers that were over 21.  The Planning 
Commission took the management of the business into consideration at their meeting, 
and did not make their decision in error. 
 
 
 
 
            

q:\council\2014\061014\popo's appeal exhibit a.docx    EXHBIT A   
         Page 3 of 3 
 



Page 1 of 6
Suzi Merriam 6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 2, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Suzi Merriam, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Planned Development, Special Use Permit with Design Review 
and Environmental Review (PP2013-243), to construct 20 
affordable apartment units at 56 Atkinson Lane (APN:  019-226-
42) 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council: 

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Notice of Determination that the EIR Addendum
complies with CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) for Environmental Review of
the project.

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Special Use Permit with Design Review for the
construction of 20 affordable units on the City site.

 Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding between the City of Watsonville, County of Santa Cruz, and Mid-
Peninsula Housing.

 Introduce an Ordinance designating the property a PD (Planned Development).

PROCEDURE: 
Proposal: The 20-unit City project is part of a larger, 2.6 acre, 46-unit project being proposed in 
both County and City jurisdictions.  Twenty units are proposed on the 1.3-acre City portion, 
and 26 units are proposed on the adjacent 1.3 acre County portion. 

Site and Vicinity: The 1.3-acre City site is located on Atkinson Lane, and borders 
unincorporated County property at the rear.  At this section of Atkinson Lane there is a mix of 
uses, including adjacent church, multi-family and single-family residential units.   

CITY COUNCIL 6.2a

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

Background: The City of Watsonville and County of Santa Cruz entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding in 2008 for the joint design and environmental review of a 65-acre Atkinson 
Lane Specific Plan Area, which is located mostly outside the City limits but within the City’s 
Sphere of Influence and voter-approved Measure U boundary. The County undertook a 
Planned Unit Development to rezone two parcels from agricultural use to High Density 
Residential Zoning to meet their affordable housing needs. 
 
The Specific Plan included up to 450 residential units, with street layouts, park, and open 
space design.  The County was responsible for the preparation and adoption of the EIR for the 
project, which was approved by the Board of Supervisors in 2009.   
 
After adoption, the Santa Cruz County Farm Bureau filed a petition for a Writ of Mandate 
against the County, City, and others with regard to certification of the EIR.  A Settlement 
Agreement was reached in 2011 between the Farm Bureau and the County; and both the City 
and County agreed that the EIR would not be used in connection with any action or proposal to 
develop or annex any of the Specific Plan Area not included within the County Entitlements, 
and the City agreed that nothing in the County Approvals included the approval of the Specific 
Plan.  
 
The Settlement Agreement allowed development of 2 City parcels under the EIR, including 56 
and 78 Atkinson Lane.  This project is proposed to be constructed on 56 Atkinson Lane. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding: 
The County, City, and Mid-Pen have drafted a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to 
address services and financing to the entire 46-unit project site.  The MOU is included as part 
of the Resolutions for the project.  
 
Because this project is located in two regulatory jurisdictions (the City and the County), a 
Memorandum of Understanding has been drafted to outline the responsibilities of each party 
both during construction and after the project has been built. 
 
The following items have been addressed in the MOU: 

 Payment of impact fees to the City and County 
o The County of Santa Cruz will collect certain traffic impact fees and childcare 

impact fees for the 26 units located in the County. 
o Impact fees for sewer, water service, groundwater, storm drainage, impervious 

area, public facilities, fire impact and underground utilities will be paid to the City 
of Watsonville for all 46 units. 

 Review of building permits 
o The City and County have agreed that the County of Santa Cruz will be 

responsible for reviewing the building permit application and conducting 
inspections for the entire 46-unit project. 

 Review for compliance with fire requirements 
o The County and City have agreed to review the entire 46-unit project for 

compliance with the Fire Code.  Inspections shall be done in coordination with 
both agencies for the entire project site. 



Page 3 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

 

PROCEDURE 

The subject property is currently zoned R-1. The 2005 General Plan designation for the 
property is High Density Residential with the approval of a Specific Plan for the Atkinson Lane 
area.  
 
In order to be consistent with the residential density outlined in the 2005 General Plan for the 
property, the applicant is requesting approval of a Planned Development, which is consistent 
with the Specific Plan requirement outlined in the 2005 General Plan. 
 
According to Section 14-16.2500 of the Watsonville Municipal Code (WMC), Planned 
Development District, a Planned Development may be approved for parcels that are one acre 
or larger in order to foster development plans for eligible lands which serve public objectives 
more fully than development plans permitted under conventional zoning regulations.  
 
According to Section 14-16.2505 of the WMC, the generalized development or Master Plan for 
the requested Planned Development must be considered at a public hearing by the Planning 
Commission which was considered on May 6, 2014. A positive recommendation for a Planned 
Development requires five (5) affirmative votes of the City Council.   The Planned 
Development regulations allow a wide variety of modifications to the underlying zoning district 
regulations as long as a public benefit is demonstrated that outweighs any potential impacts to 
the neighborhood.   
 
WMC Section 14.16.2509 requires approval of a Special Use Permit for any specific 
development plan to be constructed within a Planned Development area, which requires the 
submittal of detailed design drawings for the project. 
 
Per Section 14-12.400 of the Watsonville Municipal Code, commercial, industrial, and multi-
family residential construction requires approval of a Design Review Permit process 
acceptable to the Zoning Administrator.  As proposed, the Special Use Permit and Design 
Review Permit are being processed concurrently with the Planned Development application. 
 
Mid-Peninsula Housing conducted a neighborhood workshop on August, 29, 2013 to introduce 
the project to interested neighbors in the Atkinson Lane area.  The workshop was held at the 
Portuguese Hall at the end of Atkinson Lane.  It was reported that there was relatively light 
attendance, and Mid-Peninsula did not hear opposition from those that did attend.  The public 
hearing conducted on May 6, 2014 was also lightly attended by the public, with very little 
concern expressed by the public except that the project should comply with parking standards.  
 

 Police, Fire and solid waste service to the project
o The City, County, and Mid-Pen have agreed that the City of Watsonville will

provide Police, Fire, Solid Waste, Parks and Recreation and other public services
to the entire 46-unit project. A  one-time  municipal  services  mitigation  payment
totaling  $830,840  shall  be made to the City of Watsonville by Mid Pen to offset
the cost of city services for the project.



Page 4 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

The City has requested that the County Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors take 
action on the project prior to hearings by the City Planning Commission and City Council.  The 
Project was heard by the County Planning Commission on April 23, 2014, and was approved 
by the Board of Supervisors on May 20, 2014. 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT REVIEW (CEQA): The project was 
reviewed as part of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the entire Atkinson Lane Specific 
Plan area, which included the construction of up to 450 housing units on a larger 65-acre site.  
The EIR was certified by the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors on June 9, 2009, and 
subsequently challenged by the Santa Cruz County Farm Bureau. 
 
A Settlement Agreement  (see Attachment 2) was reached between the County, City, and 
Farm Bureau in 2011 that allowed the use of the EIR for the County Entitlements Area as well 
as the 1.3 acre parcel (APN: 019-226-42) located in the City limits, for the construction of 
affordable housing.  As Lead Agency for the EIR, the terms of the Settlement Agreement 
satisfy compliance with CEQA process for the City parcel under the EIR. 
 
Because the revised project has a much smaller scope than the Specific Plan Area and 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) that were reviewed under the original EIR in 2009, the 
County has developed an EIR Addendum to address the potential impacts and mitigations 
relating to the smaller, 46-unit project. 
 
The EIR Addendum indicates that the proposed project would not result in any new impacts 
not previously disclosed in the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Atkinson Lane 
Specific Plan and PUD Project that would result in a substantial increase in the magnitude of 
any significant environmental impacts previously identified in the EIR.  
 
The EIR Addendum identified required mitigations for wetland species that may be found in the 
pond adjacent to the County parcel, which include the California Red Legged Frog and the 
Western Pond Turtle.   
 
The project requires an evaluation of the existing soil condition on both properties to determine 
the appropriate foundation system for the housing units, and to determine that the soil is not 
contaminated.   
 

 
The project requires the payment of traffic impact fees to both the County and the City to offset 
impacts to several intersections throughout the City and South County.   
 
The EIR Addendum is attached to resolution, and a Notice of Determination must be approved 
by the City in compliance with CEQA. 
 
 
 

The project requires the payment of impact fees to both the County and the City, as outlined in
the Conditions of Approval for the project.  These impact fees include a one-time municipal
services mitigation payment to the City of Watsonville to offset the cost of providing Police,
Fire, Solid Waste, Parks and Recreation and other public services to the entire 46-unit project.



Page 5 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

REPORT FROM PLANNING COMMISSION: 
The project was heard by the Planning Commission on May 6, 2014.  At the hearing, the 
property owners provided a presentation and answered questions from the Planning 
Commission.  The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval to the 
City Council for the Planned Development (Resolution 11-14), Special Use Permit, Design 
Review, and Environmental Review (Resolution 12-14) for the construction of 20 apartment 
units. 
 
CONCLUSION/ RECOMMENDATION: 
The proposed project will provide 20 affordable housing units at the eastern portion of the City, 
with amenities for residents to include a computer room, community room, and play area.  The 
site has been designed with deference to neighboring properties, and provides all required off-
street parking.   
 
Potential project impacts have been reviewed for compliance with CEQA and proposed 
impacts have been mitigated to a less than significant level.  The project applicants shall be 
required to pay appropriate impact fees to the County and City, and shall pay a one-time 
municipal services mitigation fee to the City for service to the project site. 
 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council: 
 

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Notice of Determination that the EIR Addendum 
complies with CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) for Environmental Review of 
the project. 

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Special Use Permit with Design Review for the 
construction of 20 affordable units on the City site.  

 Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Watsonville, County of Santa Cruz, and Mid-
Peninsula Housing. 

 Introduce an Ordinance designating the property a PD (Planned Development). 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The City has been furthering the goals of the Strategic Plan by working with the County of 
Santa Cruz and Mid-Peninsula Housing for the creation of affordable housing across agency 
boundaries, with the provision of impact fees to offset the cost to provide services to the 
project site by Watsonville Police and Fire.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The financial impacts of providing City services to the project site have been mitigated through 
the provision of a one-time municipal services mitigation fee of $830,840 to be paid to the City 
at time of building permit issuance.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may continue or deny the application 
 
 



Page 6 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Site and Vicinity Map 
2. Settlement Agreement between County of Santa Cruz, City of Watsonville and Farm 

Bureau 
3. Planning Commission Staff Report from May 6, 2014 
4. Planning Commission Resolutions 
5. Project Plans 

 
 
cc: City Attorney 



30
34

38

562

7

45 500

504
502

508
506 602

11

27

6056

105

1312126 121
1292140

4440
32282464

66

29

107A

2132
2120

115109

4

7883
84

66 7372
100

86

6160

62
63

65

5859

205
203

302

501

503
505

1060-
1052

81
85

89

1355

148
6

148
4

150
2

1521
1537

6359
51

40

152
0

25

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

1651120

100
120 1165

1155
1145
1125
1115175

11001110
11301140

105
115

125
135

145

755525
203

202
203209

208
202

260

2201064
1100
221

241
261

1105112011301150
112511451165

1175
2602402201170

201
221

241
261

1201

150
1

18

141822263034
25

21

1487

1485
1481

29
25

21
17

147
7

149
6

150
4

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75

1480

1478

4844

1175
1165

1105

11501160
120012101220

215 209

214
208

215
214

1061

1065
260240

56

4 6 8

82 798081

1055
254218145

6146
9

146
7

145
937

33
1049 1060-

1052

37
50

36 B

85

49

19
78

54
A    B

40 31

363534

80

70

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

43
44

87
88

89

90
91

92
93

99
98

9697
9495

5657

67
69

70
71

64

68
74

75
76

77 464748
49

50

5 6
7

8
9 10

11
12

1413

171615

18
19

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17

7

135

3

14

10

27

75

19
28

23

33 A

25

24
20

20-74
147

1
A A

A

AB A

A

A

107

A-C
A-D

B
C

124

A

2 46 81012

1 3 5

9111514

ATKINSON LN

BLA
NCA LN

FREEDOM BL

GARDNER AV

JASMINE LN

PALOMA WY

VIC RUGH LN

NATALIE LN

SUNBIRD DR

ARTHUR RD

KADDERLY LN

BREWINGTON AV
Site and Vicinity Map

PROJECT: PP2013-243
APPLICANT: MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc.
APN#s: 019-226-42
LOCATION OF PROJECT: 56 Atkinson Ln

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 4/17/2014 (CODD1421).

This Document is a graphic representation only of best available sources.
The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

30
34

38

562

7

45 500

504
502

508
506 602

11

27

6056

105

1312126 121
1292140

4440
32282464

66

29

107A

2132
2120

115109

4

7883
84

66 7372
100

86

6160

62
63

65

5859

205
203

302

501

503
505

1060-
1052

81
85

89

1355

148
6

148
4

150
2

1521
1537

6359
51

40

152
0

25

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

1651120

100
120 1165

1155
1145
1125
1115175

11001110
11301140

105
115

125
135

145

755525
203

202
203209

208
202

260

2201064
1100
221

241
261

1105112011301150
112511451165

1175
2602402201170

201
221

241
261

1201

150
1

18

141822263034
25

21

1487

1485
1481

29
25

21
17

147
7

149
6

150
4

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75

1480

1478

4844

1175
1165

1105

11501160
120012101220

215 209

214
208

215
214

1061

1065
260240

56

4 6 8

82 798081

1055
254218145

6146
9

146
7

145
937

33
1049 1060-

1052

37
50

36 B

85

49

19
78

54
A    B

40 31

363534

80

70

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

43
44

87
88

89

90
91

92
93

99
98

9697
9495

5657

67
69

70
71

64

68
74

75
76

77 464748
49

50

5 6
7

8
9 10

11
12

1413

171615

18
19

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17

7

135

3

14

10

27

75

19
28

23

33 A

25

24
20

20-74
147

1
A A

A

AB A

A

A

107

A-C
A-D

B
C

124

A

2 46 81012

1 3 5

9111514

ATKINSON LN

BLA
NCA LN

FREEDOM BL

GARDNER AV

JASMINE LN

PALOMA WY

VIC RUGH LN

NATALIE LN

SUNBIRD DR

ARTHUR RD

KADDERLY LN

BREWINGTON AV

©

Legend
Street
Watsonville City Limit

Parcel
Project Site

300' Buffer Zone

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



Attachment 2
Page 1 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 2 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 3 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 4 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 5 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 6 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 7 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 8 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 9 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 10 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 11 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 12 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 13 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 14 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 15 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 16 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 17 of 17



Attachment 3
Page 1 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 2 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 3 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 4 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 5 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 6 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 7 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 8 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 9 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 10 of 10



Attachment 4
Page 1 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 2 of 23



30
34

38

562

7

6056

105
2126 121
1292140

107A

2132

115109

78

66 7372

81
85

89

148
6

148
4

1521
153

7

6359
51

40

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

100
120 1165

1155
1145
11251140

105
115

125
135

145

202
203209

208
202 1170

201
221

148
5

148
1

147
7

149
6

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75
1480

1478

4844
1175
1165

11501160
120012101220

214
208

215
214

56

37
50

49

54
A    B

40 31

34

80

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

4374

1413

171615

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17
14

10

27

75

19
28

33 A

25

24
20

A A

A

AB A

A

107

A-C

124

A

246 81012

1 3 5

9111514

City of 
Watsonville

Proposed PD
Overlay

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 4/16/2014 (CODD1420).

This Document is a graphic representation using the best currently available 
sources. The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

Parcel
Watsonville City Limit
North Business Park Overlay District*
Retail Overlay District*
PD: Planned Development

R-1P: Planned Single Family Residential
R-1: Single Family Residential-Low Density
RM-2: Multiple Residential-Medium Density
RM-3: Multiple Residential-High Density
CC: Central Commercial
CCA: Central Commercial Core Area
CN: Neighborhood Commercial
CNS: Neighborhood Shopping Center
CO: Office
CT: Thoroughfare Commercial
CV: Visitor Commercial
IG: General Industrial
IP: Industrial Park
N: Institutional
PF: Public Facilities
EM-OS: Environmental Mgnt. Open Space-Private Land
CZ-A: Coastal Zone-A
CZ-B: Coastal Zone-B
CZ-C: Coastal Zone-C
CZ-D: Landfill
CZ-E: Coastal Zone-E

50 0 50 100 150 200

Feet

1 inch = 200 feet µ
* See Manabe-Ow Specific Plan

Attachment 4
Page 3 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 4 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 5 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 6 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 7 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 8 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 9 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 10 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 11 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 12 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 13 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 14 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 15 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 16 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 17 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 18 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 19 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 20 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 21 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 22 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 23 of 23



Attachment 5
Page 1 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 2 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 3 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 4 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 5 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 6 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 7 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 8 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 9 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 10 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 11 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 12 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 13 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 14 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 15 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 16 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 17 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 18 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 19 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 20 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 21 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 22 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 23 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 24 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 25 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 26 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 27 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 28 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 29 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 30 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 31 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 32 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 33 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 34 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 35 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 36 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 37 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 38 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 39 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 40 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 41 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 42 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 43 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 44 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 45 of 45



Page 1 of 2 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 AtkinsonLoan\56 Atkinson Loan staff report.doc\KB\dm\5/29/2014 12:45 PM 

City of Watsonville 
Redevelopment and Housing 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: May 29, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Keith Boyle, Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Approval of a funding commitment in the amount of $1,000,000 
to Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., for the construction of 20 
units of affordable rental housing at 56 Atkinson Lane (APN:  
019-226-42) 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:  
That the City Council adopt a resolution approving a funding commitment and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute loan documents in the amount of $1,000,000 
with Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc.(Mid-Pen) for the construction of 20 affordable 
apartment units. 

DISCUSSION:  
Background: The City’s Inclusionary Housing fee levies an impact fee on all market rate 
housing development, which either requires a specified number of below market 
housing units be created or the payment of the fee.  The fund collects those fees and 
uses them to create low income housing in the City.  Currently the fund has over 1.6 
million dollars. 

In the late 1960’s, Green Valley Apartments, a non-profit corporation formed by 
members of the Methodist and Presbyterian churches, constructed 200 units of family 
housing, 178 of which are affordable at 220 Ross Avenue known as “Sunny Meadows.”  
The project was funded in large part by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (“HUD”), and the affordability restrictions imposed by HUD would have 
expired in 2011.    In 2011 the City loaned Mid-Pen $2,000,000 from HOME funds and 
1.1 million from RDA funds to help rehabilitate the apartments and maintain their 
affordability for another 55 years.   Due to good project management and construction 
practices, Mid-Pen has approximately $740,000 left from the HOME funds of the project 
that can be paid back to the City’s affordable housing fund by April of 2015. 

CITY COUNCIL 6.2a

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 AtkinsonLoan\56 Atkinson Loan staff report.doc\KB\dm\5/29/2014 12:45 PM 

 

Currently Mid-Pen is working on the 46 unit Pippin Lane apartment project that is 
located in the City and the County.  This project will provide low income rental 
apartments for City and County residents with an emphasis on workforce housing.   The 
City has been negotiating an agreement with Mid-Pen to loan them the approximately 
$1,000,000 left over from the Sunny Meadows project to help construct the project.  
This represents a subsidy of approximately $22,000 per unit. 
 
Since a substantial component of the project is within the County of Santa Cruz, Mid -
Pen is getting their primary housing subsidies from the County’s housing fund.   The 
proposed City loan will help subsidize the construction and provide long term financing.  
Because of the timeline in the submission of the Low Income Housing Tax Credits 
(LIHTC) application, no loan documents have been prepared, but the terms would be 
similar to the previous loan documents that were executed between the City and MP 
Sunny Meadows, LLC. 
 
Staff, therefore, recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to 
execute loan documents subject to the approval of City Attorney. The loan resulting 
from the commitment would be contingent upon the approval of the LIHTC application. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  
Maintaining affordable housing within the City is a component of numerous City goals, 
including being able to implement economic development measures.  The 
recommended action is consistent with the City General Plan.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
Funding for the project would come from the City’s Inclusionary Housing fund and will 
be paid back over time, with approximately $740,000 coming back by April of 2015.  
The City anticipates that it will be third position on the loan so the payback timeline will 
be extended over a period of time for the remainder of the loan. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The Council could choose not to make the loan, or to modify the proposed amount or 
terms of the loan. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Loan Request Letter 
 
cc: City Attorney 
  
 
 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
“Opportunity through diversity; unity through cooperation” 

 
 

 
250 Main Street   Watsonville  California  95076   (831) 768-3050   

www.ci.watsonville.ca.us 

M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 AtkinsonLoan\Attachment 1 letter.docx 

 

June 11, 2014 

 

Ms. Laura A. Whittall-Scherfee, Deputy Director 

State of California Department of Housing and Community Development 

HOME Program 

2020 West El Camino Avenue, 5th Floor 

Sacramento, CA  95833 

 

RE: Pippin Apartments 

 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville, CA  95076 

 APNs:  019-226-42 and 048-211-25 

 

Dear Ms. Whittall-Scherfee: 

 

The City of Watsonville has committed $1,000,000.00 in construction to permanent financing to 

Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc. for the development of the 46-unit Pippin Apartments located at 56 

Atkinson Lane in Watsonville.  The loan has a 55-year term with 3% simple interest, deferred with 

residual receipts. 

 

All underwriting assumptions have been approved, including but not limited to the purchase 

price of the property, disposition of reserves, scope of work, operating costs, proposed rents, 

availability of subsidies and proposed annual reserve deposits. 

 

If you have further questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (831) 768-3050. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

  

 

Marcela Tavantzis 

Assistant City Manager/Community Development Director 

 

 

 

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1

http://www.ci.watsonville.ca.us/


RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING THE NOTICE OF DETERMINATION 
INDICATING THAT THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
ADDENDUM COMPLIES WITH CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL 
QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF TWENTY AFFORDABLE APARTMENT UNITS 
LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON LANE, WATSONVILLE (APN: 019-226-42) 

WHEREAS, in 2007, the site located on Atkinson Lane was part of the Atkinson 

Lane Specific Plan and Planned Unit Development undertaken as a joint project between 

the City of Watsonville and the County of Santa Cruz; and 

WHEREAS, the project was reviewed as part of an Environmental Impact Report 

(EIR) for the entire Atkinson Lane Specific Plan area which included the construction of 

up to 450 residential units on a larger 65-acre site; and 

WHEREAS, on or about June 9, 2009, the County of Santa Cruz certified the 

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Atkinson Lane Specific Plan and Planned Unit 

Development for affordable housing; and 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Farm Bureau filed a petition for a Writ of 

Mandate against the County, City, and others with regard to certification of the EIR; and 

WHEREAS, a Settlement Agreement was reached in 2011 between the County, 

City and Farm Bureau, allowing the EIR to certify development on the County 

Entitlements Area and City parcel (APN: 019-226-42); and 

WHEREAS, because the revised project has a much smaller scope than the 

Specific Plan Area and Planned Unit Development that were reviewed under the original 

EIR in 2009, the County has developed an EIR Addendum to address the potential 

impacts and mitigations relating to the smaller, 46-unit project; and 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson NOD Reso.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 5:36:27 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.2d

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, the project requires the approval of a Notice of Determination 

indicating approval of the EIR Addendum in compliance with California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the project was reviewed by the Watsonville Planning Commission 

on May 6, 2014, at which time the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 12-14 

(PC) recommending that the City Council approve an Environmental Review Application 

with Environmental Impact Report Addendum to construct of twenty (20) affordable 

apartment units located at 56 Atkinson Lane; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriate public noticing procedures have been followed and a 

public hearing was held according to Section 14-10.900 of the Watsonville Municipal 

Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence 

regarding the approval of the Notice of Determination indicating that the EIR Addendum 

complies with CEQA for the Environmental Review of the project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 That the application for a Notice of Determination (PP2013-243) for compliance 

with CEQA is approved and attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”. 

 
***************************************** 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson NOD Reso.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 5:36:27 PM 

2 



 
 
 
Notice of Determination    Supplementary Document P 
 
 
To: _X Office of Planning And Research  From:   City of Watsonville Community Development Dept. 
 1400 Tenth Street, Room 121    250 Main Street 
 Sacramento, CA  95814     Watsonville, CA  95076 
           
       _X_Clerk of the Board, County of Santa Cruz  
 701 Ocean Street 
 Santa Cruz, CA  95060           
 
Subject: 
Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public Resources 
Code.   
Project Title 56 Atkinson Lane 
 
 
State Clearinghouse Number      
Lead Agency:  City of Watsonville, Watsonville CA  95076 - Santa Cruz County 
Contact Person:  Keith W. Boyle    Telephone/Extension:  (831) 768-3073    
       
     
Project Location 56 Atkinson Lane (APN: 019-226-42) 
 
Project Description: 
Planned Development, Special Use Permit with Design Review for the construction of 20 apartment units on a vacant 
parcel. 
 
 
This is to advise that the     City of Watsonville       has approved the above described project on 

 Lead Agency              X  Responsible Agency 
June 10, 2014 and has made the following determinations regarding the above described project: 
 
 1. The project [__will   X will not] have significant effect on the environment. 
 2.  An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 
 3.  A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 
 4.  Mitigations Measures [X were __ were not] made a condition of approval of the project. 
 5.  A statement of Overriding Considerations [___ was  X was not] adopted for this project. 
 6.  Findings [X were  ___ were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 
 
This is to certify that the (X EIR  ___Negative Declaration) with comments and responses of record is available to the 
General Public at: 
 
City of Watsonville - Community Development Department - 250 Main Street - Watsonville, CA  95076 
 
                   Zoning Administrator         June 10, 2014    
 
Signature (Public Agency)   Title      Date  
Date received for filing at OPR:__________     Revised October 1989

Exhibit "A" 

1 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

2 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

3 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

4 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

5 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

6 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

7 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

8 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

9 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

10 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

11 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

12 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

13 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

14 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

15 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

16 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

17 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

18 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

19 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

20 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

21 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

22 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

23 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

24 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

25 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

26 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

27 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

28 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

29 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

30 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

31 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

32 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

33 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

34 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

35 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

36 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

37 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

38 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

39 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

40 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

41 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

42 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

43 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

44 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

45 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

46 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

47 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

48 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

49 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

50 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

51 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

52 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

53 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

54 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

55 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

56 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

57 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

58 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

59 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

60 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

61 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

62 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

63 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

64 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

65 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

66 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

67 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

68 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

69 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

70 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

71 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

72 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

73 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

74 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

75 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

76 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

77 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

78 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

79 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

80 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

81 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

82 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

83 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

84 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

85 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

86 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

87 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

88 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

89 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

90 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

91 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

92 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

93 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

94 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

95 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

96 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

97 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

98 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

99 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

100 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

101 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

102 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

103 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

104 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

105 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

106 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

107 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

108 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

109 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

110 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

111 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

112 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

113 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

114 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

115 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

116 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

117 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

118 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

119 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

120 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

121 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

122 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

123 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

124 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

125 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

126 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

127 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

128 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

129 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

130 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

131 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

132 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

133 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

134 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

135 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

136 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

137 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

138 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

139 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

140 of 140



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING APPLICATION NO. PP2013-243 FOR A 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT WITH DESIGN REVIEW APPLICATION FILED 
BY MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC., TO CONSTRUCT TWENTY 
AFFORDABLE APARTMENT UNITS LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON LANE 
(APN: 019-226-42)  

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2013, Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., (“Applicant”) 

submitted Application No. PP2013-243 for a Special Use Permit with Design Review  to 

construct twenty (20) apartment units on a 1.3-acre vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson 

Lane, Watsonville (APN: 019-226-42); and 

WHEREAS, Section 14-16.2505 of the Watsonville Municipal Code requires 

approval of a Special Use Permit for any specific development plan to be constructed 

within a Planned Development area; and 

WHEREAS, per Section 14-12.400 of the Watsonville Municipal Code, 

commercial industrial, and multi-family residential construction requires approval of a 

Design Review Permit process acceptable to the Zoning Administrator; and 

WHEREAS, the Special Use Permit and Design Review Permit are being 

processed concurrently; and   

WHEREAS, the project was reviewed by the Planning Commission on May 6, 

2014, at which time the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 12-14 (PC) 

recommending that the City Council approve the Planned Development, Special Use 

Permit with Design Review for the construction of 20 affordable apartment units located 

at 56 Atkinson Lane; and 

WHEREAS, notice of time and place of the hearing to consider approval of 

Application No. PP2013-243 for a Special Use Permit with Design Review  was given at 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Reso.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 5:40:51 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1e

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



the time and in the manner where appropriate public noticing procedures have been 

followed and a public hearing was held according to Section 14-10.900 of the 

Watsonville Municipal Code; and   

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence 

regarding this application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the project will be consistent with the 

standards and General Development Plan and finds that the project provides additional 

public benefits than would not otherwise be provided by a standard development on the 

parcel and finds the project is consistent with the City’s design standards. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 That City Council does hereby approve Application No. PP2013-243 filed by Mid-

Peninsula The Farm, Inc., applicant and owner, for a Planned Development, Special Use 

Permit with Design Review to construct twenty (20) affordable apartment units on a 1.3-

acre vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson Lane in accordance with the Findings of  the 

Special Use Permit and Design Review attached and marked as Exhibits “A,” and “B,” 

respectively , and Conditions of Approval attached and marked as Exhibit “C”. 

 
 

***************************************** 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Reso.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 5:40:51 PM 

2 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL 
       Application No. PP2013-243 
       APN: 019-226-42 
       Applicant: MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc. 
       Hearing Date:  June 10, 2014 
 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPROVAL FINDINGS 
 
1. The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies of the 

   General Plan and the general purpose and intent of the applicable district 
   regulations. 

Supportive Evidence 
The proposed 46-unit development, as designed and mitigated in the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and EIR Addendum, will be consistent with the 
policies of the 2005 General Plan, which allows for the construction of High-
Density Residential units on the project site with the approval of a Specific Plan.  
The Planned Development Rezoning serves as the Specific Plan for the subject 
property, which has been reviewed as part of the EIR for the larger Atkinson Lane 
Planned Unit Development for the City and County.  

 
2. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity of  
 adjacent development and neighborhoods and includes improvements or 

modifications either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate 
development-related adverse impacts such as traffic, noise, odors, visual 
nuisances, or other similar adverse effects to adjacent development and 
neighborhoods.  These improvements or modifications may include but shall not be 
limited to the placement or orientation of buildings and entryways, parking areas, 
buffer yards, and addition of landscaping, walls, or both, to mitigate such impacts. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
The proposed affordable housing project has been designed with reduced density 
and massing along Atkinson Lane to blend with adjacent single family residences.  
The site will be accessed by a central driveway, and provides all required off-street 
parking. The project will include a community room, computer room, play areas, 
and manager’s office to provide amenities for residents. 
 
The project was reviewed under an EIR and EIR Addendum with the County of 
Santa Cruz serving as the lead agency.  The EIR and EIR Addendum outline 
project impacts and has determined appropriate mitigations to reduce those 
impacts to a less than significant level. 

  
3. The proposed use will not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic that will be 

hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood. 

 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Exhibit A.docx  05/29/2014  10:02 AM  SM\dm 

Exhibit "A" 

1 of 3



 
Supportive Evidence 
A traffic study was prepared for the EIR Addendum to address the impacts from this 
46-unit apartment project and determine appropriate mitigations.  The revised traffic 
study found that the project will require the payment of a fair-share toward 
installation of future off-site improvements, and the payment of traffic impact fees to 
both the County and the City. 

 
4. The proposed use incorporates roadway improvements, traffic control devices or 

mechanisms, or access restrictions to control traffic flow or divert traffic as needed 
to reduce or eliminate development impacts on surrounding neighborhood streets. 

 
Supportive Evidence 

  The project will create a new 24-foot wide driveway from Atkinson Lane, with 120 parking 
spaces provided for the project.  Secondary emergency access will be provided through a 
controlled driveway leading into the adjacent housing complex to the West. 

 
  The project is required to pay its fair share toward future improvements to offset impacts of 

any larger development in the County Entitlements Area, as well as provide traffic impact 
fees to both the County and the City. 

 
5. The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, including 

visual impacts and noise of the proposed special use on adjacent properties. 
 

Supportive Evidence 
The project has been designed to improve the appearance of the streetscape, with single-
family residential massing along Atkinson Lane, and higher density residential units behind 
and to the rear of the property.  The site will be thoroughly landscaped and will be operated 
by a professional management company. 

 
6. The proposed special use complies with all additional standards imposed on it by 

the particular provisions of this chapter and all other requirements of this title 
applicable to the proposed special use and uses within the applicable base-zoning 
district. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
Conditions of Approval have been included to provide for the adherence to all City 
standards not addressed by the submittal.  Further, a Memorandum of Understanding has 
been drafted between the City, County, and MidPeninsula Housing regarding the process 
for building permit application, inspections, and payment of fees. 

 
7. The proposed special use will not be materially detrimental to the public health, 

safety, convenience and welfare, and will not result in material damage or prejudice 
to other property in the vicinity. 

 
 

 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Exhibit A.docx  05/29/2014  10:02 AM  SM\dm 

Exhibit "A" 

2 of 3



Supportive Evidence 
The proposed 20-unit affordable apartment development will be managed by a professional 
management company and has been designed to provide amenities to residents of the 
project.  The project provides the minimum required parking for the proposed use, in 
addition to a community room, computer room, and play areas.  The proposed 
development will not be materially detrimental to the neighborhood or the public welfare. 

 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Exhibit A.docx  05/29/2014  10:02 AM  SM\dm 

Exhibit "A" 

3 of 3



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
DESIGN REVIEW       

Application No.  PP2013-243 
APN: 019-226-42 
Applicant:  MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc. 
Hearing Date: June 10, 2014 

DESIGN REVIEW FINDINGS (Section 14-12.403) 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies of the
General Plan and the general purpose and intent of the applicable district
regulations.

Supportive Evidence
The proposed 46-unit development, as designed and mitigated in the
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and EIR Addendum, will be consistent with the
policies of the 2005 General Plan, which allows for the construction of High-
Density Residential units on the project site with the approval of a Specific Plan.
The Planned Development Rezoning serves as the Specific Plan for the subject
property, which has been reviewed as part of the EIR for the larger Atkinson Lane
Planned Unit Development for the City and County.

2. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity of
adjacent development and neighborhoods and includes improvements or
modifications either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate
development-related adverse impacts such as traffic, noise, odors, visual
nuisances, or other similar adverse effects to adjacent development and
neighborhoods.  These improvements or modifications may include but shall not be
limited to the placement or orientation of buildings and entryways, parking areas,
buffer yards, and addition of landscaping, walls, or both, to mitigate such impacts.

Supportive Evidence
The proposed affordable housing project has been designed with reduced density
and massing along Atkinson Lane to blend with adjacent single family residences.
The site will be accessed by a central driveway, and provides all required off-street
parking. The project will include a community room, computer room, play areas,
and manager’s office to provide amenities for residents.

The project was reviewed under an EIR and EIR Addendum with the County of
Santa Cruz serving as the lead agency.  The EIR and EIR Addendum outline
project impacts and has determined appropriate mitigations to reduce those
impacts to a less than significant level.

3. The proposed use will not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic that will be

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Exhibit B.docx  05/29/2014  10:06 AM  SM\dm 

Exhibit "B"

1 of 3



hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood. 

Supportive Evidence 
A traffic study was prepared for the EIR Addendum to address the impacts from this 
46-unit apartment project and determine appropriate mitigations.  The revised traffic 
study found that the project will require the payment of a fair-share toward 
installation of future off-site improvements, and the payment of traffic impact fees to 
both the County and the City. 

4. The proposed use incorporates roadway improvements, traffic control devices or
mechanisms, or access restrictions to control traffic flow or divert traffic as needed
to reduce or eliminate development impacts on surrounding neighborhood streets.

Supportive Evidence
The project will create a new 24-foot wide driveway from Atkinson Lane, with 120 parking 
spaces provided for the project.  Secondary emergency access will be provided through a 
controlled driveway leading into the adjacent housing complex to the West. 

The project is required to pay its fair share toward future improvements to offset impacts of 
any larger development in the County Entitlements Area, as well as provide traffic impact 
fees to both the County and the City. 

5. The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, including
visual impacts and noise of the proposed special use on adjacent properties.

Supportive Evidence
The project has been designed to improve the appearance of the streetscape, with single-
family residential massing along Atkinson Lane, and higher density residential units behind
and to the rear of the property.  The site will be thoroughly landscaped and will be operated
by a professional management company.

6. The proposed special use complies with all additional standards imposed on it by
the particular provisions of this chapter and all other requirements of this title
applicable to the proposed special use and uses within the applicable base-zoning
district.

Supportive Evidence
Conditions of Approval have been included to provide for the adherence to all City
standards not addressed by the submittal.  Further, a Memorandum of Understanding has
been drafted between the City, County, and MidPeninsula Housing regarding the process
for building permit application, inspections, and payment of fees.

7. The proposed special use will not be materially detrimental to the public health,
safety, convenience and welfare, and will not result in material damage or prejudice
to other property in the vicinity.

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Exhibit B.docx  05/29/2014  10:06 AM  SM\dm 

Exhibit "B" 

2 of 3



Supportive Evidence 
The proposed 20-unit affordable apartment development will be managed by a professional 
management company and has been designed to provide amenities to residents of the 
project.  The project provides the minimum required parking for the proposed use, in 
addition to a community room, computer room, and play areas.  The proposed 
development will not be materially detrimental to the neighborhood or the public welfare. 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson SUP Exhibit B.docx  05/29/2014  10:06 AM  SM\dm 

Exhibit "B" 

3 of 3



CITY OF WATSONVILLE  
CITY COUNCIL 
 

Application No.:  PP2013-243 
APN: 019-226-42 
Applicant:  MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc.    
Hearing Date:  June 10, 2014 

 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT, SPECIAL USE PERMIT WITH DESIGN REVIEW 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
 

APPROVAL DATE: June 20, 2014 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 20, 2014 

 
General Conditions: 
1. This approval shall be null and void if not acted upon within 24 months from the 

effective date of the Planned Development.  This approval applies to plans titled 
"Pippin Apartments, 56 Atkinson Lane," received by the Community 
Development Department on February 20, 2014.  (CDD-P) 

 
2. After approval is granted, modification to the project or to conditions imposed 

may be considered in accordance with Section 14-10.609 of the City Zoning 
Ordinance. (CDD-P) 

 
3. Approval is subject to making findings and supportive evidence in accordance 

with Section 14-12.403 of the City Zoning Ordinance, with said Findings set forth 
in Exhibits "A," “B,” and “C” and made a part of this Permit. (CDD-P) 

 
4. The project shall be in compliance with the conditions of approval, all local codes 

and ordinances, appropriate development standards, and current City policies.  
Any deviation will be grounds for review by the City and may possibly result in 
revocation of the Permit. (CDD-P, B) 

 
5. The applicant shall make and note all revisions necessary to comply with all 

conditions of approval. The applicant shall certify in writing below the list(s) of 
conditions that the building plans comply with the conditions of approval. (CDD-
P) 

   
6. A copy of the final conditions of approval must be printed on the front sheet of 

plans submitted for future permits.  Plans without the conditions of approval 
printed directly on the front page will not be accepted at the plan-check phase.   
(CDD-P) 

 
7. This project is intended to be constructed in conjunction with the Planned Unit 

Development for 26 units on the adjacent County Parcel APN: 048-211-25.  In 
the event that the adjacent project is not developed, this permit shall require a 
Major Modification, to be reviewed by the Planning Commission.  (CDD-P) 

 
Prior to the issuance of building permits, the following requirements must be 
met: 
 
1. Buildings shall be protected with an automatic fire sprinkler system 

to include fire  

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 ATKINSON SUP EXHIBIT C.DOCX May 29, 2014 (10:19AM)  SM\dm 
 

  Exhibit "C" 

1 of 6



alarm, water flow monitoring, and notification, installed to NFPA standards.  Fire 
sprinkler contractor shall submit 3 sets of plans and calculations for a separate 
fire permit prior to installing the system. (CDD-P, WFD) 
 

2. Fire sprinkler system shall be provided with backflow protection.  Indicate on the 
plan City of Watsonville Public Works Standards W-10.  (CDD-P, WFD) 

 
3. Fire flow for this project is 2,500 gallons per minute from 2 fire hydrants for 2 

hours.  One new fire hydrant shall be installed within 100 feet of proposed 
location of new fire department connections.  Fire hydrants shall be looped.  
(CDD-P, WFD) 

 
4. Project shall have a secondary emergency access, to be indicated on plans 

submitted for building permits.  Minimum right of way for emergency access shall 
be 25-feet.  (CDD-P, WFD) 

 
5. Fire Department Knox-Boxes shall be provided where required by the City of 

Watsonville Fire Department.  (CDD-P, WFD) 
 
6. No parking shall be allowed along the private driveway.  All curbs shall be posted 

“NO PARKING FIRE LANE,” and shall be painted red.  (CDD-P, WFD) 
 
7. Fire Department connections shall be posted with the building numbers they 

serve.  (CDD-P, WFD) 
 
8. Proposed buildings shall be posted with illuminated building numbers or 

addresses visible from the access driveway.  (CDD-P, WFD) 
 
9. Separate submittals and permits shall be obtained for the fire alarm/ sprinkler 

monitoring system.  The alarm panel shall be monitored by a central station 
monitoring company.  (CDD-B, WFD) 

 
10. Submit the post construction storm water control plan (drainage study).  Once the 

County has approved the storm water control plan, submit a PDF of the report for 
City records.  The Applicant is required to sign a standard maintenance 
agreement for the perpetual maintenance of the post construction storm water 
mitigation measures.  Impervious surface impact fee swill calculated once the 
storm water control plan is submitted. (CDD-E) 

 
11. New domestic, fire and irrigation water services will be constructed up to the riser 

to the backflow prevention devices which will be constructed by the development.  
The project may have a City master meter for the domestic services but each unit 
must have separate sub-meter.    (CDD-E) 
 

12. Applicant shall submit a management plan to the City of Watsonville Water Dept. 
for its review and approval detailing how it will monitor domestic water 
consumption by the tenants in terms of targeted per-capita consumption rates, 
how it will inform and educate tenants regarding the targeted per capita water 
consumption rates and ways to reduce consumption in order to meet the 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 ATKINSON SUP EXHIBIT C.DOCX May 29, 2014 (10:19AM)  SM\dm 
 

  Exhibit "C" 

2 of 6



rates.  The Applicant shall report to the City every three months the performance 
of the project with meeting per capita water consumption rates.  (CDD-E) 

 
13. The project must construct the COW trash enclosure standard.  This will 

accommodate two dumpsters one for refuse and one for mixed stream recycling. 
(CDD-E) 

 
14. ON/OFF SITE PERMIT – Separate On/Off Site Permits are required for work in 

the public right-of-way.  (CDD-E) 
 
15. SOLID WASTE/TRASH ENCLOSURE – Trash enclosures shall be located and 

designed subject to the review and approval of the City of Watsonville.  The City 
of Watsonville provides front load service for dumpsters and rear load service for 
drop boxes and compactors.  Enclosures shall be sized to accommodate the 
number of refuse and recycling containers required to store refuse and recycling 
generation for one week.  The design of trash enclosures shall follow, in general, 
City Standard Drawings Nos. S-602 and S-603. (CDD-E) 
 

16. STORM DRAIN SYSTEMS/BMP MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT – The project 
applicant shall execute an agreement in the standard form providing for the 
maintenance, and monitoring and reporting of those activities to the City of 
Watsonville storm drain systems best management practice measures.  (CDD-E) 

 
17. STREET LIGHTING - Street lighting shall be planned designed and constructed 

in accordance with the following requirements.  Project shall install one streetlight 
on Atkinson Lane.  Apply for new un-metered electrical service from P.G. & E. 
and pay all service fees.  Street lights shall conform to the City of Watsonville 
Public Improvement Standards.  Prior to occupancy the applicant shall apply to 
P.G. & E. for street light numbers and install the numbers on the lights. (CDD-E) 

 
18. STREET IMPROVEMENTS – Applicant shall construct street improvements 

along all property frontages meeting the current requirements of the Public 
Improvement Standards.   Street improvements shall include but not be limited to 
curbs, gutters, sidewalks, access ramps, street paving and street lighting.  If 
there is insufficient right of way to accommodate street improvements meeting 
the requirements of the Public Improvement Standards, the applicant shall 
dedicate property for this purpose. (CDD-E) 

 
19. The project site is 1-acre or more and therefore must prepare Storm Water 

Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and apply to be permitted under the State 
Water Quality Control Board General Construction Permit.  Submit a copy of the 
completed Notice of Intent form, a copy of the State Water Board confirmation 
letter and a copy of the SWPPP subject to review and approval by the City of 
Watsonville. (CDD-E) 

 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 ATKINSON SUP EXHIBIT C.DOCX May 29, 2014 (10:19AM)  SM\dm 
 

  Exhibit "C" 

3 of 6



20. UNDERGROUND UTILITY SERVICE – Electric and communications services to 
new buildings shall be constructed underground.  Aerial services are prohibited.  
(CDD-E) 

 
21. To minimize dust/ grading impacts during construction the applicant shall: 

a. Spray water on all exposed earth surfaces during clearing, grading, earth 
moving and other site preparation activities throughout the day to minimize 
dust.   

b. Use tarpaulins or other effective covers on all stockpiled earth material and on 
all haul trucks to minimize dust.   

c. Sweep the adjacent street frontages at least once a day or as needed to 
remove silt and other dirt which is evident from construction activities.   

d. Ensure that construction vehicles are cleaned prior to leaving the construction 
site to prevent dust and dirt from being tracked off-site. 

e. The City shall have the authority to stop all grading operations, if in opinion of 
City staff, inadequate dust control or excessive wind conditions contribute to 
fugitive dust emissions. (CDD-E) 

 
22. The applicant shall provide material and color board for approval by the 

Community Development Department. (CDD-P) 
 
23. Project applicants shall have a USFWS-approved biologist conduct California 

Red Legged Frog (CRLF) preconstruction surveys a minimum of 48-hours prior 
to initiation of project activities.  Pre-construction surveys shall consist of two 
days and two nights, spaced 1 week apart, with notification to the USFWS.  
MITIGATION MEASURE 3.4-2b 

 
24. During pre-construction surveys, all captured Western Pond Turtles shall be 

permanently relocated under the direction of the qualified herpetologist in 
consultation with the CDFW.  In addition, a Habitat Enhancement Plan shall be 
prepared by a qualified wetland ecologist, hydrologist, and landscape architect 
that includes the following improvements to the wetland: 

a. Removal of non-native vegetation 
b. Development of a wetland and upland planting plan to benefit wetland 

functions and values 
c. Revegetation of the wetland buffer with native riparian and upland species 
d. Development of a monitoring program 
e. Development of success criteria for habitat enhancement.  MITIGATION 

MEASURE 3-4-3a 
 

25. Project applicants shall consult with a qualified engineer to perform a quantitative 
evaluation of liquefaction and liquefaction-induced lateral spreading in 
conjunction with a design level geotechnical report for future development within 
the planning area.  The evaluation shall be in accordance with the 
recommendations contained within the Feasibility Level Geotechnical 
Engineering report from March, 2009.  The design level geotechnical report shall 
also specify foundations and structural elements that are designed to resist 
forces and potential ground settlement generated by liquefaction and lateral 
spreading and shall incorporate the following into the final site plans, unless 
additional analysis determines that it is not necessary: 

 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 ATKINSON SUP EXHIBIT C.DOCX May 29, 2014 (10:19AM)  SM\dm 
 

  Exhibit "C" 

4 of 6



f. Development shall be constructed upon a structural mat foundation 
system.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.6-2 

 
26. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the project applicant shall retain a qualified 

hazardous materials professional to conduct a Phase II Soil Investigation in order 
to adequately test the surface soil and subsurface soil for pesticide residues in 
accordance with the Department of Toxic Substances and Control and CalEPA 
Guidance Manual Interim Guidance for Sampling Agricultural Fields for School 
Sites.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.7-9 

 
27. A detailed final drainage plan and analysis demonstrating maintenance of the 

pre-development release rate while providing storage volume for the post-
development 25-year storm consistent with the County of Santa Cruz 
performance standards or equivalent methods, and retaining the existing 
functions of storage, filtration and evaporation of stormwater shall be submitted 
for review and approval.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.8-1a 

 
36. The project applicants shall make a one-time municipal services mitigation 

payment to the City of Watsonville to ensure that the project pays its fair-share to 
support municipal services provided for the project.  MITIGATION MEASURE 
3.12-1 

 
28. Prior to occupancy, project applicants shall pay their proportional fair share 

toward improvement of the eastbound approach on Holohan Road at the East 
Lake Avenue /Holohan Road intersection.   The estimated fair-share contribution 
is 0.40% of the estimated improvement cost of $1,225,100, or $4,900, to be paid 
to the County of Santa Cruz.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-5 

 
29. Prior to issuance of building permits, project applicant shall pay applicable traffic 

impact fees to the City of Watsonville (20 units), a portion of which will go toward 
the future installation of a traffic signal at Highway 1 northbound ramps/Harkin 
Slough Road and the Highway 1 southbound ramps/Harkin Slough Road/Green 
Valley Road.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-6 
 

30. Prior to issuance of building permits, project applicant shall pay applicable traffic 
impacts fees to the City of Watsonville (20 units), a portion of which will go 
toward installation of a second through and right turn lane on the Airport 
Boulevard approach from Highway 1 and a second left turn land on Freedom 
Boulevard at the Airport Boulevard/Freedom Boulevard intersection.  
MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-7 

 
31. Prior to occupancy, project applicants shall pay their proportional fair share 

towards installation of two roundabouts (one at the northbound hook ramp 
terminal and one at the Airport Boulevard/Larkin Valley Road intersection).  The 
estimated cost of these improvements is $1,029,000.  This obligation will be met 
through payment of traffic impact fees to the City (20 units), and a portion of the 
County’s impacts fees received by the County ($130 per unit) shall be paid to the 
City by the County (26 units).  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-8 

 
32. The project applicant shall be required to ensure that project water demand is 

fully offset at a ratio of 1.2:1 either by comparing pre-development water demand 
to post-development water demand or by participating in a water offset program 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 ATKINSON SUP EXHIBIT C.DOCX May 29, 2014 (10:19AM)  SM\dm 
 

  Exhibit "C" 

5 of 6



with fixture and landscaping replacements in the City’s water service area, or a 
combination of both.  MITIGATION MEASURE 4-3. 

 
33. Project applicants shall pay their proportional fair share towards installation of a 

traffic signal at the East Lake Avenue/Wagner Avenue intersection prior to 
occupancy.  This obligation will be met through payment of impact fees to the 
City of Watsonville by the units located on City parcels, and a portion of the 
County’s impacts fees received from the project applicant ($664 per unit) shall be 
paid to the City by the County.  MITIGATION MEASURE 4-1 

 
34. Developer shall record a cross- easement on parcels 048-211-25 and 019-226-

41 for access to parking and facilities for the life of the project.  Applicant shall 
provide proof of recordation prior to issuance of building permits.  (CDD-P) 

 
35. Developer shall secure an easement for emergency access from parcel 019-226-

36.  Applicant shall submit proof of recordation prior to issuance of building 
permits.  (CDD-P) 

 
Prior to Final Occupancy: 
 
36. All trash and construction debris shall be removed from the site. (CDD-B) 
 
37. All improvements identified on the plans must be completed. (CDD-E) 
 
Ongoing Conditions: 
 
38. Common area landscaping, retaining walls, and fences shall be maintained on an 

ongoing basis by the management company.  (CDD-P, E) 
 

39. The City of Watsonville shall provide the following services to the project: 
g.  Sewer 
h. Water 
i. Library 
j. Fire  
k. Police   
l. Trash and recycling (CDD-P, CDD-E, WPD, WFD) 

 
40. The project management team shall comply with all provisions of the 

Memorandum of Understanding for the project.  (CDD-P) 
 
Key to Department Responsibility 
CDD-B - Community Development Department (Building) 
CDD-P - Community Development Department (Planning) 
CDD-E - Community Development Department (Engineering) 
PW - Public Works and Utilities Department 
WFD – Watsonville Fire Department 
PK - Parks and Community Services Department 
CAT -City Attorney

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 ATKINSON SUP EXHIBIT C.DOCX May 29, 2014 (10:19AM)  SM\dm 
 

  Exhibit "C" 

6 of 6



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, AND MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC., TO ADDRESS 
SERVICES AND FINANCING FOR THE ENTIRE 46-UNIT MID-
PENINSULA DEVELOPMENT PROJECT LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON 
LANE AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE SAME 

WHEREAS, Mid-Peninsula has designed a 46-unit project consisting of (20) 

twenty units on APN: 019-226-42 located in the City and (26) twenty-six units on APN: 

048-211-25 located in the County; and 

WHEREAS, because this project is located in two regulatory jurisdictions, (the 

City and the County) a Memorandum of Understanding has been drafted to outline the 

responsibilities of each party both during construction and after the project has been 

built. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Watsonville,

the County of Santa Cruz, and Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., to address services and 

financing for the entire 46-unit Mid-Peninsula development project located at 56 Atkinson 

Lane, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, is fair 

and equitable and is hereby ratified and approved.   

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

Memorandum of Understanding for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

***************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson MOU Reso.docx 
ri 6/4/2014 5:43:55 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.2f

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



ATKINSON LANE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is entered into this _____________day 
of _____________, 2014, by and between the County of Santa Cruz, hereinafter 
referred to as “County,” the City of Watsonville, hereinafter referred to as “City,” and 
MidPen Housing, hereinafter referred to as “MidPen,” together referred to as the 
“Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2007, the City and County entered into an Memorandum of 
Understanding, hereinafter referred to as “2007 MOU”, to jointly oversee the planning 
and environmental review process for a group of properties (hereinafter referred to as 
“Atkinson Lane Project”) primarily located in the unincorporated area of the County, but 
also in the Future Growth Area B under the City’s Measure U (an initiative approved by 
city voters to govern future development); and 

WHEREAS, as a result of that effort, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR), Planned 
Unit Development (PUD), and Specific Plan were prepared to address the scope of the 
then-proposed project of approximately 450 residential units, including identification of 
impacts and mitigation measures, as well as requirements for impact fees to be paid to 
the County and City, and a municipal services mitigation payment to be made to City by 
any developers of affordable rental projects; and 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2009 the final EIR was certified by the County, in conjunction 
with County approval of a General Plan Amendment, Rezoning, and Planned Unit 
Development for a portion of the property. While a draft Specific Plan had been 
prepared for the City’s consideration, it was not acted upon by the City; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2009, the Farm Bureau filed a petition for a Writ of Mandate 
against the County, City and others with regard to certification of the EIR.  As a result of 
this litigation, a Settlement Agreement was reached in 2011 between the Farm Bureau, 
the County, and the City; and both the City and County agreed that the EIR would not 
be used in connection with any action or proposal to develop or annex any, all or 
portions of the Specific Plan Area not included within the County Entitlements, and the 
City agreed that nothing in the County Approvals includes approval of the Specific Plan, 
or the EIR covering the Specific Plan area; and  

WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement does allow the City to rely upon the EIR and to 
approve development involving two parcels currently located within the City, as they are 
intended to be incorporated into project(s) authorized by the County Entitlements; and 

1 
 



WHEREAS, as a result of the Settlement Agreement, the City and the County are 
allowed to rely upon the certified EIR and to approve developments within the defined 
County Entitlements Area which is defined to include the following Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers (APNs): 

COUNTY ENTITLEMENTS AREA 
(within existing City of Watsonville Sphere of Influence) 

019-226-42 56 Atkinson Lane MidPen Housing parcel within City of Watsonville 
019-236-01 78 Atkinson Lane Lamb parcel within City 
048-211-25 56 Atkinson Lane MidPen Housing parcel within County 
048-221-09 no site address Lamb parcel within County 

WHEREAS, MidPen has, with the benefit of a loan from the County’s Redevelopment 
Agency, acquired APN 048-211-25 within the County’s jurisdiction, and has purchased 
with its own funds APN 019-226-42 within the City’s jurisdiction.  Together, these two 
adjoining properties create a stand-alone developable project site within the County 
Entitlements Area that is allowed under the Settlement Agreement to be considered for 
approval; and 

WHEREAS, MidPen has designed a cohesive 46-unit project consisting of 26 units on 
APN 048-211-25 located in the County and 20 units on APN 019-226-42 located in the 
City, and has submitted applications for discretionary permit entitlements from both the 
County and the City that require approval before submittal of building permits for the 
project, and these discretionary applications are expected to be considered by the 
County and by the City for approval in the near future; and  

WHEREAS, as CEQA Lead Agency, the County has prepared an Addendum to the EIR 
in order to reflect the terms of the Settlement Agreement and to update and allocate the 
mitigation measures to the current MidPen 46-unit project and to future projects within 
the County Entitlements Area, and both the County and the City will rely on the EIR and 
EIR Addendum for actions on the current MidPen projects, and the County would 
expect to rely on the EIR and EIR Addendum for actions on future projects within the 
County Entitlements Area; and 

WHEREAS, because the MidPen project straddles the City and County boundary, there 
is a need to address how building plan checks and inspections will occur for the 46-unit 
MidPen development project; and 

WHEREAS, it is also necessary to address how payment of impact fees by projects 
located within the County Entitlements Area will be made to the City and County; and to 
address how the parties will ensure that the Municipal Services Mitigation Payment 
required by the EIR for affordable rental housing projects will be made by MidPen to the 
City for the Phase 1a project, which is to be paid by the time of building permit issuance. 

2 
 



 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the 2007 MOU, the 
terms of the 2011 Settlement Agreement, the 2009 EIR and 2014 Addendum to the EIR, 
and the considerations contained herein, the Parties agree to the following: 

1.  Building Permit Process for the MidPen 46-unit Project 
 

a. Parties agree that it would be inefficient and unreasonable to require 
MidPen to submit separate building permit applications to the City and 
County for their portions of the project and to have both jurisdictions 
conducting separate plan check and building inspections. 
 

b. Parties therefore agree that the County shall be the jurisdiction to process 
building permits, including plan check, required inspections, and approval 
of occupancy of the buildings; with the exception of fire plan check which 
shall be coordinated between the City and Cal Fire agencies. 

 
c. Parties agree that for consistency, fire plan check shall be coordinated 

between the City and County, with a single point of contact for corrections 
and comments between the County, City, and MidPen.  Fire plan check, 
processing and inspection fees shall be paid as follows:  Paid to the 
County based on current County fee schedule for 26 units; and paid to 
City based on current City fee schedule for 20 units. 
 

d. Parties agree that the level of building plan check, processing and 
inspection fees paid to the County for all 46 units shall be as adopted by 
the County of Santa Cruz, except as provided by 1c above with regard to 
fire fees. 

 
e. The County shall apply City building standards for the purposes of plan 

check and inspection services for the 20 units located on APN 019-226-
42. 
 

f. Parties agree that MidPen retains the option to separately apply to each 
jurisdiction for building permits in the event that the project is built in 
separate phases; whether due to delays in the discretionary process in 
either jurisdiction or for any other reason. 

 

 

3 
 



2. Impact Fees and Distribution for Projects within the County Entitlements 
Area 
 

a. City and County agree to use the impact fee structures of each jurisdiction 
that are in effect at the time of building permit issuance.  Impact fees shall 
be paid prior to issuance of building permits.  MidPen agrees to pay, in the 
context of approval of the 46-unit project, such impact fees to the 
appropriate jurisdiction as outlined below, prior to issuance of any building 
permit for the project, and the County agrees not to issue a building permit 
until such time that payment of all impact fees to City and County have 
been verified in writing.  City and County agree that this MOU’s approach 
to payment of impact fees will be used for any future projects on county 
parcels within the County Entitlements Area, in addition to the current 
MidPen project which is located on both city and county parcels. 
 

b. County agrees not to collect drainage fees for the MidPen project; due to 
the location of the County parcel proposed for 26 units of the MidPen 
project, which is adjacent to City areas and relates to City drainage 
infrastructure. Future projects on county parcels within the County 
Entitlements Area will also not be subject to county drainage fees, unless 
it is determined through analysis that the site(s) do contribute drainage to 
county stormwater/drainage infrastructure, in which case the County will 
set a level of a county drainage fee that would be in addition to any City 
storm drainage, impervious area  and groundwater impact fees. 
 

c. County agrees to collect Childcare Impact fees for the 26 units of the 
MidPen project located in the County, and for any future projects on 
county parcels within the County Entitlements Area.  No childcare impact 
fees will be collected for the 20 MidPen project units located in the City. 
 

d. City and County agree to collect and distribute their own Parks Impact 
fees each based on their own adopted fee levels; the City fees for the 20 
MidPen units located in the City, and the County fees for the 26 MidPen 
units located in the County, and for any future projects on county parcels 
within the County Entitlements Area.  County parks impact fees shall be 
designated to be used to improve South County Parks.   
 

e. The City, County and MidPen agree that the following City impact fees 
shall be collected and distributed to the City of Watsonville for the entire 
46-unit MidPen project, as well as any future projects on county parcels 

4 
 



within the County Entitlements Area; due to the location of the Area, which 
is adjacent to city areas and relates to city infrastructure: 

i. Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee 
ii. Water Service Fee 
iii. Groundwater Impact Fee 
iv. Storm Drainage Fee 
v. Impervious Area Impact Fee 
vi. Public Facilities Fee 
vii. Fire Impact Fee 
viii. Underground Utility In-Lieu Fee 

 
f. City and County agree that MidPen will pay the City Traffic Impact Fee to 

the City for the 20 units located in the City; and to the County for the 26 
units of the MidPen project located on the county parcel; and also agree 
that any future projects within the County Entitlements Area will pay the 
County Transportation Impact Fee and Roadside Improvement Impact 
Fee to the County, for units located in the County.  Further, the City and 
County agree that in order to ensure that adequate funding provided to 
meet fair share allocations and is available for Watsonville to implement 
certain traffic mitigations, and to ensure that appropriate project-level 
requirements are made of projects within the County Entitlements Area, 
the County will carry out the following: 
 

i. The County will pay a portion of its transportation impact fees to the 
City, at a rate of $130 per unit, for units located on county parcels 
within the County Entitlements Area, in order to ensure that county 
Atkinson projects contribute their fair shares to the costs of 
improvements to mitigate project impacts (in addition to the $664 
per unit below to address the cumulative impact); and to provide 
$20,000 in funding to assist with costs of City of Watsonville 
coordination with Caltrans and the County on two improvement 
projects involving Highway 1 ramps, for which the County will cover 
the fair share contributions of the Atkinson project through the 
County’s impact fees; 

ii. The County will pay a portion of its transportation impact fees to the 
City, at a rate of $664 per unit, for units located on county parcels 
within the County Entitlements Area, in order to ensure that county 
projects contribute one-half of the cost of MM 4-1, a traffic signal at 
East Lake Avenue/Wagner Avenue to be installed in the future by 

5 
 



the City of Watsonville, which is an improvement identified to 
mitigate a cumulative impact; 

iii. The County will ensure that the first project related to future 
development of the Lamb property within the County Entitlements 
Area will have a condition of approval imposed that requires the 
first development project to implement MM 3.13-11a prior to project 
occupancy, which requires lengthening the left-turn pocket from 
Freedom Blvd. to Crestview Drive by at least 25 feet; and that this 
requirement is in addition to and not credited to impact fees;  

iv. The County will ensure that the first project related to future 
development of the Lamb property within the County Entitlements 
Area will have a condition of approval imposed that requires the 
first development project to implement MM 3.13-12b prior to project 
occupancy, which requires development and implementation of a 
traffic calming plan on Brewington Avenue north of Crestview Drive; 
and that this requirement is in addition to and not credited to impact 
fees, but which may involve a reimbursement agreement whereby 
the first applicant may be reimbursed a portion of the cost by other 
future developers of projects on the Lamb property; 

v. The County agrees that the transportation and roadside impact 
fees that it receives from projects developed within the County 
Entitlements Area will be dedicated toward the cost of 
improvements to the East Lake (Hwy 152)/Holohan intersection; 
with the exception of the above-described $130 and $664 per unit 
amounts that will be provided to the City by the County from its 
transportation impact fees collected; and with the exception of the 
fair share amounts as identified in MM 3.13-6 (Hwy 1 
Ramps/Harkins Slough Road) and MM 3.13-8 (Highway 1/Larkin 
Valley/Airport Blvd NB Ramps/Intersection), which the County must 
retain in order to meet the fair share contributions of Atkinson 
projects within the County Entitlements Area to those identified 
improvement projects. 

 
3. Municipal Services Mitigation Payment 

 
a. In order to meet a requirement of the EIR, the City and MidPen agree that 

Mid-Pen shall make a one-time municipal services mitigation payment to 
the City in accordance with an executed agreement between the City and 

6 
 



MidPen, to support the ability of the City to provide municipal services 
such as police and fire, and to ensure ability to respond to anticipated calls 
for service to the 46-unit MidPen project and meet demands for other city 
services that may be accessed by households living in the MidPen project.  
Given its location adjacent to city areas, and linkage to the 20 units of the 
project located on a city parcel, it is anticipated that public safety response 
to the 26 units of the MidPen project that are located in the County would 
most likely be made by City Police and Fire personnel.  The County 
agrees not to issue a building permit for the project until proof of such 
payment in accordance with an agreement executed by MidPen and the 
City has been presented to the County. 
 

b. City and County agree that if any additional affordable rental housing 
projects are contemplated for approval by the County within the County 
Entitlements Area in the future, the County agrees to impose a 
requirement for the developer to enter into an agreement with the City of 
Watsonville regarding the municipal services mitigation payment, and the 
County agrees not to issue a building permit for the project(s) until proof of 
such payment in accordance with an agreement executed by the housing 
developer(s) and the City has been presented to the County. 
 

c. The City, County and MidPen agree that the City of Watsonville will 
provide the following services for the life of the entire 46-unit MidPen 
project; and the City and County agree to support applications as 
necessary to the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) for extra-
territorial water and sewer service to the MidPen project and to any other 
future projects on county parcels within the County Entitlements Area: 

i. Fire 
ii. Police 
iii. Water 
iv. Solid Waste 
v. Sewer 

  

7 
 





ORDINANCE NO.  (CM) 

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WATSONVILLE APPROVING REZONING TO ESTABLISH A 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT ON ASSESSOR’S 
PARCEL NUMBER 019-226-42 NOW CLASSIFIED R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) WITH GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION OF R-
HD (SPECIFIC PLAN) TO R-1/PD FOR APPLICATION NO. PP2013-243 
FILED BY MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC., TO CONSTRUCT 20 
AFFORDABLE APARTMENT UNITS ON A 1.3-ACRE VACANT PARCEL 
LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON LANE, WATSONVILLE, AND DIRECTING 
CHANGES BE MADE ON THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE  

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2013, Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., submitted 

Application No. PP2013-243 to rezone Assessor’s Parcel Number 019-226-42 presently 

zoned R-1 (Single-Family Residential District) with a General Plan Designation of R-HD 

(Specific Plan) to establish a Planned Development Overlay so as to rezone said parcel 

to R-1/PD for the construction of (20) twenty affordable apartment units on a 1.3-acre 

vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville; 

WHEREAS, certain project features are not permitted by the current zoning in that 

the project represents a departure from certain regulations of the R-1 District; and  

WHEREAS, the Planned Development District Regulations of Part 25 of Chapter 

16 of Title 14 of the Watsonville Municipal Code (commencing with Section 14-16.2500) 

establish a procedure to change specific District Regulations (described in Section 14-

16.2503 of the Watsonville Municipal Code where appropriate if eligible under Section 

14-16.2504 and the findings required by Section 14-16.2508 of the Watsonville Municipal 

Code can be made; and 

WHEREAS, the area affected is depicted on Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein; and 

Ord No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 3:51:43 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.2g

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, implementation of this Planned Development Overlay Ordinance on 

the subject property will carry out public objectives more fully; and 

WHEREAS, on May 6, 2014, the Watsonville Planning Commission adopted 

Resolution No. 11-14 (PC) recommending that the City Council adopt an Ordinance 

designating the property located at 56 Atkinson Lane with R-1/PD; and  

WHEREAS, notice of time and place of hearing for approval of the rezoning to 

establish the Planned Development Overlay District was given at the time and in the 

manner prescribed by the Zoning Ordinance pursuant to Section 14-10.900 of the 

Watsonville Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence, and 

the matter submitted for decision.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council does hereby approve Rezoning to establish a 

Planned Development Overlay District on Assessor’s Parcel Number 019-226-42 

presently zoned R-1(Single-Family Residential District) with General Plan Designation of 

R-HD (Specific Plan) to R-1/PD which is consistent with Planned Development Rezoning 

Findings, attached hereto and identified as Exhibit “A,” for Application No. PP2013-243 

filed by Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., for the construction of (20) twenty affordable 

apartment units on a 1.3-acre vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville. 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to make changes 

upon that portion of the official “Zoning Map of the City of Watsonville” as shown on 

Exhibit “B,” a copy of which is attached hereto, and designates the ordinance number 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 10:28:58 AM 

2 



and effective date of the ordinance authorizing the change and to depict said lot lines on 

the Zoning Map once the subdivision map is recorded. 

SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. 
 
This ordinance shall be published in the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian and/or 

Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its final adoption.  

 
***************************************** 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 10:28:58 AM 

3 



CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE  

Application No.:  PP2013-243 
APN: 019-226-42 
Applicant: MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc. 
Hearing Date:  June 10, 2014 

 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT FINDINGS (Section 14-16.2508) 
 
1. The proposal is consistent with the General Plan and/or adopted area plans where 

applicable. 
 

Supportive Evidence 
The project is currently Zoned R-1 (Single Family Residential), with a General Plan 
Designation of R-HD (High Density Residential), with adoption of a Specific Plan for 
the Atkinson Lane Area.  
 
The project was conceptually reviewed as part of the Atkinson Lane Specific Plan 
and Planned Unit Development project jointly undertaken by the County of Santa 
Cruz and the City of Watsonville in 2007-2008.  Although the Atkinson Lane 
Specific Plan was not adopted, the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (certified by 
the County in 2009 and settled by the Courts in 2011) allowed the inclusion of this 
parcel for development with a mix of low and high density residential, up to 20 
units.  Processing this application as a Planned Development (PD) meets the 
Specific Plan requirement as outlined in the 2005 General Plan to allow high 
density residential uses on the parcel. 

 
2. The proposal is consistent with the purposes of this chapter and other applicable 

sections of this Title.  
 

Supportive Evidence 
The development of the two subject properties (APN: 019-226-42 and 048-211-25) 
provides for a well-designed, contiguous project that would not otherwise be 
possible under the R-1 Zoning regulations.  The project provides for shared access, 
parking, and community facilities over both parcels that provide for increased 
convenience for the future residents of the housing project, including a computer 
lab, outside play areas, and community room. 

 
3. The proposal can be coordinated with the existing and proposed development of 

surrounding areas.  
 

Supportive Evidence 
The project has been designed with lower density units along Atkinson Lane to 
blend with adjacent single-family residential properties on Atkinson Lane, with 
higher density units further back on the property.  The project site is located in a 
mixed use area that includes single family, multi-family, and institutional uses.  

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Zoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

1 of 4



 
4. The proposal provides an amenity level and amount of open space greater than 

what would have been permitted by the underlying district regulations.  
 
Supportive Evidence 
The project will provide a total of 46-affordable apartment units over approximately 
3.6 acres located in the City and County.  The combination of amenities for both 
parcels in this larger project allows for the provision of a community room, 
computer room, play areas, and sufficient parking that would not otherwise be 
feasible in each of the smaller parcels.   

 
5. The proposal is planned so that the total development in each individual 

development phase can exist as an independent unit; adequate assurance will be 
provided that such objective will be attained; that the uses proposed will not be 
detrimental to present and planned surrounding uses, as shown in the General 
Plan, but will have a beneficial effect which could not be achieved without being 
located in a PD District; 

 
Supportive Evidence 
The project has been designed with shared amenities between the County and City 
parcels.  The computer room, community room, and manager’s office are located 
on the County parcel, and therefore, if the County portion of the project is not 
constructed, the City portion would require modification to provide similar amenities 
on the City parcel.   However, because the Planned Unit Development has already 
been approved for the County parcel, it is unlikely that the project will not be 
constructed.  The playground has been designed on the City parcel. 
 
The entire project has been designed to enhance the Atkinson neighborhood, with 
lower density being placed at the front of the City parcel, and on-site amenities for 
residents of the complex.  Additionally, the project provides more open space and 
community amenities than might otherwise be allowed under traditional zoning.  
 

6. Includes streets and thoroughfares, suitable and adequate to carry anticipated 
traffic, and the proposed densities will not generate traffic in such amounts as to 
overload the street network outside the development. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
The project includes a 24-foot wide driveway off of Atkinson Lane which extends 
the length of both parcels, looping around at the rear of the project site.  The 
driveway gives access to a total of 120 parking spaces for 46 apartment units, and 
has been designed to meet emergency access requirements for the City of 
Watsonville.  
 
An emergency access gate will be provided that joins the adjacent residential 
development to the west of the property.  A driveway and curb cut will be created, 
with a gate preventing access for private vehicles.   

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Zoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

2 of 4



 
7. The project is designed so that existing or proposed utility services and facilities 

and other public improvements are adequate for the population densities and land 
uses provided. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
The project has been reviewed for compliance with California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) as part of a larger project, and an Addendum to the EIR was 
prepared to address specific impacts of this smaller project. 
 
The City will provide sewer, water, and trash services to the entire 46-unit project, 
as the project is within the City’s water service area, and City sewer lines and storm 
drains are the only public utilities in the vicinity of the project.  The EIR and EIR 
addendum have concluded that the City can adequately serve the project site with 
sewer, water, drainage, and trash service.   
 
The Settlement Agreement requires that water be offset at a ratio of 1:2-1 for the 
City portion of the site, which means that the project developer must offset water 
use with retrofits of existing fixtures within the City of Watsonville. 
 
The project developer also owns a 200 unit high-density residential housing 
complex at Sunny Meadows which has recently undergone a major renovation.  
This renovation included the retrofit of all plumbing fixtures (toilets, sinks, 
showerheads, etc.), which provides the required 1:2-1 offset in the Settlement 
Agreement and EIR Addendum.  The project applicant shall submit documentation 
showing compliance with this requirement. 

 
8. The project is designed so that proposed ratios of off-street parking are consistent 

with parking regulations 
 

Supportive Evidence 
The 46-unit project provides a total of 120 parking spaces for tenants and guests, 
which meets the minimum requirements for both the City and County. The project 
provides 56 parking spaces required for the 20 units located on the City parcel, 
while 66 parking spaces are required to be provided for the 26 units on the County 
parcel.   
 
The project has requested that the Planned Development allow the elimination of 
covered parking due to a 30-foot PG&E easement along a portion of the property 
that precludes development of carports.   

 
9. The project will not have a detrimental and unmitigatable financial impact on the 

City. 
 
 
 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Zoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

3 of 4



Supportive Evidence 
The project will be provided with police, fire, public utilities, trash, and water service 
from the City of Watsonville.  The EIR and EIR Addendum have determined that 
with the assessment of a municipal services mitigation fee on the project developer, 
the provision of police, fire, public services (library), and parks services to the 
project will not cause an unmitigatable financial hardship to the City. 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Zoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

4 of 4



N

CT

IP

R-1

RM-3 RM-2

30
34

38

562

7

6056

105
2126 121
1292140

107A

2132

115109

78

66 7372

81
85

89

148
6

148
4

1521
153

7

6359
51

40

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

100
120 1165

1155
1145
11251140

105
115

125
135

145

202
203209

208
202 1170

201
221

148
5

148
1

147
7

149
6

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75
1480

1478

4844
1175
1165

11501160
120012101220

214
208

215
214

56

37
50

49

54
A    B

40 31

34

80

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

4374

1413

171615

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17
14

10

27

75

19
28

33 A

25

24
20

A A

A

AB A

A

107

A-C

124

A

246 81012

1 3 5

9111514

ATKINSON LN

BLA
NCA LN

GARDNER AV

VIC RUGH LN

ARISTA LN

SADIA PL

KADDERLY LN

PALOMA WY

NATALIE LN

FREEDOM BL

DRIVEWAY

ARISTACT

City of 
Watsonville

Proposed PD
Overlay

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 4/16/2014 (CODD1420).

This Document is a graphic representation using the best currently available 
sources. The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

Legend
Parcel
Watsonville City Limit
North Business Park Overlay District*
Retail Overlay District*
PD: Planned Development

Zoning
R-1P: Planned Single Family Residential
R-1: Single Family Residential-Low Density
RM-2: Multiple Residential-Medium Density
RM-3: Multiple Residential-High Density
CC: Central Commercial
CCA: Central Commercial Core Area
CN: Neighborhood Commercial
CNS: Neighborhood Shopping Center
CO: Office
CT: Thoroughfare Commercial
CV: Visitor Commercial
IG: General Industrial
IP: Industrial Park
N: Institutional
PF: Public Facilities
EM-OS: Environmental Mgnt. Open Space-Private Land
CZ-A: Coastal Zone-A
CZ-B: Coastal Zone-B
CZ-C: Coastal Zone-C
CZ-D: Landfill
CZ-E: Coastal Zone-E

Motto: “Opportunity  Through Div ersity ; Unity  Through Coopera tion.”

50 0 50 100 150 200

Feet

1 inch = 200 feet µ
* See Manabe-Ow Specific Plan

Exhibit "B" 

1 of 1

 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE (1) APPROVING A FUNDING COMMITMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,000,000 TO MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC. (MID-
PEN) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 46 UNITS OF AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING, LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON LANE (APNS: 019-226-42 & 
048-211-25) WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, CONTINGENT UPON 
APPROVAL OF THEIR LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDITS 
(“LIHTC”) APPLICATION AND COMPLIANCE WITH ALL 
REQUIREMENTS FROM THE CITY’S COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DEPARTMENT; (2) AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A LOAN AGREEMENT 
WHICH WILL CONTAIN TERMS OF THE USE OF LOAN FOR THE 
PROJECT IN A FORM DEVELOPED AND  APPROVED BY CITY 
ATTORNEY; AND (3) AUTHORIZING A BUDGET APPROPRIATION OF 
$1,000,000 FROM THE CITY’S INCLUSIONARY HOUSING FUND    

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council hereby approves a funding commitment in the

amount of $1,000,000 to Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., in which they will participate, for 

the construction of the Pippin Apartments project, a 46 unit affordable apartment rental 

project, located at 56 Atkinson Lane (APNs: 019-226-42 and 048-211-25) Watsonville, 

California, contingent upon approval of their Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) 

Application, and compliance with all requirements from the City’s Community 

Development Department. 

2. That the City Council authorizes and directs the City Manager to

negotiate and execute a Loan Agreement with Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., in which 

they will participate, in the amount of $1,000,000 which will contain terms requiring Mid-

Pen to construct the project, in a form developed and approved by City Attorney to fund 

the construction of the Pippin Apartments located at 56 Atkinson Lane (APN: 019-226-

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Loan Commitment.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 3:42:02 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.2h

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



42 & 048-211-25) Watsonville, California, and all related documents necessary for the 

implementation of the Agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

3.   That the budget appropriation of $1,000,000 from the City’s Inclusionary 

Housing Fund is hereby authorized. 

4. That the City Council hereby directs the City Clerk to incorporate the Loan 

Agreement to this resolution. 

 
******************************************** 

Reso No.           (RA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\56 Atkinson Loan Commitment.docx  
ri 6/4/2014 5:53:15 PM 

2 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 31

EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

City of Watsonville 
Finance Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 4, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Ezequiel Vega, Administrative Services Director 

SUBJECT: 2014-15 PROPOSED BUDGET 

AGENDA ITEM: June 10, 2014 Joint Successor Agency & City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council and Successor Agency Board of the City of Watsonville 
receive any final changes to the Proposed 2014-15 Budget plan, (2) reviews the City’s 5-year 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and (3) adopts the Proposed 2014-15 Budget with the actions 
listed below.  

GENERAL & OTHER FUNDS 

1. That the Joint City Council, the City Council in its capacity as the Housing Successor Agency,
and the Successor Agency Board shall adopt the following resolutions:

a. Adopt  the FY 2014-15 Budget plan, providing certain transfers of funds & approve the
Five-Year Capital Improvement Program, as summarized in Exhibit 1 (below)

(amounts shown in millions)
 General 

Fund 

 Special 

Revenue 

 Debt 

Service 

 Enterprise 

Funds 

 Internal 

Service 

 Total All 

Funds 

FY 2014-05

Operating Revenue 34.3$  15.7$  4.4$  39.4$  8.8$  102.6$  

Operating Expenses (33.7) (9.7) - (29.3) (9.0) (81.7) 

Debt & Transfers Out (0.9) (3.5) (4.4) (3.5) - (12.3) 

Capital (0.4) (5.0) - (5.9) (0.1) (11.4) 

Net Results (0.6)$  (2.5)$  -$  0.7$  (0.3)$  (2.8)$  

Proj. Beginning Bal. 4.3 7.0 0.2 14.0 1.0 26.5 

Proj. Ending Fund Bal. 3.7 4.5 0.2 14.8 0.8 24.0 

City of Watsonville

Proposed Operating Budget:  Consolidated Fund Summary

2. That the City Council shall adopt the following resolutions or ordinances:
a. Establish the “Total Annual Appropriations” pursuant to State Constitution Article XIII-B

for Fiscal Year 2014-15 (Proposition 4 GANN spending limit); and

Exhibit 1 

6.3a

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

b. That the City Council adopt an ordinance to instruct the Santa Cruz County to levy and 
collect property tax on taxable property within the City of Watsonville for fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 at the levy rate of 0.077% and allocating to the 
Retirement Fund; and 

c. Adopt a resolution approving the new compensation schedule for scorekeeper salary 
range 10-56 ($10 per hour), game officials salary range 17-50 ($20 per hour), and 
senior game officials salary range 19-73 ($25 per hour) in order to comply with the 
State’s minimum wage requirements effective July 1, 2014.and rescinding resolutions 
32.84, 211-04, 213,04 and 214.04; and  

d. Adopt the resolution continuing the Voluntary Time-Off program for Fiscal Year 2014-
15 allowing employees to reduce their work week while maintaining current health 
benefit levels while prorating other benefits; and 

e. Approving award of Community and Social Service Grants in the amount of $213,516 
to various community & Social Service Agencies: and Authorizing & Directing Payment 
of Same for Fiscal Year 2014-15; and 

f. Approving and setting forth internal loan terms and conditions between the Airport Fund 
and the City’s Pooled Money Investment Account for an Internal Loan of up to 
$5,000,000 and up to 15 years authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Loan. 

 
3. City Council in its capacity as the Housing Successor Agency 

a. That the Housing Successor Agency shall adopt a resolution to authorize the 
expenditure of low and moderate-income housing funds for planning and general 
administrative costs for the purpose of producing, improving, and preserving the 
community's supply of low and moderate-income housing; and 

b. Find that the use of taxes allocated from the Watsonville 2000 Redevelopment Project 
for producing, improving and preserving the supply of low and moderate-income 
housing outside the project area will be of benefit to the project area 

 
BACKGROUND: 
As previously indicated during the Audited Financial Statements presentation to the Council on 
the February 25, 2014 meeting; the City of Watsonville has experienced financial challenges 
which have resulted in reduction of cash reserves citywide and depletion of General Fund 
reserves. The decline in cash can be seen in the chart below.  
 



Page 3 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 
 
In fact, if the Mid Year Estimate projection holds true, the General Fund reserves are projected to 
be lower at the end of FY 2013-14 by $195,000. The decline in cash and fund balance could be 
exacerbated by the possible denial of the State of California to reinstate $4.6 million of valid 
redevelopment loans (more details about this are found in the General Fund section below). 
 

Chart A 



Page 4 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 
 

While the cash and fund balances for City as whole have been decreasing over the past few 
years, more recently the situation has improved in the General Fund.  The last two fiscal years 
have seen an increase in fund balance and FY 2013-14 projections indicate the fund balance will 
have a small decrease. This is in contrast to FY 2010-11 when fund balance decreased to its low 
point of $1.599 million. It has since increased to $4.3 million and $4.5 million for FY 2012-13 and 
2013-14 respectively. This fund balance, although better than before, is lower than other cities in 
the region and is only better than the City of Salinas.  

The low General Fund, fund balance level is accentuated due to the City’s geography and the 
potential for natural disasters (flood or earthquake for example). It would be prudent to also build 
a target catastrophic reserve for sudden and unforeseen one-time events such as natural 
disasters.  These levels of reserves cannot be achieved in one year but must be built into the 
budget programmatically over time. But given the projection of City’s financial position over the 
next five fiscal years, it is highly unlikely that funding a reserve of any kind would be realistic. 
  

Chart B 



Page 5 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Salinas Scotts Valley Santa Cruz Gilroy Monterey Morgan Hill Median Watsonville

Population 2 154,848          11,670            62,041            50,660            29,003            39,420            45,040            51,881            

GF Revenues and Other Sources82,558,826$ 11,015,559$ 74,785,928$ 34,767,934$ 60,817,387$ 36,413,584$ 48,615,486$ 35,774,680$ 

GF Expenditures      83,783,389      12,377,343      70,262,655      37,167,617      61,093,689      32,919,324 49,130,653         35,591,625 

GF Fund Balance        6,608,845        3,153,238      34,728,818      23,083,186      31,208,999      10,584,217 16,833,702           4,492,786 

Fund Balance, % GF Exp 7.89% 25.48% 49.43% 62.11% 51.08% 32.15% 34.26% 12.62%

General Fund Cash      13,285,202        2,385,594      22,906,339      20,322,933      13,812,900      10,073,231      13,549,051        8,186,739 

Months Cash Available                  1.90                   2.31                   3.91                   6.56                   2.71                   3.67                   3.31                   2.76 

GF Assets      29,566,124        3,685,319      38,510,201      24,224,310      36,217,008      12,792,774 26,895,217         11,991,437 

GF Liabilities      22,957,279            532,081        3,252,101        1,117,006        5,008,009        2,208,557 2,730,329             2,886,074 

Liabilities/Assets 77.6% 14.4% 8.4% 4.6% 13.8% 17.3% 10.2% 24.1%

NP

Sources: FY 2012-13 Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for each City, if not available, FY 2011-12 data used

Notes

(1) It includes $1.1 million in one time loan in CAFR shown as due from other funds

(2) 2012 Census Data

(3) Excludes Long term portion of PERS Side Fund Loan

(NP) used FY 2011-12 for non published data as of 05/07/2014

Watsonville vs. Comparable Cities FY 2012-13

 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Every two years, the City of Watsonville adopts a comprehensive two year budget. The City 
Council adopted the last two year budget in June of 2013 and authorized appropriations for the 
first year in the two year budget plan. The second year was presented for planning purposes. 
Accordingly, budget appropriations and revenues must be approved for the second year in the 
cycle (FY 2014-15).  This new budget cycle began with the presentation of the Mid-Year Budget 
report on February 25, 2014 to the City Council.  During this presentation, the Council received 
an estimate of the current year budget activity, a preview to the FY 2014-15 budget, and a report 
on the performance of the City for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. 

The document presented tonight continues to build upon the information presented in the mid-
year and aligns with the City’s objectives delineated by the City’s 2013-2015 Strategic Plan which 
includes overall policy and strategic goals for the City and provides direction to staff on budget 
priorities.  The Strategic Plan was approved on May 14, 2013.  Today, June 10, 2014, the City 
Council is conducting its second study session on the proposed budget for the next fiscal year 
and staff is asking the City Council adopt the 2014-2015 Budget. 

 

Budget Adoption & the City Charter 
Under the Charter of the City of Watsonville, sections 1103-1105 instruct that the City Manager 
must prepare and present a proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year at least 30 days prior to 
the beginning of next fiscal year.  Accordingly, the 2014-15 Budget was presented for review May 
27, 2014 and is presented for adoption today. 
 
The Charter requires that “the City Council shall proceed to consider the proposed budget and 
may increase, decrease or omit any item or insert new items therein.”  It further requires that a 
public hearing be held, grants the authority for City Council to make any final modifications and 
then requires that prior to the beginning of the ensuing fiscal year, “the City Council shall adopt 
the budget with revisions, if any.” 

Chart C 



Page 6 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 
Charter sections 1108-1110 provides the minimum information that this budget message or 
document must contain and states: 

The budget message submitted by the City Manager to the City Council shall be 
explanatory of the budget, shall contain an outline of the proposed financial policies of the 
City for the budget year and shall describe in connection therewith the important features 
of the budget plan.  It shall set forth the reasons for salient changes from the previous year 
in cost and revenue items and shall explain any major changes in financial policy. 

 
General Fund.  

The City of Watsonville has faced serious financial challenges over the last six fiscal years. In 
three of those fiscal years, the City made a policy decision to deficit spend in the General Fund 
operations in order to preserve valuable services and jobs in the community resulting in depletion 
of General Fund reserves. In addition, the City of Watsonville along with its employees and labor 
groups agreed to several budget reductions over the last six years. These same reductions 
continue in the next fiscal year. With these efforts, services were maintained with minimal labor 
reduction. This was particularly true in the areas of public safety where no Police or Fire layoffs 
were implemented during that period of time.  

 
For  FY  2014-15,  the  operational  budget  is  balanced  but  when  adding  capital  carryovers  
and extraordinary items  the General Fund budget is presented as a potential deficit of 
approximately $572,000.  The $572,000 amount includes a planned use of fund balance of 
$322,000 due to the Manabe Ow Capital Project and the extraordinary item includes a possible 
$250,000 RDA loan repayment.  The Manabe Ow project has been an ongoing project for which 
the former RDA transferred  funds  to  the  General  Fund,  therefore,  all  expenses  for  this  
project  affect  its  fund balance.  This is a one-time cost and is a planned use of fund balance.   
 
The $250,000 RDA loan repayment is being included in the budget as a contingency as  the  
State  Department  of  Finance  (DOF)  recently  sent  a  letter  to  the  City  indicating  that they 
are contesting the reinstatement of loans in the amount of $4.6 million. If the State does not allow 
repayment of the loan from future property tax funds, then the City’s General Fund would be 
required to make the payment to reimburse the Water Fund on an annual basis.  The City is 
appealing this decision as it believes the loans were reinstated in accordance with the provisions 
of the current law.  Furthermore, the State Controller’s Office recently conducted an audit of the 
City’s RDA and in their preliminary findings indicated that they disagreed with the State 
Department of Finance in two ways: (1) they disagreed with DOF’s determination that the $4.6 
million was subject to the “clawback” provisions of State law and therefore the City should not 
have been required to repay the $4.6 million; (2) The State Controller’s Office found that the $4.6 
million was a legitimate loan under the RDA dissolution law.  We are awaiting the State 
Controller’s Office final report.   In order to address the potential imbalance created by the 
repayment of this loan the City is planning to hold a number of non-safety vacant positions 
unfilled. By holding these positions vacant, the potential deficit of $250,000 due to the RDA loan 
repayment will be eliminated. 
 
In addition to the pending RDA loan reinstatement, the City will have to plan for the upcoming 
labor negotiations with the Police Officers Association and Police Mid-Management in early fall as 



Page 7 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

their contract expires in December of 2014. The impacts of these negotiations would have to be 
considered during the Mid-Year revision to the budget which would be presented to the Council in 
February of 2015.  
 
Pension Costs. Although pension costs continue to be a financial challenge for the City, the chart 
below demonstrates pension costs have been reduced over the last couple of years. The City 
implemented a two tier system for retirement which offers lower benefits to members and 
negotiated with all labor groups to ensure employees pay a higher portion of the retirement cost 
in future years. Additionally, the State implemented the Public Employee Pension Reform Act 
(PEPRA). All these changes have produced a reduction in projected pension Costs for FY 2013-
14 and FY 2014-15.  
 

 
 

 
However, beginning with FY 2015-16, retirement costs are projected to continue increasing by 
50% over the next five years. Exhibit 4 below shows this projected increase.  
 

 0.2   0.2   0.4   0.5  
 1.0   1.0   1.1   1.2   1.3   1.3   1.3   1.3   1.3   1.3   1.1   0.7   0.8  

 0.9   1.0  

 1.7  
 2.5   2.6  

 2.9   3.0   2.7   2.7   2.7   2.7  
 1.8   2.0  

 0.3  
 0.6  

 0.8  
 1.1  

 1.6  

 1.7  
 1.9  

 2.1  
 2.2  

 2.4   2.4   2.7   2.8  

 2.0   2.3  

 -

 1.0

 2.0

 3.0

 4.0

 5.0

 6.0

 7.0

 8.0

00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15

Total Pension Costs 
Police

Misc

Fire

1.

Exhibit 3 



Page 8 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 
 

This sharp increase is due mainly to policy changes by CalPERS in the following areas: 

 Change in the retirement formula to reduce the smoothing period from a rolling 30 years to 
a fixed 25 years 

 Increase in the longevity of members  
 
Public Safety Overtime. Public Safety overtime costs continue to be a challenge for the City’s 
budget, particularly in the fire department. As indicated in the Mid-Year estimate report presented 
to the Council in February of 2014, the fire overtime budget is projected to exceed its budget by 
$816,000. This variance is mainly attributed to the unplanned absences of many firefighting 
personnel (almost one third of the firefighter workforce was out at one point due to multiple 
reasons). However, the department has taken several steps to correct this problem.  Some of 
these measures include converting Fire Department Battalion Chiefs to Division Chiefs and 
authorizing hourly Firefighter personnel to provide coverage to short shifts.  In addition, the 
department has also continued some urgency actions to limit the frequency of overtime by (1) 
limiting vacations to Firefighters first pick; (2) limiting vacations to only 3 weeks; and (3) limiting 
planned vacations to only one per shift. Although this is not an ideal approach, continuation of 
these policies are necessary to ensure solvency of the General Fund. 
 
This fiscal year (2013-14), the department implemented a limited term firefighter hiring program 
since the staffing levels in the Department were down by one third of the authorized level. 
Preparation for this program began as early as September of 2013 and has successfully been 
implemented during May of 2014. It is anticipated that this program will help the Department 
lower the high levels of overtime for the last two months of the current fiscal year and will carry 
into FY 2014-15. Therefore, the overtime budget for the fire department is recommended at 
$250,000 for next year. City staff will continue to monitor overtime levels and will implement new 
solutions if necessary. 
 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20

PERS Rates Projection (Percent of Salary) 

Police

Fire

Miscellaneous

Exhibit 4 



Page 9 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

The budget also continues with the provision of funding for social service and community service 
grants and for the acquisition of a much needed police vehicle. Funding of the police vehicles is 
considered critical because the General Fund Capital Improvement Program funding has been 
virtually non-existing over the last five fiscal years. This has left the police vehicle fleet in a 
difficult position, along with many other General Fund Capital needs. Police vehicles are 
considered particularly important as the fleet is aging and many vehicles have surpassed their 
anticipated useful life.  

On a positive note, no additional reductions are proposed for FY 2014-15 due to the continued 
labor concessions negotiated between the City’s labor force and the City.  

 

Increase in minimum wage. The minimum wage in California is set to increase from $8 to $9 per 
hour effective July 1, 2014. Even though the City is a charter City and is only required to follow 
the Federal minimum wage standard, the City has traditionally followed the State’s higher 
standard to compensate its employees so the budget accounts for this change in the minimum 
wage. 
 
This change will affect the Parks and Community Services Department, the Library, Public Works, 
and the Police Department. In order to comply with the change in the minimum wage, the Parks 
and Community Services Department will have to make changes to compensation for three part-
time employee classifications assigned to officiate sports leagues: scorekeepers, officials and 
senior officials. Scorekeepers currently earn $10 per game, officials earn $20 per game and 
senior officials earn $25 per game. Officials work multiple games a night and games usually take 
longer than one hour to complete. As a result, a scorekeeper who is currently paid $10 per game 
may actually earn less per hour than required by the new minimum wage. As a result, it is 
recommended that scorekeepers be paid $10 per hour rather than $10 per game. In order to 
keep the unit of pay consistent among all sports officials, it is also recommended that officials be 
paid $20 per hour and senior officials be paid $25 per hour rather than the current $20 and $25 
per game, respectively.  
 
Ongoing Salary and Position Reductions. All miscellaneous employees (including Management 
and Mid-Management bargaining groups) are currently paid for 36 hours per week which results 
in a 10% salary reduction beginning in FY 2009 with the exception of a few employees in the 
Solid Waste division. In addition, step increases have been frozen for all Confidential, SEIU, 
Public Works, Management and Mid-Management positions and employees will contribute the full 
7% employee share towards retirement beginning with FY 2014-15. 
 
Due to the ongoing economic crisis, when a position is vacated due to attrition, retirement, or 
layoff, the City first determines if there is a critical need to fill the position or if there are other cost-
saving mechanisms that can be used to continue providing the service.  In many cases 
throughout the City due to positions being eliminated or consolidated, this has resulted in an 
internal promotion, reclassification, or temporary upgrade as required by MOUs and the City’s 
Personnel Rules and Regulations.  While this may result in a slightly higher salary for the person 
promoted, it results in overall savings to the City.  Often, the promoted employee is paid less than 
the predecessor at either a lower classification or lower step and the position they vacate is often 
then eliminated rather than being filled.  Also, some positions are eliminated through 
consolidation.  



Page 10 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 
Revenues.  Revenues are being budgeted at similar levels from the original budget with slight 
increases in sales tax and property taxes while all other revenue groups remain flat or are 
decreasing. As explained in previous presentations, sales tax is the General Fund’s largest 
resource at approximately 20% of total revenue.  It also tends to be the most volatile of the City’s 
revenues as it changes in accordance with some key indicators as consumer confidence and 
inflation.  However, as shown in Chart 3 below, annual receipts over the last few years are 
proving to be more static and not representative of the major swings in earlier years. This trend 
could be attributed to the City’s diverse industries which insulate the City from large swings 
experienced by other cities with over dependence in one industry, such as retail or auto sales.   
 
 

  
 
Capital Improvement Plan 

As funding is limited in the General Fund and can barely cover ongoing costs, City staff is not 
recommending new projects or equipment acquisition except for funding in the amount of $37,500 
for one police vehicle.  

In the Enterprise Funds, the City has worked on a Capital Improvement Plan that identifies the 
most pressing needs only, focusing on making sure ongoing revenues can fund both operations 
and capital needs without tapping into their existing cash reserves. The capital improvement plan 
presented with this budget meets those requirements. Exhibit 6 shows a summary for the 
Enterprise Funds and the funding for capital projects. A detailed list of capital projects can be 
found on page 137 of the budget book. 

 

Enterprise Funds 

Exhibit 6 below shows a summary of the proposed budget for the Enterprise Funds. Each Fund, 
with the exception of the Solid Waste Fund, has been budgeted with operating revenues 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

Sales Tax Trend 

Sales Tax

Exhibit 5  



Page 11 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

exceeding operating and capital expenses. The Budgeted Sewer Fund’s operating revenues of 
$11.8 million would exceed the total expenses by $140,000. The Budgeted Water Fund’s 
operating revenues are budgeted at $13.8 million and would exceed the total expenses by $2.3 
million. Water revenues are being budgeted to a higher level than normal as the drought 
conditions are projected to continue into next fiscal year. However, in order to be conservative, 
expenses are budgeted much lower in case the drought ends or the demand for water decreases 
as a result of policy decisions at the local or State levels or a decrease on consumer demand. 

 

SEWER WATER AIRPORT SOLID 

WASTE

710 720 730 740

$ $ $ $

FISCAL YEAR 2014/15

PROJECTED RESOURCES 2014-15

Revenues 11,819,002     13,618,515      3,942,723    10,050,654    

Transfers In -                    250,000          -                 -                   

RESOURCES 11,819,002     13,868,515      3,942,723    10,050,654    

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 2014-15

Operations 9,401,465       8,978,038       2,497,543    8,258,849      

Capital 200,000         635,000          165,000       1,658,000      

Capital Carryover 1,353,207       600,212          860,000       443,500         

Transfers Out 153,382         24,297            5,056          191,157         

Debt Service 570,490         1,313,726       415,124       807,605         

USES 11,678,544     11,551,273      3,942,723    11,359,111    

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES - 

SURPLUS (SHORTFALL) 140,458         2,317,242       (0)                (1,308,457)     

PROJECTED FUND BALANCE/CASH BALANCES 7/1/14 4,335,737       3,965,636       300             2,852,659      

PROJECTED FUND BALANCE/CASH BALANCES 7/1/15 4,476,195       6,282,878       300             1,544,202      

FUNDS NUMBERS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

 

 

The Airport’s revenues are budgeted to meet the expenses for the fiscal year. There are a few 
important items in the Airport’s budget which are different from prior years.  

 The Airport’s debt for the construction of new hangars has been fully paid in FY 2013-14,  

 The Airport’s audited negative cash balance at the end of FY 2012-13 was $4.69 million 

 In accordance with update estimates the cash balance at the end of FY 2013-14 is 
estimated to remain unchanged from the prior year. 
 

Although this is an improvement over previous years the Airport’s total negative cash balance for 
remains a big concern. Accordingly, Airport Management has taken several measures to improve 
its long term financial situation. In early 2013, the Airport Manager performed a comparison of the 

Exhibit 6 



Page 12 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Municipal Airport Fee Schedule relative to airports in the Bay Area. The results indicated our fees 
were on the low end of the spectrum in terms of average price per square foot. 

To address this challenge Airport Management is proposed the following actions which were 
approved by Council: 

a) Implemented a phased rate adjustment of twenty-four percent over the next three 
years, 2013- 2016. 

b) Implemented an immediate 7% rate adjustment for all T-hangars, Box Hangars and 
Corporate Hangars. 

c) The 7% consisted of an approximately 2% CPI increase and a 5% rate adjustment. 
d) The increase was effective March 1, 2013 through the end of 2013-2014. 
e) Effective July 1, 2014 the rate adjustment is CPI plus a rate adjustment not exceeding 

8% total increase. 
f) Effective July 1, 2015 the rate adjustment is CPI plus a rate adjustment not to exceed 

9% total increase. 
g) Effective July 1, 2016 the rate adjustment reverts to the current CPI percentage. 
h) The effective rate over the three-year period is estimated to be approximately 24%. 

 
In accordance with Airport Management analysis, these changes would result in the following: 
1. The average rental rate per square foot will place the Municipal Airport at the mid-point of rates 
charged by Bay Area airports, of like configurations, within 50 miles of the airport. 
2. Over the three-year period the total hangar income revenue will begin at approximately 
$696,000 in 2013 and increase to over $895,000 in 2016. 
3. Transient parking revenues will also increase over the same period from approximately 
$38,000 per year to $44,000 per year. 
4. The proposed changes addresses the fact that some fees are inaccurate and must be 
corrected, others are substantially underpriced and do not reflect the appropriate value/price of 
service. 
 
In addition to the hangar rates (the largest revenue contributor) the Airport has also revisited a 
number of leases and moved to insure fair market values are achieved. In most cases monthly 
rates were increased; i.e. United Flight, Diamond D and Sage Instruments each lease saw an 
increase in 2013. 
 
In conjunction with these revenue enhancement measures, and in order to address the negative 
cash balance in the Airport, staff is proposing the Council adopts a resolution authorizing and 
setting forth the terms and conditions between the Airport Fund and the City’s pooled money 
investment account for an internal loan of up to $5,000,000 with the interest rate set at the City’s 
12-month average pooled money portfolio rate for 15 years. 
 
Traditionally, the City has invested funds through private placement loans or on the bond market.  
However, City staff has strategically planned for the opportunities to effectively finance this and 
other prior loans using the City’s pooled money investment account.  This action establishes a 
limit to the Airport’s negative cash balance and a timeline to get this cash balance into positive 
territory while at the same time providing for a safe rate of return for the City’s pooled money 
account higher than other investment opportunities. 
 
The terms of the internal loan (investment) would be as follows: 



Page 13 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 The Airport Fund would borrow up to $5,000,000 to bring its current negative cash balance 
into positive territory.  

 The interest rate would tied to the 12-month average portfolio rate with a cap of 3.00% 

 Term would be 15 years with payments due at least one each June 30th 

 No pre-payment penalty or reserve requirement 

 No external insurance or reporting requirements. 
 
The annual interest rate will be adjusted each July according to the City’s prior 12-month period’s 
average pooled money portfolio rate.  This will allow the portfolio to achieve its earnings target 
with a maximum ceiling slightly above the current average 2.84% rate of a 10-year US Agency 
and US Treasury note.  Prior portfolio loans included within the rate a 0.5% administrative rate 
payable to the General Fund.  However, since payer and recipient of the administrative rate are 
both the General Fund, it was excluded from this loan. 
 
The City’s Investment Policy allows the City to invest in such loans in excess of a 5-year period 
with City Council authorization.  The pooled money account was recently used during 2010 to 
issue internal loans of $2.8 million and $1.3 million to the Water Enterprise Fund and the Airport 
Enterprise Fund to pay off their respective external debt issues and for the refinancing of the 
General Fund side fund loans for Police and Fire pension costs in 2011.  This proposed action 
will leave sufficient capacity available within the pooled money account for this investment.  With 
current yields at historical lows, the pooled money account will retain investments as they mature 
in order to payoff other debt issues held by the City to improve yields and lower the City’s interest 
costs.   
 
Although other external loan options were explored, the banks and other financial consultants 
expressed this is an unusual situation and it would be difficult for their institution to finance such a 
loan. Therefore, an internal loan would be the most feasible. 
 
The Solid Waste Fund’s operating revenues are budgeted at lower levels than overall expenses. 
This is necessary to catch up with some of the many capital improvement purchases which have 
been delayed over the prior years. However, in FY 2015-16 this fund will plan to spend less in 
capital items to ensure working capital can be improved the following fiscal year.  

 
Library Fund 
The Library fund operating revenues are estimated at the same levels as the operating 
expenditures. However, with the inclusion of carryover and new capital projects, the fund is 
budgeted to dip into its reserves. Even with the approval of these capital projects, the Library is 
still projected to have a cash reserve of approximately eight hundred thousand dollars at the end 
of the current fiscal year. This cash balance represents a working capital of 2 months. 
 
Self-Insurance Fund.  
The Self-Insurance fund has three different components: Liability Insurance, Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance, and Health Insurance.   
 
The Health Insurance activity captures the costs and revenues for the provision of health benefits 
to City employees. As the Council may recall, the City transitioned to a new Health Insurance 



Page 14 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Fund at the beginning of the FY 2013-14. This transition was necessary as the health self-
insurance model for providing health benefits had produced adverse financial results for the City 
during FY 2010-11 and 2011-12.  As a result the City entered into a pooled insurance model with 
CSAC EIA and created a new the Health Insurance fund to track the revenues and expenses 
under this new model.   Accordingly, the new fund is budgeted to align operating revenues with 
operating expenses.  The Liability Insurance and Workers compensation components are also 
budgeted to match operating revenues and expenses.  
 
Gann Appropriation Limit 
In 1979 and 1990, California Voters passed Proposition 4 and 111 respectively setting the 
process for limiting the amount of appropriations a State and Local government agency could 
expend during any one year.  Each year, the City must adopt a resolution setting the subsequent 
year’s appropriation limit and ensure that the City’s appropriations are below this limit.   
 
The appropriations limit for any fiscal year is equal to the previous year’s limit, adjusted for the 
annual percentage change in population and the annual percentage change in either of two 
allowed demographic factors; (1) California per-capita personal income or (2) growth in non-
residential property assessed valuation.  An agency can alternate between either of these two 
later factors year to year.   
 
As shown in the Table below, the City continues to be far below the legal limit of appropriations 
and is in full compliance with this State statute, as demonstrated in the remaining appropriation 
capacity of $93.6 million for Fiscal Year 2014-15. 
 
Property Tax Levy Rate 
As provided by the City’s Charter, annually the City must set the levy rate and instruct the County 
of Santa Cruz to levy, collect and remit to the Retirement Fund proceeds to support the General 
Fund for its employment retirement costs.  The Charter states: 

There shall be levied and collected…(2) a tax sufficient to meet all obligations of the 
City to the State Employees' Retirement System, or other system for the retirement of 
City employees, due and unpaid or to become due during the ensuing fiscal year 
(Section 1122, b2). 
 

In the November 2006 general election, the voters of the City of Watsonville placed a cap on the 
annual levy of 0.077% (or $77 per $100,000 in assessed valuation) for the fiscal year beginning 
on July 1, 2007.   This was done in tandem with voter approval for a ¼-cent increase in the City’s 
Sales Tax rate in which the intent was to not impact the General Fund’s ability to provide critical 
public services.  The annual levy rate cannot exceed the 0.077% cap nor the retirement program 
costs of the General Fund. 
 

Voluntary Time Off (VTO) Program 
The City Council has approved and offered employees in the past years a voluntary time off 
program (May 2009, February 2010, April 2010, April 2011, June 2012, and June 2013). The next 
sections describe the voluntary time off program that is set to expire on July 6, 2014. 
 



Page 15 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

The program was first introduced in 2009 during the first year of concessions to encourage 
additional salary savings.  Between seven and twelve employees have participated in the 
program each year, saving the City an estimated $70,000 - $80,000 annually.   This program 
allows employees to voluntarily reduce their work week hours beyond the current level of 36 
hours per week and still maintain seniority and health benefits as if they were a full time 
employee.  All other benefits and accruals are pro-rated based on the number of hours worked.  
This program is offered at no additional cost to the City.  
 
Participation in the program must be approved by the department and City Administration to 
ensure that participation will not increase overtime or negatively impact workload or service 
demands.   
 
As we continue to be in financially difficult times, it is recommended that this program be renewed 
for Fiscal Year 2014-15. All salary savings will be applied towards preserving positions and limit 
additional reductions. Savings for this program have already been incorporated into the proposed 
budget figures presented to the City Council. 
 
Measure G Budget 
Measure G is included in the recommended FY 2014-15 budget as a contingency if the voters 
chose to pass the measure in the June 3rd election. The budget includes 9 months of 
expenditures and revenues to fund public safety services, $1,260,000 for police and $840,000 for 
fire.  If approved the voters, measure G revenue would be effective September 1, 2014 and would 
fund six new firefighting personnel and firefighting equipment plus seven new police officers along 
with updated equipment to fight crime in Watsonville. The budget document currently reflects a 12 
month budge for this measure so Exhibit C attached to this staff report corrects the budget to 
reflect 9 months of funding for this special fund. 
 
Updates to Questions Asked by City Council 
Ramsay Park Soccer Field Lights. Council Directed Staff to obtain an estimate for the installation 
of a soft light system (field is adjacent to sloughs). The rough estimate for installing 8 light poles is 
$300,000. The cost includes 8 lights, meter and controls, estimated cost for PG&E, design fees, 
and construction contingency. This does not include the costs for permits or environmental 
reviews. It those costs are added, the total cost could escalate to $320,000. 
 
Debt Service.  The City Charter indicates the City shall not incur an indebtedness evidenced by 
general obligations bonds which shall in the aggregate exceed the sum of fifteen (15%) per cent 
of the total assessed valuation for purpose of City taxation of all the real and personal property 
within the City, exclusive of any indebtedness that has been or may hereafter be incurred for the 
purpose of acquiring, construction, extending or maintaining municipal utilities for which purpose 
a further indebtedness may be incurred to buy the issuance of bonds, subject only to the 
provisions of the State Constitution and of the Charter. 
 

No bonded indebtedness which shall constitute a general obligation of the City may be created 
unless authorized by the affirmative votes of two-thirds (2/3) of the electors voting on such 
proposition at any election at which the question is submitted to the electors and unless in full 
compliance with the provisions of the State Constitution and of this Charter. 
 



Page 16 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

The City’s long-term debt obligations are repaid by the following funds: Revenue Bonds from the 
Sewer, Solid Waste, and Water Enterprise Funds; Tax Allocation Bonds from the Successor 
Agency Debt Service Fund; notes payable from the General Fund, Successor Agency Debt 
Service, Community Development Block Grant, the Airport, Fire Impact Fee and Solid Waste 
Enterprise Funds. For more details about debt service please refer to Exhibit B attached to this 
staff report. This same information is normally attached to the budget book on a biennial basis. 
 
Youth Programs. Youth, 16 years and older,  will be hired and trained  to assist in organizing, 
planning, and implementing a wide range of programs that foster human development, promote 
health and wellness, provide recreational experiences and strengthen safety and security through 
activities, programs and special events.  Funding for this program is budgeted at $12,316 for FY 
2014-15.  
 
Youth will work for a period of 6 weeks and for approximately 25 hours per week. Youth will gain 
knowledge in basic job readiness skills, interpersonal communication skills, outreach strategies, 
program planning, working as a team member, practices and methods that engage participants in 
activities that promote growth and learning and implementing recreational activities. For more 
details regarding this program, please refer to Exhibit D attached to this staff report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The Proposed 2014-15 Operational Budget is balanced for all funds.  However, when capital 
expenditures are added, some funds are using their cash reserves to fund these capital projects.  
Concessions with all labor groups continue to help balancing the budget, particularly in the 
general fund.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may direct staff to present different alternatives for the budget or make changes 
to the current recommendation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1 Proposed 2014-15 Budget document 
2 Exhibit B: City Debt 
3 Exhibit C: Measure G Budget 
4 Exhibit D: Youth Program Guidelines 
5 Exhibit E: Budget Summary by Fund 

 
 

cc: City Attorney 



Page 17 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Exhibit B 

LONG-TERM DEBT BONDED DEBT 
 

City Charter 

The City shall not incur an indebtedness evidenced by general obligations bonds which shall in the 

aggregate exceed the sum of fifteen (15%) per cent of the total assessed valuation for purpose of City 

taxation of all the real and personal property within the City, exclusive of any indebtedness that has been or 

may hereafter be incurred for the purpose of acquiring, construction, extending or maintaining municipal 

utilities for which purpose a further indebtedness may be incurred by the issuance of bonds, subject only to 

the provisions of the State Constitution and of the Charter. 

 

No bonded indebtedness which shall constitute a general obligation of the City may be created unless 

authorized by the affirmative votes of two-thirds (2/3) of the electors voting on such proposition at any 

election at which the question is submitted to the electors and unless in full compliance with the provisions 

of the State Constitution and of this Charter. 

 

City Debt 

The City’s long-term debt obligations are repaid by the following funds: Revenue Bonds from the Sewer, 

Solid Waste, and Water Enterprise Funds; Tax Allocation Bonds from the Successor Agency Debt Service 

Fund; notes payable from the General Fund, Successor Agency Debt Service, Community Development 

Block Grant, the Airport, Fire Impact Fee and Solid Waste Enterprise Funds.  

      Special  Special Purpose 

   Amount Due  General Revenue Trust Enterprise  

Obligations  as of 7/01/14  Funds Funds  Fund  Funds 

Revenue secured debts $30,586,332     $30,586,332 

Tax allocation bonds 19,075,000 $19,075,000  

Limited obligation bonds       379,000     $379,000 

Debt payable  3,527,610 2,735,104  792,506 

Notes payable 3,223,744 $595,216 1,705,000  923,528   

Total $56,791,686 $592,216 $4,819,104 $19,998,528 $31,378,838  

 

Analysis of City Debt 
The City is legally limited to issuing no more than 3.75 percent of its assessed value according to State law.  The City’s assessed value is $3,247,264,000; 

therefore, the City’s legal debt limit is $116 million.    

      

The City’s total debt is much less than its legal limit because the City has issued debt sparingly. The City 

looks to issue debt only when an identifiable revenue source is present.  Therefore, the major debt issues 

are funded as follows: 

 

 

 



Page 18 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Debt      Repayment Source 

2011 Airport Debt   Enterprise Revenue (Airport) 

2010 Water Debt   Enterprise Revenue (Water) 

2009 Refunding Revenue Bonds Enterprise Revenue (Sewer, Solid Waste) 

2007 Revenue Bonds   Enterprise Revenue (Water) 

Various Assessment Debt  Assessment District Property Tax Bonds 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds

     Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund  

Notes Payables General Fund,           Community Development Block Grant Funds, Redevelopment 

Property Tax Trust Fund, Fire Impact Fees 

All the above issues are included in the City’s financing and operating plan.  The repayment of debt should 

not adversely affect operations. 

A. Revenue Bonds 
 

Revenue bonds constitute special obligations of the City solely secured by a lien on and pledge of the net 

revenues of the water, sewer and solid waste systems.  The revenue bonds are collateralized be the revenue 

of the water, sewer, and solid waste systems and the various special funds established by the bond 

ordinances.  

 

Revenue debts payable at July 1, 2014 consist of the following individual issues: 

        Amount 

             $ 

$27,345,000, 2007 water revenue bonds 

due in annual principal installments 

ranging from 800,000 to 7,415,000 through 

May 15, 2037, interest rate ranges from 4.0%  

to 5.0%            27,345,000 

 

$3,491,786, 2009 sewer revenue refunding bonds 

due in annual principal installments of $570,490  

through May 2016, interest rate of 4.10%        1,084,819 

 

$5,444,243, 2009 solid waste revenue refunding  

bonds due in annual principal installments ranging  

from $216,188 to $754,883 through May 2016, 

interest rate ranges from 4.10% to 4.3%       2,156,513 



Page 19 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 

Total Revenue Bonds       31,791,883 

 

 

The respective amounts due from each of the revenue bonds, with the applied interest are as follows: 

 

2007 Water Revenue Bonds 

Maturity  

  Date 

May 15, Principal  Interest  Debt Service 

 $     $   $ 

2015     1,294,059  1,294,059 

2016     1,294,059  1,294,059 

2017   800,000   1,294,059  2,094,059 

2018    840,000   1,253,259  2,093,259 

2019   880,000   1,210,419  2,090,419 

2020    915,000   1,175,219  2,090,219 

2021    955,000   1,137,704  2,092,704 

             2022    995,000  1,097,116 2,092,116   

  2023    1,040,000  1,053,585   2,093,585 

2024                    1,090,000          1,001,585 2,091,585               

2025  1,145,000    947,085  2,092,085 

2026   1,195,000    895,560  2,090,560 

2027    1,250,000    841,785  2,091,785 

2028    1,305,000    785,535  2,090,535 

2029*    1,370,000    724,200  2,094,200 

         2030*  1,435,000  659,125 2,094,125    

        2031  1,500,000       590,963    2,090,963 

2032*         1,570,000           523,463 2,093,463 

2033    1,645,000    448,888  2,093,888 

2034*    1,720,000    370,750  2,090,750 

            2035*  1,805,000  284,750 2,089,750    

        2036*  1,900,000       194,500    2,094,500 

2037          1,990,000           99,500 2,089,500 

   27,345,000    19,177,168 46,522,168 

 * Principal applied to a sinking fund in years 2015 and 2016 
  

 2009 Sewer  

 Refunding Bonds 

Fiscal Year     Principal      Interest Debt Service 

       $         $   $  

       2015    531,404   39,086  570,490 

       2016    553,415   17,075  570,490 

 Total 1,084,819     56,161 1,140,980 

 

 2009 Solid Waste  



Page 20 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 Refunding Bonds 

Fiscal Year   Principal         Interest  Debt Service 

$     $   $ 

2015   724,470   83,135  807,605 

2016   754,883  52,722  807,605 

2017   216,188  26,819  243,006  

2018   225,584  17,423  243,006 

2019   235,388  2,557  237,946 

 Total            2,156,513  182,656  2,339,169 

 

B. Tax allocation bonds 
 

In June of 2004 the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville issued tax allocation bonds 

in three series as follows: 

1. Series A       -   $19,000,000  

2. Series B-1    -     $2,310,000 

3. Series B-2    -     $4,635,000 

 

2004 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series A 

A portion of the proceeds from the issue was used to finance a portion of the costs of design and 

construction of the Civic Center Plaza and Parking Structure project in downtown Watsonville.  Interest 

rates for the Series A bonds range from 4% to 5% with principal payments ranging from $265,000 to 

$1,050,000 through fiscal year 2034. 

 

Part of the proceeds from the 2004 Series A bonds were used to advance refund the 1993 Tax Allocation 

Bonds on August 1, 2004, their earliest scheduled redemption date.  An Escrow Agreement was established 

and the above funds and certain other available funds were deposited in an escrow fund which was used to 

redeem the 1993 Bonds in full, including a redemption premium on such date.   

 

The 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series A have the following redemption schedule: 

Maturity   

  Date 

September 1     Principal      Interest Debt Service 

       $         $   $ 

       2014     675,000   665,598 1,340,598 

       2015     700,000   637,398 1,337,398 

       2016      730,000   607,820 1,336,820 

  2017     760,000   573,843 1,333,843 

       2018     795,000   538,458 1,333,458 

       2019     830,000   500,668 1,330,668 

       2020     870,000   460,500 1,330,500 

  2021     910,000   418,225 1,328,225 

       2022     955,000   373,931 1,328,931 

       2023   1,000,000   326,875 1,326,875 

       2024   1,050,000   276,250 1,326,250 

  2025     400,000   240,000 640,000 



Page 21 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

  2026     415,000    219,625 634,625 

       2027     440,000   198,250 638,250 

       2028     460,000   175,750 635,750 

 2029      485,000   152,125 637,125 

  2030     505,000   127,375  632,375 

       2031*     535,000   101,375 636,375 

  2032*     560,000   74,000 634,000 

  2033*     585,000   45,375 630,375 

      2034*     615,000   15,375 630,375 

  Total 14,200,000     6,803,912 21,003,912 

 

* Principal applied to a sinking fund in years 2032 to 2035. 

 

2004 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series B-1 

 

A portion of the proceeds from this issue was used to finance certain low and moderate income housing 

capital improvements within the former Redevelopment Project Area.  Interest rates for the Series B-1 

bonds range from 4% to 5% with principal payments ranging from $60,000 to $170,000 through fiscal year 

2025. 

 

The 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series B-1 have the following redemption schedule: 

 

Maturity   

  Date 

September 1     Principal      Interest Debt Service 

       $         $   $ 

     2014    110,000   68,416 178,416 

       2015    115,000   63,718 178,718 

       2016     120,000   58,634 178,634 

  2017     125,000   53,181 178,181 

       2018     130,000   47,444 177,444 

       2019     135,000   41,397 179,397 

       2020      140,000   34,950 174,950 

     2021     150,000   28,073 178,073 

  2022     155,000   20,625 175,625 

       2023   165,000   12,625 177,625 

       2024   170,000   4,250 174,250 

      Total 1,405,000    364,887 1,769,887 

2004 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series B-2 

 

A portion of the proceeds from this issue was used to finance certain low and moderate income housing 

capital improvements within the Redevelopment Project Area.  Interest rates for the Series B-1 bonds range 

from 3% to 6.25% with principal payments ranging from $100,000 to $380,000 through fiscal year 2025. 

 

The 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series B-2 have the following redemption schedule: 

Maturity   

  Date 



Page 22 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

September 1     Principal      Interest Debt Service 

       $         $   $ 

  2014    210,000  186,438 396,438 

       2015*     225,000   174,175 399,175 

       2016*     235,000   160,375 395,375 

  2017*     250,000   145,825 395,825 

       2018*     265,000   130,375 395,375 

       2019*     280,000   114,025 394,025 

       2020**    300,000   96,250 396,250 

  2021**    315,000   77,031 392,031 

       2022**    335,000   56,719 391,719 

       2023**  360,000   35,000 395,000 

       2024**  380,000   11,875 391,875 

      Total 3,470,000    1,677,816 5,147,816 

   Principal applied to a sinking fund in years 2015 to 2020. 

 ** Principal applied to a sinking fund in years 2020 to 2024. 

 

C. Limited Obligation Bonds 

 

Limited obligation bonds consist of bonds issued for improvements in special assessment districts and are 

secured by liens against the assessed property.  The City has agreed to establish certain reserve funds and to 

act as agent for property owners with respect to payment of debt service.  In the event of delinquency, 

however, the government is not obligated to retire bonds from available funds or to bring legal action 

against property holders.  

 

Due to Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 6, the City must include its assessment 

bonds payable within the Government-wide Statements.  However, the City of Watsonville has incurred no 

financial liability due to Assessment District Bonds.  In the case of default, the City has authority to 

foreclose on the delinquent account. 

 

Limited obligation bonds payable at July 1, 2014 consist of the following: 

                                                                                                     Amount 

$144,956 Beck Street assessment district      $ 

bonds due in annual principal installments 

ranging from $956 to $14,000 through 

September 2014, interest rate is 6.00%.      14,000 

 

$104,456 Progress Drive assessment district 

bonds due in annual principal installments 

ranging from $456 to $11,000 through 

September 2015, interest rate is 6.25%.     21,000 

 

$55,944 Watson Drive assessment district 

bonds due in annual principal installments 

ranging from $944 to $4,000 through 

September 2017, interest rate is 6.0%.     12,000 

 



Page 23 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

$738,448 Atkins Lane assessment district 

bonds due in annual principal installments 

ranging from $944 to $4,000 through 

September 2020, interest rate is 6.0%.     294,000 

 

$100,022 7
th

, 8
th

 & 9th Street assessment district 

bonds due in annual principal installments 

ranging from $5,000 to $10,000 through 

September 2017, interest rate is 6.0%.     30,000 

 

Total limited obligation bonds payable at 

July 1, 2014        379,000 

 

 

The annual requirements to amortize all limited obligation bonds outstanding as of July 1, 2014 are as 

follows: 

 

 Fiscal Year Principal   Interest  Debt Service 

$    $  $ 

 2015  89,000   23,570 112,570 

 2016   76,000   18,339 94,339 

 2017   65,000   13,840 78,840 

 2018   51,000   9,685 60,685 

 2019   49,000   6,370 55,370 

 2020   49,000   3,185 52,185 

    Total   379,000   74,989  453,989 

 

 

D. Debt  
 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1998 - On November 15, 2010, the government issued a 

$3,084,944 City Loan with an interest rate of 3.39% to refund $3,715,000 of outstanding 1998 Series A 

Water Revenue Bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.74% to 6.75%.  The refunding was undertaken to 

reduce the total future debt service payments and resulted in an economic gain of $153,697 and a reduction 

of $721,053 in future debt service payments. 

 

2010 City Water Loan 

 

 Water Debt 

Fiscal Year Principal  Interest  Debt Service 

 $     $   $ 

       2015    537,592   19,667  557,259 

2016   254,914   2,164 257,079 

Total    792,506      21,831   814,337 

 

 

 



Page 24 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Debt payable 

On April 13, 2012, the government entered into a commercial term loan with Santa Cruz County Bank to 

finance the cost of installing solar panels through the City of Watsonville.  The total amount for which the 

government is obligated under the loan is $3,014,285.  Installation of the solar panels was completed during 

the 2012/13 fiscal year.  

          

Interest rate for the loan is 5.29% with principal payments ranging from $135,947 to $282,376 through 

fiscal year 2027. 

 

The annual requirements to amortize the loan outstanding as of July 1, 2014  

is as follows: 

 

 Fiscal Year     Principal      Interest Debt Service 

       $         $   $ 

   2015   150,911  142,717 293,628 

       2016   159,000   134,628 293,628 

       2017     167,522   126,106 293,628 

  2018    176,501   117,127 293,628 

       2019    185,962   107,666 293,628 

 2020  195,929   97,699 293,628 

 2021  206,431   87,197 293,628 

 2022  217,495 76,133 293,628 

 2023  229,153 64,475 293,628 

 2024         241,436   52,192 293,628 

 2025    254,377   39,251 293,628 

 2026  268,011 25,617 293,628 

 2027   282,376   11,252 293,628 

 Total 2,735,104   1,081,757 3,816,861 

 

E.  Notes payable 

Successor Agency’s Note payable to City’s Water Utility Fund 

 

The former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville discovered an overpayment of tax increment 

allocations in prior years by the County of Santa Cruz.  The Agency borrowed $1,005,236 from the City’s 

Water Utility Fund to pay back the County.  The loan will be paid back over 20 years with an interest rate 

of 2.5% for the first 5 years and restate each year after that to the average annual rate of the City pooled 

investments. 

 

Minimum future installment payments for the note payable consist of the following:     

 

 Fiscal Year Principal   Interest  Debt Service 

$    $  $ 

 2015  48,015   15,906  63,921 

 2016  49,229   14,692  63,921 

 2017   50,474   13,447 63,921 

 2018   51,751   12,170 63,921 



Page 25 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 2019   53,060   10,861 63,921 

 2020   54,401     9,520  63,921   

 2021   55,777     8,144 63,921 

 2022   57,188     6,773 63,921 

 2023   58,634     5,257 63,921 

 2024   60,116     3,805 63,921 

 2025   61,637     2,284 63,921  

 2026   57,869        726 58,595 

    Total     658,151           103,578  761,729 

 

Successor Agency’s Notes payable to County of Santa Cruz: 

 

In 2009, the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville discovered an overpayment of tax 

increment allocations in prior years by the County of Santa Cruz.  The Agency and County agreed on a pay 

back agreement for the County’s portion of the tax increment of $406,764.   The note will be paid back 

over 10 year’s interest free.  

 

Minimum future installment payments for the note payable consist of the following:     

Fiscal 

Year Ended 

June 30,       Payment 

    $ 

 2015 49,985 

 2016 51,484 

 2017 53,029 

 2018 54,619 

 2019 56,260 

 Total payments 265,377  

 

Minimum future installment payments for the note payable consist of the following:     

Section 108 Note Payable 

 

The City entered into contract with the Secretary of U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

The contract is for a loan guarantee assistance under Section 108 of the Housing and Community 

Development Act of 1974, as amended, 42 U.S.C. #5308.   The promissory note, in the amount of 

$2,530,000, is for the Downtown Parking Garage Project.  The note is to be repaid with future Community 

Development Block Grant funds over a period of twenty years at an interest rate of 5.18%.   

 

 

The annual requirements to amortize the Section 108 note outstanding as of July 1, 2014 are as follows: 

  



Page 26 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

             Fiscal 

 Year Ended 

June 30,     Principal      Interest Debt Service 

       $         $   $ 

    2014 110,000   88,442  198,442 

        2015   109,000   82,819  191,819 

        2016   114,000   76,935  190,935 

        2017   117,000   70,674  187,674 

   2018   121,000   64,087  185,087 

     2019   126,000   57,126  183,126 

        2020   133,000   49,717  182,717 

        2021   140,000   41,820  181,820 

      2022   147,000   33,439  180,439 

        2023   155,000   24,536  179,536 

        2024  163,000   15,083 178,083 

       2025  170,000   5,109 175,109 

      Total 1,705,000 734,346 2,439,346 

 

PG&E  

The City entered into an agreement with Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) to retrofit the City’s 

owned street lights with qualified energy saving lights.  The note is to be repaid with future energy savings 

over a period of ten years at an interest rate of 0%.   

 

. 

The annual requirements to amortize the PG&E note outstanding as of July 1, 2014 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year    Principal 

  $ 

 2015 30,298 

 2016 30,298 

 2017 30,298 

 2018 30,298 

 2019 30,298 

 2020 30,298 

 2021 15,149 

 Total 196,937 

 

State of California Energy Commission  

 

 

The City entered into an agreement with State of California Energy Commission to retrofit the City’s 

owned street lights with qualified energy saving lights.  The note is to be repaid with future energy savings 

over a period of eight years at an interest rate of 3%.   

 

The annual requirements to amortize the State of California Energy Commission note outstanding as of 

July 1, 2014 are as follows: 

 

 



Page 27 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Fiscal Year    Principal  Interest Debt Service 

  $   $  $ 

 2015 56,375   11,531 67,906 

 2016 58,053   9,852 67,905 

 2017 59,834   8,071 67,905 

 2018 61,642   6,263 67,905 

 2019 63,505   4,400 67,905 

 2020 65,420   2,486 67,906 

 2021 33,450   503 33,953 

 Total 398,279   43,106 441,385 

 

  



Page 28 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Exhibit C 
 

 
  

Fund Division Object Project Account 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15

Final Original Proposed

Measure G Fire Account Number Title Budget Budget Budget Difference

$ $ $ $

    REVENUES:

310 526 5069 00000 MEASURE G - FIRE -                    -                   840,000     840,000     

Total Revenues -                    -                   840,000     840,000     

    EXPENDITURES:

310 526 7011 00000 REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES -                    -                   478,714 478,714     

310 526 7012 00000 OVERTIME -                    -                   39,332 39,332        

310 526 7038 00000 RETIREMENT PLAN CHARGES -                    -                   21,869 21,869        

310 526 7062 00000 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE -                    -                   60,531 60,531        

310 526 7066 00000 SOCIAL SECURITY -                    -                   6,941 6,941          

310 526 7090 00000 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE -                    -                   113 113             

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL -                    -                   607,500     607,500     

310 526 7212 00000 POSTAGE & SHIPPING -                    -                   750             750             

310 526 7222 00000 TELEPHONE SERVICE -                    -                   4,500          4,500          

310 526 7232 00000 TRAVEL & SUBSISTENCE -                    -                   11,250        11,250        

310 526 7359 00000 PERSONNEL TRAINING -                    -                   3,750          3,750          

310 526 7501 00000 OFFICE & COMPUTER SUPPLIES -                    -                   2,625          2,625          

310 526 7503 00000 FIRST AID SUPPLIES -                    -                   375             375             

310 526 7516 00000 UNIFORMS, BADGES & ACCESSORIES -                    -                   4,500          4,500          

310 526 7711 00000 GENERAL INSURANCE -                    -                   1,125          1,125          

310 526 7712 00000 COMPENSATION INSURANCE -                    -                   7,875          7,875          

310 526 7721 00000 COST ALLOCATION CHARGES -                    -                   7,800          7,800          

310 526 7731 00000 MSC CHARGES -                    -                   15,000        15,000        

SUBTOTAL OPERATIONS -                    -                   59,550        59,550        

Payroll (7000 - 7199) -                    -                   607,500     607,500     

Operations Costs (7200 - 7999) -                    -                   59,550        59,550        

310 966 7813 52110 EQUIPMENT -                    -                   88,950        88,950        

SUBTOTAL CIP - FIRE EQUIPMENT -                    -                   88,950        88,950        

Total Budget -                    -                   756,000     756,000     

Budget Budget Budget Difference

Positions 0.0 0.0 6.0 6.0

City of Watsonville, California



Page 29 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 
 
  

Fund Division Object Project Account 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15

Final Original Proposed

Measure G Police Account Number Title Budget Budget Budget Difference

$ $ $ $

    REVENUES:

310 227 5069 00000 MEASURE G - POLICE -             -               1,202,613  1,202,613  

310 227 5895 03236 COPS GRANT -             -               90,000        90,000        

Total Revenues -             -               1,292,613  1,292,613  

    EXPENDITURES:

310 227 7011 00000 REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES -             -               315,451 315,451     

310 227 7011 03236 REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES -             -               32,961 32,961        

310 227 7012 00000 OVERTIME -             -               37,500 37,500        

310 227 7038 00000 RETIREMENT PLAN CHARGES -             -               37,018 37,018        

310 227 7038 03236 RETIREMENT PLAN CHARGES -             -               3,996 3,996          

310 227 7062 00000 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE -             -               60,840 60,840        

310 227 7062 03236 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE -             -               10,088 10,088        

310 227 7066 00000 SOCIAL SECURITY -             -               11,933 11,933        

310 227 7066 03236 SOCIAL SECURITY -             -               478 478             

310 227 7090 00000 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE -             -               3,750 3,750          

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL -             -               514,014     514,014     

310 227 7222 00000 TELEPHONE SERVICE -             -               4,500 4,500          

310 227 7232 00000 TRAVEL & SUBSISTENCE -             -               7,500 7,500          

310 227 7351 00000 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS -             -               1,500 1,500          

310 227 7359 00000 PERSONNEL TRAINING -             -               30,000 30,000        

310 227 7361 03236 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES -             -               93,750 93,750        

310 227 7533 03236 SPECIALIZED DEPT MATERIALS 42,478 42,478        

310 227 7711 00000 GENERAL INSURANCE -             -               1,875 1,875          

310 227 7712 00000 COMPENSATION INSURANCE -             -               13,125 13,125        

310 227 7721 00000 COST ALLOCATION CHARGES -             -               10,200 10,200        

310 227 7731 00000 MSC CHARGES -             -               7,500 7,500          

SUBTOTAL OPERATIONS -             -               212,428     212,428     

Payroll (7000 - 7199) -             -               514,014     514,014     

Operations Costs (7200 - 7999) -             -               212,428     212,428     

310 967 7803 52101 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT -             -               87,000 87,000        

310 967 7805 52101 AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT -             -               144,000 144,000     

310 967 7807 52101 RADIO EQIUPMENT -             -               156,881 156,881     

310 967 7813 52101 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT -             -               99,600 99,600        

SUBTOTAL CIP - POLICE EQUIPMENT -             -               487,481     487,481     

Total Budget -             -               1,213,923  1,213,923  

Budget Budget Budget Difference

 - -           7.0            7.0

City of Watsonville, California



Page 30 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

 
  

Exhibit D
Parks and Community Services

May 29, 2014

TO: Council Members Eduardo Monesino and Felipe Hernandez

FROM: Ana Espinoza, PCS Director

RE: Proposed Summer Youth Programs and Job Training

Outlined below are the proposed program at the $12,316  Amount

Goal:  To provide youth with increased access to positive recreational and job training and skill development opportunties

for the Summer of 2014

Activites:

1 Provide scholarships for youth to increase their access to recreational activities to include, Zumba classes, aquatics program,
camps, dance classes, sports programs, etc.

2 Hire youth 16 years and older to be trained as Recreation Leaders  to assist with implementation of the following:

a. Summer Lunch Program at Marinovich Park, Ramsay Park, Callaghan Park & Youth Center 

b.Summer  Drop-In Recreation Program at Youth Center and Callaghan Park

c. Summer Camps and Special Programs

d. Assist with Activities and Outreach for Neighborhood Development Plan  for Downtown Target Neighborhood

e. Assist in the Development and Implementatio of Outreach and Engagement Strategies  to increase

the particiaption of youth in City recreation programs and services

f. Customer Service Office Support

Proposed Buget:

Budget 

$12,316

Hire 8 Youth 11,097

(25 Hrs/wk for 6 weeks -approx.)

Scholarships 1,219



Page 31 of 31 

 
EV  6/5/2014 10:28:37 AM 
F:\Watsonville\Budget\FY 2013-14 & 2014-15\2014-15\06 10 2014 files\SR-BudgetSummary 06 10 2014 D6.docx 

 

Exhibit E 
 

FUNDS: FISCAL

YEAR

NUMBER DESCRIPTION 2014-15

150 GENERAL 34,920,697   

160 RETIREMENT 2,270,425    

202 SUCCESSORY AGENCY OF REDEVELOPMENT 2,245,597    

204 HOUSING 68,791         

205 CDBG 1,383,332    

206 ENTERPRISE ZONE 35,415         

207 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 473,520       

209/210 OTHER RAH GRANTS 924,282       

215 RELOCATION 87,014         

221 INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 248,386       

225 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 62,045         

245 ABANDONED VEHICLE AUTHORITY 84,112         

246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON ASREA MAINTENANCE 236,653       

250 LIBRARY 4,131,717    

265 PEG 37,019         

281 PARKS DEVELOPMENT 405,000       

305 GAS TAX 1,517,277    

309 PARKING GARAGE 134,380       

310 MEASURE G 1,969,923    

338/352 IMPACT FEES 1,635,352    

354 LLMAD 173,026       

825 NARCOTICS FORFEITURE 74,000         

510 DEBT SERVICE 622,551       

516 SUCCESSOR AGENCYDEBT SERVICE 3,744,398    

710 WASTE WATER 11,683,644   

720 WATER 11,551,273   

730 AIRPORT 3,907,479    

740 SOLID WASTE 11,359,111   

741 LANDFILL CLOSURE 150,761       

765 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT -              

780/785/787 INTERNAL SERVICES 9,052,889    

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 105,190,069 

City of Watsonville 97,230,151   

Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency 5,989,995    

Measure G 1,969,923    

Total Appropriations 105,190,069 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE & SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF

OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE

BY FUND

BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS

 



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 
RESOLUTION NO.    (SHA) 
RESOLUTION NO.  (SA) 

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE SUCCESSOR TO THE HOUSING 
ASSETS AND FUNCTIONS OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, AND THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, ADOPTING 
THE FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015, PROVIDING FOR 
CERTAIN TRANSFERS OF FUNDS, AND APPROVING FIVE YEAR 
(2014-2019) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 1103 of the Charter of the City of Watsonville a two-

year budget for fiscal years 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 was adopted by the City Council 

on June 11, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, a revised proposed budget for fiscal year 2014-2015 has been 

submitted to the City Council by the City Manager, and the City Council has reviewed 

and made revisions as it deemed advisable; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1104 of the Charter, the Council fixed the time 

and place for holding the public hearing on the proposed budget; and 

WHEREAS, copies of the proposed budget have been and are available for 

inspection by the public at the Office of the City Clerk at least ten (10) days before the 

hearing to consider final adoption; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1104 of the City Charter, a public hearing was 

held to consider the adoption of the proposed budget after due notice as provided by 

law at which time interested persons desiring to be heard were given such opportunity; 

and 

WHEREAS, after the conclusion of the public hearing the Council further 

considered the proposed budget and made any revisions thereto that it deemed 

advisable; and 

Reso No.  (CM) 
Reso No.  (SHA) 
Reso No.  (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget and CIP Final 2014-15.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 2:49:01 PM  AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance _____

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3d

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, the appropriate officers, departments, boards, and commissions of 

the City identified all public improvements proposed in Watsonville; and 

WHEREAS, on May 6, 2014, the Planning Commission reviewed said identified 

public improvements and listed and classified same with a coordinated program of 

proposed public improvements for the 2014-2019 period according to a logical order or 

priority; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended a coordinated program of 

proposed public improvements for the 2014-2019 period to the City Manager and 

Council; and 

WHEREAS, § 1105 of the Charter provides after submission of the proposed 

budget, but before the beginning of the ensuing fiscal year, the Council shall adopt a 

final budget with revisions, if any. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Approval of 2014-2015 Budget. That the City of Watsonville and the 

City Council in its Capacity as the Housing Successor Agency of the Former 

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville revised budget 2014-2015 presented 

by the City Manager to the members of the City Council, and filed with the City Clerk, 

and as thereafter amended by the City Council, a copy of which budget is on file in the 

Office of the City Clerk, is hereby approved as to form in the amount of $105.2 Million 

for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 

Section 2. Approval of 2014-2015 Successor Agency Budget. That the 

Successor Agency of the Former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville 

proposed revised budget 2014-2015 presented by the City Manager to the members of 

Reso No.          (CM) 
Reso No.          (SHA) 
Reso No.          (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget and CIP Final 2014-15.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:49:01 PM 

2 



the Agency, and filed with the City Clerk, and as thereafter amended by the Agency 

Members, a copy of which budget is included in the budget and is on file in the Office of 

the City Clerk, is hereby approved as to form in the amount of $5.9 million for the fiscal 

year for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 

Section 3. Adoption of 2014-2015 Budget. That the portion of the proposed 

revised budget 2014-2015 fiscal year presented by the City Manager to the members of 

the City Council, and filed with the City Clerk, and as thereafter amended by the City 

Council, a copy of which budget is on file in the Office of the City Clerk, is hereby 

approved as the final budget in the amount of $105.2 Million for the fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2015, and the several amounts stated therein as proposed expenditures are 

hereby appropriated for the objects therein described on Exhibit “A,” attached hereto 

and incorporated herein. 

Section 4.  Appropriations. That from the effective date of the adopted budget, 

the amounts stated in said budget as proposed expenditures are hereby appropriated to 

the offices, agencies and departments for the respective objects specified in said 

adopted budget. 

Section 5. Council Transfers. That the City Council is authorized pursuant to 

Section 1107 of the Charter of the City of Watsonville, after adoption of the budget, to 

amend or supplement the budget as to authorize the transfer of unused balances 

appropriated from one purpose to another purpose, or to appropriate available revenue 

not appropriated in the budget. 

Section 6.  Fund Balance. That the City Council is authorized to amend the final 

budget to state the exact fund balance on July 1, 2014, in lieu of the estimates 

contained in the proposed budget. 

Reso No.          (CM) 
Reso No.          (SHA) 
Reso No.          (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget and CIP Final 2014-15.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:49:01 PM 

3 



Section 7. Lapse of Appropriations.  Pursuant to § 1107 of the Charter, all 

such appropriations shall lapse at the end of the 2014-2015 fiscal year except to the 

extent that they shall have been expended or lawfully encumbered.  

Section 8.  Manager Transfers. That the City Manager is authorized to transfer 

appropriations within fund budgets; provided, however, that the total appropriations are 

not increased thereby.  

Section 9.  Finance Transfers. That the Administrative Services Director is 

authorized to transfer appropriations among the items within departmental budgets, 

excepting there from Salary and Capital accounts. 

Section 10. Capital Improvement Program. That the Capital Improvement 

Program for 2013-2018, attached as a part of the 2014-2015 budget, as amended by 

the City Council, is hereby approved, except for the General Fund CIP Expenditure 

items. Capital projects carried over from prior periods (re-appropriated), as amended by 

Council are hereby approved.  

Section 11.  Excess Expenditures.  Pursuant to § 1107 of the Charter, except 

to the extent provided in this resolution, no officer, department or agency of the City 

shall, during any fiscal year, expend or incur any obligation to expend money for any 

purposes not authorized by or in excess of the amounts appropriated by this budget, as 

amended, for a given classification or expenditure. For purposes of expending or 

incurring such obligation, classification means the same as the term “fund” defined in 

the Budget. 

Section 12.  Public Copy Available. Pursuant to § 1105 of the Charter, a copy 

of the adopted budget, certified by the City Clerk shall be placed on file in the office of 

the City Clerk where it shall be available for public inspection. Certified copies shall be 

Reso No.          (CM) 
Reso No.          (SHA) 
Reso No.          (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget and CIP Final 2014-15.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:49:01 PM 

4 



reproduced and copies made available for use by all officers, offices, departments and 

other agencies of the City and for use by civic organizations  

 
************************************ 

  

Reso No.          (CM) 
Reso No.          (SHA) 
Reso No.          (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget and CIP Final 2014-15.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:49:01 PM 

5 



Exhibit A 

FUNDS: FISCAL
YEAR

NUMBER DESCRIPTION 2014-15
150 GENERAL 34,920,697   
160 RETIREMENT 2,270,425    
202 SUCCESSORY AGENCY OF REDEVELOPMENT 2,245,597    
204 HOUSING 68,791         
205 CDBG 1,383,332    
206 ENTERPRISE ZONE 35,415         
207 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 473,520       

209/210 OTHER RAH GRANTS 924,282       
215 RELOCATION 87,014         
221 INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 248,386       
225 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 62,045         
245 ABANDONED VEHICLE AUTHORITY 84,112         
246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON ASREA MAINTENANCE 236,653       
250 LIBRARY 4,131,717    
265 PEG 37,019         
281 PARKS DEVELOPMENT 405,000       
305 GAS TAX 1,517,277    
309 PARKING GARAGE 134,380       
310 MEASURE G 1,969,923    

338/352 IMPACT FEES 1,635,352    
354 LLMAD 173,026       
825 NARCOTICS FORFEITURE 74,000         
510 DEBT SERVICE 622,551       
516 SUCCESSOR AGENCYDEBT SERVICE 3,744,398    
710 WASTE WATER 11,683,644   
720 WATER 11,551,273   
730 AIRPORT 3,907,479    
740 SOLID WASTE 11,359,111   
741 LANDFILL CLOSURE 150,761       
765 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT -              

780/785/787 INTERNAL SERVICES 9,052,889    
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 105,190,069 

City of Watsonville 97,230,151   
Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency 5,989,995    
Measure G 1,969,923    
Total Appropriations 105,190,069 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE & SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF
OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE

BY FUND
BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS

 

 

Reso No.          (CM) 
Reso No.          (SHA) 
Reso No.          (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget and CIP Final 2014-15.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:49:01 PM 

6 



RESOLUTION NO. ________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE ESTABLISHING TOTAL ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS 
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA STATE CONSTITUTION ARTICLE XIII-B 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

[Proposition 4 Gann spending limit] 

WHEREAS, the initiative commonly referred to as Proposition 4 Gann spending 

limit adopted November 6, 1979, by the state electorate provided for Article XIII-B of the 

State Constitution to establish government spending limitations, and requires the 

establishment of total annual appropriations subject to certain limitations and 

adjustments for change. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA AS FOLLOWS: 

That the total annual appropriations limit (Proposition 4 Gann spending limit) for 

the City of Watsonville during the fiscal year 2014-2015 is $118,075,693; the amended 

budget subject to the spending limit is $23,571,694 as set forth in Exhibit “A,” a copy of 

which is attached hereto, and is hereby approved and adopted. 

**************************** 

Reso No.                (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget Gann 2014-2015.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:03:48 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3e

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Exhibit A

Proposition 4 Calculation

For Fiscal Year 2014-15

Spending Limit Calculation

[a] 2013-14 Limit 116,756,347$  

Calculation of Growth Factor

Change in Population 1.130%

Non-resident, New Const. Assessment Growth 0

Change in California Per Capita Person Income not used

[b] Growth Factor (1.0113 multiplied by 1.0000) 1.01130000 

[c] 2014-15 Limit ( [a] multiplied by [b] ) 118,075,693$  

2014-15 Gann Limit Proposed Spending

Proposed General Fund Spending 34,347,931$    

Less Non-tax General Fund Revenues:

Transfers In (non-tax) (129,700)          

Use of Money and Property (1,840,896)       

Fees (8,805,641)       

In-lieu Charges - 

Other non-tax revenue - 

[d] Spending Subject to the Gann Limit 23,571,694$    

Remaining Capacity ( [d] subtracted from [c] ) 94,504,000$    

1 of 1



ORDINANCE NO. ____________ (CM) 

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WATSONVILLE INSTRUCTING THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ TO 
LEVY AND COLLECT A PROPERTY TAX ON TAXABLE PROPERTY IN 
THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 
JULY 1, 2014, FIXING THE RATE OF 0.077% THEREOF AND 
ALLOCATING IT TO THE RETIREMENT FUND 

WHEREAS, Proposition 13 [Article XIII of the State Constitution] does not apply to 

measures approved by the voters prior to the effective date of the Article XIII of the State 

Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, participation in the State Employees Retirement System or other 

system for the retirement of City employees, hereinafter set forth, is a measure approved 

by the voters of the City of Watsonville prior to the effective date of Article XIII-A; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 437-78 (CM), as amended by Ordinance 

No. 670-85 (CM), the County of Santa Cruz is authorized to levy and collect ad valorem 

taxes on taxable property within the City of Watsonville; and 

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2006, at a Special Municipal Election, the voters of 

the City of Watsonville approved Subdivision (3)(b) of Section 1122 of Article XI of the 

Charter of the City of Watsonville establishing the rate to be collected not to exceed 7.7 

cents on each One Hundred and no/100th ($100.00) Dollars of assessed valued. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. ENACTMENT. The County of Santa Cruz is hereby instructed to levy 

upon the taxable property of the City of Watsonville for fiscal year beginning July 1, 

2014, a property tax which is hereby fixed at the rate of 0.077% (pursuant to Subsection 

Ord No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget Retirement 2014.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 12:33:02 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3f 

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



1122(b)(3) of the Charter of the City of Watsonville), designated and to be allocated and 

divided among the funds of the City, as described and attached hereto on Exhibit “A.” 

SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall take effect immediately 

upon the adoption in accordance with Section 608(c) of the Charter. 

SECTION 3. PUBLICATION. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause this 

ordinance to be published in one regular issue of the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian 

and/or Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville within fifteen (15) days after its adoption. 

 
*********************************** 

Ord No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget Retirement 2014.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 12:33:02 PM 

2 



Exhibit A 

 

 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE
Final Retirement Tax Calculations

with Levy Rate of   0.077%
Fiscal Year 2014-15

General Fund Public Safety Departments

   Police Department

Police PERS 2,400,185        

Police Employee PERS Contribution paid by City -                     

Police Social Security &/or Medicare 173,345           

Alternate 457 for Temporary employees 2,477              

   Fire Department

Fire PERS  748,389           

Fire Employee PERS Contribution paid by City -                     

Fire Social Security &/or Medicare 59,526            

Alternate 457 for Temporary employees 1,558              

General Fund- Remaining Departments

PERS 657,825           

Employee PERS Contribution paid by City -                     

Social Security 420,654           

Alternate 457 for Temporary employees 28,328            

Administration Fee Allocation Costs -                     

Grand Total Needed 4,492,287        

Less:  Allowance for Turnover (150,000)          

Estimated General Fund Pension Costs 4,342,287$      

Less:  Estimated Levy Proceeds  (52% of total costs) 2,270,425        

Amount supported by General Fund 2,071,862$      

Retirement 
System Costs



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING NEW COMPENSATION SCHEDULE FOR 
SCOREKEEPER ($10/HR) AT ESTABLISHED SALARY RANGE OF 
10-56, SPORTS OFFICIAL ($20/HR) AT ESTABLISHED SALARY 
RANGE OF 17-50 AND SENIOR SPORTS OFFICIAL ($25/HR) AT 
ESTABLISHED SALARY RANGE OF 19-73 IN ORDER TO COMPLY 
WITH THE STATE’S MINIMUM WAGE REQUIREMENTS EFFECTIVE 
JULY 1, 2014 

RESCINDS RESOLUTION NUMBERS 211-04 (CM), 213-04 (CM) AND 
214-04 (CM) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the job classification of Scorekeeper is hereby approved and

authorized at the established Salary Range of 10-56. 

2. That the job classification of Sports Official is hereby approved and

authorized at the established Salary Range of 17-50. 

3. That the job classification of Senior Sports Official is hereby approved and

authorized at the established Salary Range of 19-73. 

************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Scorekeeper Game Officials Salary Schedule.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 12:32:39 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ HR ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3g

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE CONTINUING THE VOLUNTARY TIME OFF PROGRAM 
AVAILABLE TO EMPLOYEES THROUGH 2014-2015 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved and offered City employees the Voluntary 

Time Off Program in May 2009, April 2010, April 2011, June 2012, and June 2013; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the City Council reinstate the Voluntary 

Time Off Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed Voluntary Time Off Program aims to achieve savings, 

minimize the impact on public services, and help mitigate layoffs and other personnel 

reductions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Voluntary Time Off (VTO) Program available until July 3, 2015, a

copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, is hereby adopted and 

approved.  

************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\VTO Program 2014-2015.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 12:31:38 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3h

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 VOLUNTARY TIME OFF (VTO)   

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
July 6, 2014-July 3, 2015 

 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of the Voluntary Time Off (VTO) program is to provide voluntary, personal 
leave without pay as a method to reduce City salary costs during a budget crisis. 
Another objective of the VTO program is to assist in mitigating layoffs and other 
personnel reductions.  Use of this program is strictly an effort to achieve salary savings 
and shall not be considered or construed as a lack of work.  If the VTO does not result 
in cost savings to the City, creates staffing levels that cannot provide adequate service 
to the public, or hinders departmental operations, then the VTO leave may be denied.    
 
PROGRAM 
The City intends to offer this voluntary time off without pay to regular, non-temporary 
City employees only during periods of economic hardship designated as such by the 
City Manager.  Participation in the VTO program requires approval of the employee’s 
supervisor, department head, and City Manager under the conditions stated above. 
 
VTO will only be allowed for employees who desire to reduce the weekly work schedule 
by whole hour increments for a defined period of time. 
 
Individual days off without pay will not be approved under the VTO program.  
 
All employees approved to participate in the program must sign an agreement 
committing to the reduced work schedule in a defined time period.    
 
The City shall continue to pay the same level of health benefits (medical, dental, vision, 
life, etc.) during a period of VTO as the employee qualified for prior to participation in 
the program.  All other accrued benefits (vacation, sick leave, holiday hours, admin 
leave, etc.) will be pro-rated accordingly with the reduced schedule.  For example, if an 
employee reduces to 75% time, vacation benefits will be accrued at a rate 25% less 
than if working full time.    Qualifications for merit increases shall not be impacted by 
VTO.  Seniority accruals shall not be impacted by VTO. 
 
Employees may reduce their annual hours worked to approximately 1,720 hours and 
still receive a full year of service credit from the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS).  The amount of worked hours required to earn a full year of service 
credit is established by CalPERS and subject to change.  Employees who are 
concerned about their service credit accrual should consult with Human Resources 
before committing to the VTO program.  Participation in the VTO program may impact 
retirement benefits and those considering participation in the VTO program during their 
last year of employment before retiring should consult with CalPERS about the potential 
impact on their retirement benefits.  Employees are responsible for monitoring the effect 
of VTO on future retirement benefits. 
 
For certain positions, granting of VTO may result in additional City costs, such as 
overtime, which offset or exceed savings from VTO or result in unacceptably low 
staffing levels, hindering the delivery of critical services to the public.  In such cases, the 
purpose of VTO would not be achieved and the VTO request may not be authorized.  
VTO must result in savings to the City without compromising delivery of critical services 
to the public or having a material negative impact on departmental operations.  The City 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 VOLUNTARY TIME OFF (VTO)   

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
July 6, 2014-July 3, 2015 

Manager may cancel or suspend an employee’s approved VTO if operational needs 
mandate the employee’s services.  Employees will be noticed about VTO cancellation in 
accordance with the schedule change provisions of the appropriate Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) or 14 days (whichever is greater). 
 
VTO shall not be available to employees on other leaves without pay nor be used to 
extend leaves of absence.   Employees shall not use accrued paid time in lieu of VTO 
hours. 
 
VTO used during a pay period shall not count as time worked toward the computation of 
overtime. 
 
During VTO periods, employees remain responsible for paying the health benefit 
premium that is normally deducted from every pay check.    
 
PROCEDURE 
 
1. Requests to enroll in the VTO program must be submitted in writing to the 
employee’s supervisor or department head using the attached Voluntary Time Off 
(VTO) Request\Agreement. 
 
2. The employee’s supervisor shall review and make a statement regarding the 
workload impact, anticipated cost savings, and a recommendation regarding the 
request.  The request shall then be forwarded to the department head. 
 
3. The department head will review the employee’s request and the supervisor’s 
statement and, upon approval, forward it to the City Manager for final approval.  The 
department head is responsible for ensuring that the VTO is consistent with the 
conditions and intent of the VTO policy. 
 
4. Upon approval by the City Manager, the VTO form shall be distributed as follows:  
one copy to the employee, one copy to the initiating department, one copy to the 
Human Resources, and one copy to Payroll. 
 
5. Once a VTO form is approved by the City Manager, it is binding upon the 
employee for the entire period at the agreed upon participation level unless it is found 
that continuation in the program will cause undue hardship to the employee due to 
unforeseen circumstances. 
 
6. This program is in effect through July 3, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 VOLUNTARY TIME OFF (VTO)   

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
July 6, 2014-July 3, 2015 

 

Employee Name:  Date:  

Department: __________________________ 

Division:  Job Classification:  

 
I hereby voluntarily request a reduction in my work schedule.    I acknowledge there will 
be a reduction in my salary and my leave accruals will be pro-rated (i.e. vacation, sick 
leave, administrative leave, personal leave, and holiday hours).  However, the City shall 
continue to pay the same level of benefits for the  medical, dental, vision, and life 
insurance plans as I am entitled to prior to participation in the program.  If approved, I 
agree to the reductions specified below. 
 
 
Employee Signature: _______________________   Date:________________________ 
 
 
For proposed workweek reduction, please specify enrollment period:   

From:  To:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Specify number of proposed weekly hours:  

Please detail your proposed weekly schedule: 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 VOLUNTARY TIME OFF (VTO)   

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
July 6, 2014-July 3, 2015 

 
 
Supervisor 
Signature:    Date:    

I recommend   □   Do not recommend   □   this VTO enrollment. 

 
Supervisor statement of workload impact, anticipated cost savings: 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
APPROVALS: 

This request is approved as it meets the goals and intent of the VTO program. 
 

Department Head 
Signature: 

 Date: 

City Manager Signature:  Date: 

Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DENIALS: 

This request is denied as it does not meet cost savings goals or it cannot be 
granted without negatively impacting departmental operations. 
 

Department Head Signature:  Date: 

City Manager Signature:  Date: 

Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Distribution:  Employee 
   Initiating Department 
   Human Resources Department   
   Employee Personnel File 
   Payroll 



RESOLUTION NO.    (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING THE AWARD OF COMMUNITY AND 
SOCIAL SERVICE GRANTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $213,516 TO 
DESIGNATED COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCIES; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE PAYMENT OF SAME FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council does hereby accept and approve the recommended

award of Community Service Grants in the amount of $31,430 to designated Community 

Service Agencies for fiscal year 2014-2015 set forth in Exhibit "A," a copy of which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

2. That the City Council does hereby accept and approve the recommended

award of Social Service Grants in the amount of $182,086 to various Social Service 

Agencies for fiscal year 2014-2015 set forth in Exhibit "A," a copy of which is attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. That the Administrative Services Director and City Manager are hereby

authorized and directed to pay such amounts and execute any needed agreements, 

respectively, for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

*********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Community and Social Service Grants 2014.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 12:28:23 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance _______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3i

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Will be attached 

once City Council 
approves 
amounts. 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
APPROVING AND SETTING FORTH INTERNAL LOAN TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS BETWEEN THE AIRPORT FUND AND THE CITY’S POOLED 
MONEY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT FOR AN INTERNAL LOAN OF UP TO 
$5,000,000 AND UP TO 15 YEARS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE THE LOAN 

WHEREAS, the Airport Enterprise Fund audited a negative cash balance at the 

end of fiscal years 2012-2014 of $4.69 million dollars; and  

WHEREAS, airport management has taken measures to improve its long term 

financial situation by hangar rate increases, transient parking revenue increases, and 

review of expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the City has from time to time refinanced its obligations through 

private placement loans or the bond market; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Department continually evaluates current financial 

market conditions to determine whether it is feasible and prudent to purchase obligations 

in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy; and 

WHEREAS, there is presently an opportunity for the City to increase the interest 

rate on debt service to the  Pooled Money Investment Account from the Airport Fund and 

for the Airport Fund to reduce the rate of its interest obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Investment Policy requires the City Council approve 

investments with a maturity of more than 5 years (60 months); and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Administrative Services Director has recommended that 

the Council authorize an internal loan of up to $5 Million between the Airport Fund and 

the City’s Pooled Money Investment Account for up to 15 years. 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Defeasance of Airport Fund.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 3:49:44 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3j

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Manager and Administrative Services Director are hereby 

authorized to transfer not more than $5 Million from the City’s Pooled Money Investment 

Account to the Airport Fund.  

2. That said transfer shall be accounted for as a loan from the City’s Pooled 

Money Investment Account to the Airport Fund. 

3. That the terms of said loan shall be a variable interest rate that shall be set 

by the City Administrative Services Director each July according to the City’s prior 12-

month period’s average pooled money portfolio rate with a cap of 3.00%, fully amortized 

over 180 months, with equal payments of interest and principal due monthly, all due and 

payable in (15) fifteen years, and that there shall be no pre-payment penalty or reserve 

requirement. 

4. The City Administrative Services Director shall report the interest rate and 

principal balance to the Council annually. 

5. That the City Manager and Administrative Services Director are hereby 

authorized to execute any documents and do all other necessary transactions and 

proper to accomplish the payment of said monies from the City’s Pooled Money 

Investment Account to the Airport Fund and to collect the payment from the Airport Fund 

to the City’s Pooled Money Investment Account. 

 
******************************** 

 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Defeasance of Airport Fund.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 3:49:44 PM 

2 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ (SHA) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE SUCCESSOR TO THE 
HOUSING ASSETS AND FUNCTIONS OF THE FORMER 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
FINDING THAT THE USE OF FUNDS FROM THE LOW AND 
MODERATE INCOME HOUSING ASSET FUND FOR PLANNING AND 
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS IS NECESSARY FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PRODUCING, IMPROVING, AND PRESERVING THE 
COMMUNITY’S SUPPLY OF LOW AND MODERATE-INCOME 
HOUSING 

WHEREAS, in accord with the provisions of the California Community 

Redevelopment Law (Health and Safety Code Section 33000, et seq. (“CRL”), the City 

Council of the City of Watsonville (“City”) previously established the Redevelopment 

Agency of the City of Watsonville, a public body, corporate and politic (“Agency”) to 

carry out the purposes of and exercise the powers granted to community redevelopment 

agencies under the CRL; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, the Agency was dissolved pursuant to 

Assembly Bill 1X26 (Stats. 2011, 1st Ex. Sess., Ch. 5) (“AB 26”), and its rights, powers, 

duties and obligations were transferred to a “successor agency” (as defined by CRL 

Section 34171(j) and Section 34173); and 

WHEREAS, CRL Section 34176 provides that the City, as the former Agency’s 

creating entity, could elect to retain the housing assets and functions of the former 

Agency and to assume its rights, powers, duties, obligations; and 

WHEREAS, in accord with Section 34176, the City elected to retain the former 

Agency’s housing assets and functions and to become the successor (“Housing 

Successor”) to the former Agency’s housing rights and duties; and  

Reso No.                (RA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget Set Aside 2014.docx 
ri 6/5/2014 12:27:46 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3k

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, as the Housing Successor, the City holds the former Agency’s 

housing funds and assets; and 

WHEREAS, as required by CRL section 34176(d), the City has created among 

the City’s accounts a “Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund” (“LMIHAF”) 

and has deposited the former Agency’s housing funds (and income from the former 

Agency’s housing assets) into the LMIHAF; and 

WHEREAS, CRL Section 34176 provides that the funds in the LMIHAF may be 

used only in accord with the CRL’s applicable housing-related provisions; and 

WHEREAS, the City, as Housing Successor, proposes to expend funds from the 

LMIHAF for the purposes allowed under the CRL’s housing-related provisions, including 

for planning and administrative expenses directly related to programs and activities 

authorized by CRL Section 33334.2(e) and Section 33334.3(e); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with CRL Section 33334.3(d), the Housing Successor 

may expend money from the LMIHAF for planning and general administrative activities 

directly associated with the development, improvement and preservation of affordable 

housing which is not disproportionate to the amount actually spent for the costs of the 

production, improvement, or preservation of that housing; and 

WHEREAS, CRL Section 33334.3(d) requires that the Housing Successor 

determine annually that the planning and administrative expenses paid for with housing 

funds are necessary for the production, improvement, or preservation of low- and 

moderate-income housing. 

 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget Set Aside 2014.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 12:27:46 PM 

2 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE SUCCESSOR TO THE HOUSING 

ASSETS AND FUNCTIONS OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE , CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That in accord with CRL Section 33334.3(d), the City Council 

determines that the Housing Successor’s use of funds from the LMIHAF to pay for 

planning and administrative expenses is necessary for the production, improvement, or 

preservation of low- and moderate-income housing. 

Section 2. That in accord with CRL Section 33334.3(e), the City Council 

authorizes the Housing Successor’s use of funds from the LMIHAF for planning and 

administrative costs directly related to programs and activities authorized by CRL 

Section 33334.2(e) and Section 33334.3(e). 

Section 3. That the findings and determinations set forth in this Resolution are 

final and conclusive. 

Section 4. That the City Clerk will certify the adoption of this Resolution and 

cause it to be processed in the manner required by law. 

 

****************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget Set Aside 2014.docx  
ri 6/5/2014 12:27:46 PM 

3 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ (CM)  
RESOLUTION NO. __________ (SHA) 

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND CITY COUNCIL 
IN ITS OWN RIGHT AND IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE SUCCESSOR TO 
THE HOUSING ASSETS AND FUNCTIONS OF THE FORMER 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
FINDING AND AUTHORIZING THAT THE USE OF THE FORMER 
AGENCY’S FUNDS AND OTHER ASSETS GENERATED FROM THE 
WATSONVILLE 2000 REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF IMPROVING, INCREASING, AND PRESERVING THE 
COMMUNITY’S SUPPLY OF LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 
HOUSING OUTSIDE THE PROJECT AREA WILL BENEFIT THE 
PROJECT AREA 

WHEREAS, in accord with the California Community Redevelopment Law 

(Health and Safety Code sections 33000, et seq.) (the “CRL”), the City Council of the 

City of Watsonville (“City”) previously established the Redevelopment Agency of the 

City of Watsonville (“Agency”); and 

WHEREAS, in accord with CRL section 33334.2(a), not less than twenty percent 

(20%) of all tax increment that was allocated to the Agency from the Watsonville 2000 

Redevelopment Project Area (“Project Area”) was placed into the Agency’s Low and 

Moderate Income Housing Fund (“LMIHF”) and used to increase, improve and preserve 

the community’s supply of low and moderate income housing; and 

WHEREAS, in accord with Assembly Bill 1X26 (“AB26”) and Assembly Bill 1484 

(“AB1484”) (AB26 and AB1484, collectively, the “Dissolution Acts”), the Agency was 

dissolved and its assets, functions, and obligations were assumed by other public 

agencies; and 

WHEREAS, in accord with CRL section 34176, the City of Watsonville (“City”) 

elected to become the Agency’s housing successor agency (“Housing Successor”) and 

to assume the Agency’s low and moderate income housing responsibilities, including 

Reso No.                (CM) Reso No.                (SHA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget 2000 Redev Project Area (CM+SHA).docx 
ri 6/5/2014 4:18:26 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3l

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



those related to the LMIHF and the income attributable to the repayment of loans made 

from the LMIHF and the sale of assets purchased with LMIHF funds (all of the 

foregoing, collectively, “Housing Assets”); and 

WHEREAS, in accord with CRL section 34176(d), the Housing Successor has 

established in its accounts a separate “Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund” 

(“LMIHAF”) and has placed all Housing Assets which it received from the Agency into 

the LMIHAF and will likewise place any future Housing Assets it receives into the 

LMIHAF; and 

WHEREAS, under the Dissolution Acts, the Housing Successor’s use of the 

LMIHAF is subject to the CRL’s housing-related requirements; and 

WHEREAS, CRL section 33334.2(g) provides that funds in the LMIHF may be 

used outside the Project Area only if the Agency’s governing and legislative bodies 

determined that the proposed use would benefit the Project Area; and 

WHEREAS, as the Housing Successor’s legislative and governing body, the City 

Council may make the findings required by CRL section 33334.2(g) with respect to the 

use of funds in the LMIHAF outside of the Project Area; and 

WHEREAS, the General Plan of the City of Watsonville (the “Watsonville Vista 

2030 General Plan”) demonstrates a need for affordable housing throughout the 

community; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Successor proposes to use funds in the LMIHAF 

outside of the Project Area for various projects designed to increase, improve, and 

preserve the City’s supply of decent, safe, and sanitary affordable housing. 

Reso No.           (CM) Reso No. ____ (SHA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget 2000 Redev Project Area (CM+SHA).docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:26:01 PM 

2 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

CITY COUNCIL IN ITS OWN RIGHT AND IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE SUCCESSOR 

TO THE HOUSING ASSETS AND FUNCTIONS OF THE FORMER 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE:  

Section 1. That based on the written and oral information presented to it, the 

City Council determines as follows: 

A. That the use of LMIHAF funds for the development of low and 

moderate income housing outside of the Project Area will benefit the Project Area, since 

there is the need for additional affordable housing throughout the community, as 

indicated by the Watsonville Vista 2030 General Plan, and since more land is needed to 

develop sufficient affordable housing in the community than is available within the 

Project Area. 

B. That the use of LMIHAF funds outside the Project Area is authorized.  

The Housing Successor’s use of LMIHAF funds is subject to the same CRL 

requirements as the Agency’s use of LMIHF funds would have been. 

Section 2. That the findings and determinations set forth in this Resolution are 

final and conclusive. 

Section 3. That the City Clerk will certify the adoption of this Resolution and will 

cause it to be processed in the manner required by law. 

 
*********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) Reso No. ____ (SHA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\061014\Budget 2000 Redev Project Area (CM+SHA).docx  
ri 6/5/2014 2:26:01 PM 

3 



CITY COUNCIL 10.2a 

FUND FUND 
NO. NAME 

120 TRUST FUND 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUMMARY OF DISBURSEMENTS 
WARRANT REGISTER DATED 6/10/2014 

130 EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 
150 GENERAL FUND 
170 INVESTMENT FUND 
202 REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 
206 ENTERPRISE ZONE 
207 RENTAL REHAB FUND 
221 INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 
246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON AREA 
250 LIBRARY FUND 
260 SPECIAL GRANTS 
305 GAS TAX 
309 PARKING GARAGE FUND 
349 PUBLIC FACILITIES IMPACT FEES 
354 SPECIAL DISTRICT FUNDS 
710 SEWER SERVICE FUND 
720 WATER OPERATING FUND 
730 AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 
740 WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 
765 COMPUTER FUND-ISF 
780 WORKERS COMP/LIABILITY FUND 
787 HEAL TH INSURANCE FUND-POOL 

AMOUNT 

1,356.08 
523,539.01 

. 219,385.39 
455.42 
196.70 
60.00 

5,942.14 
85.45 

1,852.78 
9,996.91 

25,025.02 
10,113.50 
7,529.10 

13,474.00 
1,274.01 

143,510.40 
176,063.39 
50,992.92 

283,894.00 
431.19 

5,780.53 
23,245.29 

TOTAL 1,504,203.23 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE CLAIMS 
ARE BUDGETED AND APPROPRIATED FOR: 

APPROVED FOR PAYMENT: 

~th--QUIEL R. VEGA 
-™WE SERVICES DIRECTOR 

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5/28/2014 TO 6/10/2014 

PAYROLL INVOICES 

TOTAL OF ALL INVOICES 

CARLOS J. PALACIOS 
CITY MANAGER 

980,664.22 

523,539.01 

1,504,203.23 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209450 

1 209562 

1 209632 

1 209548 

1 209411 

$462.91 
79.16 

130.73 
195.30 

57. 72 

$2950.00 
1400.00 

200.00 
1350.00 

$328.95 
16.45 
30.59 

281. 91 

$126.00 
126.00 

$5243.17 
35. 76 

203.86 
29.27 

282. 96 
21.12 

154.17 
71. 33 

164.15 
532.50 

11. 33 
141.11 

11. 32 
21. 66 
46.60 
90.83 

384.09 
173.55 
184.37 
28.19 
91.19 
38.98 

445.04 
131.16 
343.50 
155.83 
55.28 

0.86 
42.78 

9.65 
44.88 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

06/10/14 00304 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
260-339-7559-04001 
720-598-7559-00000 

06/10/14 52393 
720-596-7361-00000 
740-572-7361-00000 
309-521-7361-00000 

06/10/14 61474 
354-958-7821-00190 
354-959-7821-00188 
150-680-7533-00000 

06/10/14 50640 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 00316 
730-560-7325-00000 
710-540-7559-00129 
150-450-7325-00000 
150-450-7323-00000 
150-450-7232-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-597-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 
730-560-7509-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 
730-560-7221-00000 
150-620-7325-00000 
730-560-7511-00000 
720-596-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-692-7510-00162 
740-575-7559-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
740-572-7559-00023 
150-220-7324-00000 
150-680-7541-00000 
740-570-7559-00024 
150-692-7510-00210 
150-680-7321-00000 
150-691-7533-00159 
150-510-7559-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 

0 A L LEASE COMPANY, INC 
PARTS 
PARTS 
PARTS 
PARTS 

0 A-1 JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 

0 A.M. LEONARD 
PICK UP TOOL EZ REACHER 
PICK UP TOOL EZ REACHER 
PICK UP TOOL EZ REACHER 

0 ACE CASH EXPRESS 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 ACE HARDWARE 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 

INVOICE # 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

3 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209412 

1 209446 

1 209451 

1 209452 

1 209670 

1 209593 

1 209683 

1 209453 

1 209681 

1 209454 

1 209565 

1 209486 

1 209576 

659.85 
4.07 

134. 83 
29.78 

161.11 
28.00 
54.22 
47.16 

176.83 

$1059.05 
1059.05 

$4830.44 
4830.44 

$981.12 
981.12 

$1367.05 
248.00 
248.00 
871. 05 

$650.00 
650.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$740.55 
740.55 

$1346.33 
147.51 

1198. 82 

$800.00 
800.00 

$23.30 
23.30 

$169.50 
169.50 

$85.74 
85.74 

$90.50 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

710-540-7559-00185 
354-958-7821-00190 
150-692-7510-00163 
150-691-7501-00158 
150-688-7533-00000 
710-530-7559-00000 
150-680-7559-00000 
260-339-7559-04001 
150-691-7533-00166 

06/03/14 55694 
150-686-7533-00000 

05/30/14 56602 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 00377 
150-450-7533-00000 

06/10/14 00460 
246-321-7361-00000 
150-220-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 

06/10/14 65266 
730-560-7325-00000 

06/10/14 55826 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 65699 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 00515 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 

06/10/14 65664 
730-560-7307-00000 

06/10/14 00682 
150-450-7222-00000 

06/10/14 52811 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 06458 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 54343 

STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 
STATEMENT 4/30/14 

0 ADVANCED SPECIALTY ADVERTISING PRODUCTS 
STWBRY FSTVL SOUVENIRS 

0 AFLAC 
H7935 INSURANCE 

0 AIR EXCHANGE, INC. 
PLYMOVENT REPAIRS 

0 AIRTEC SERVICE,INC 
CHILLER SERVICE 
ALARM RESP PD 
GAS LEAK MARINO PARK 

0 ALAMEDA, JOAQUIN 
REPAIR SAGE BLDG 

0 ALBO, GARY 
WASHER REBATE 

0 ALLIANCE WIRELESS TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
CAMERAS & CABLES 

0 ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC 
NEW RECRUIT MASKS 
NEW RECRUIT MASKS 

0 AMERICAN AVIATION PROFESSIONALS INC. 
COUNTER EQUIP/INSTALL 

0 AMERICAN MESSAGING 
PAGING SERVICE 

0 AMERICOLD 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 

0 APTOS/LA SELVA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

4 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

90.50 

1 209455 $5729.50 
72. 90 
57.20 
89.80 
62.60 
18.62 

953.47 
545.40 
939.27 
556.35 
378.34 

78.00 
1500.93 

52.20 
337.60 

45.02 
41. 80 

1 209678 $28581. 89 
28464.89 

117. 00 

1 209653 $8621. 26 
8621.26 

1 209651 $1857.23 
1857.23 

1 209652 $10752.01 
42.67 

399.48 
370.98 
117.96 

1145. 05 
43. 96 
85.45 

4617.40 
88.10 
22.60 

559.30 
559.27 

64. 4 9 
172 .19 
397.43 

67.09 
475.94 

95.04 
1084.76 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-450-7542-00000 FIRE SAFETY FORMS 

06/10/14 00995 0 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES,INC 
740-575-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
150-410-7516-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
150-220-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
150-620-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
150-450-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
720-598-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
720-597-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
740-570-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
740-572-7361-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
150-523-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
150-680-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
710-530-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
730-560-7516-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
720-596-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
150-450-7504-00000 LINEN SERVICE 
246-321-7327-00000 LINEN SERVICE 

06/10/14 65412 0 ASCENT AVIATION GROUP, INC. 
730-560-7562-00000 JET A FUEL 
730-560-7562-00000 MYFBO MONTHLY FEES 

06/10/14 63800 0 AT&T 
150-250-7222-00000 NEW lOOMB CHARGES 

06/10/14 63649 0 AT&T - at&t CALNET 2 
150-250-7222-00000 PRI ACCOUNT 

06/10/14 63649 0 AT&T - at&t CALNET 2 
150-120-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-220-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
246-321-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-230-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-250-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-315-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
221-347-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-409-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-417-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-450-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
309-521-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-523-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
710-530-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
710-540-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
730-560-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
730-561-7361-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
720-596-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-622-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 
150-690-7222-00000 C60 SUMMARY 

INVOICE # 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

5 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209600 

1 209456 

1 209458 

1 209568 

1 209564 

1 209408 

1 209459 

1 209601 

1 209460 

1 209461 

1 209457 

1 209553 

309.57 
33.28 

$126.00 
126.00 

$20.00 
20.00 

$3730.00 
3730.00 

$4.00 
4.00 

$1967.43 
482.43 

1485.00 

$13474.00 
13474.00 

$5942.14 
5942.14 

$3245.00 
245.00 

3000.00 

$7651. 94 
570.00 
165.00 

1395.00 
2868.82 

114. 95 
2108.54 
154.99 

91. 55 
183.09 

$121.66 
37.29 
84.37 

$1905.95 
1905.95 

$1238.15 
1238.15 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

710-532-7361-00000 
150-620-7222-00000 

06/10/14 57163 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 01215 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 01342 
150-620-7351-00000 

06/10/14 53002 
150-409-7770-00000 

06/10/14 52786 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 

05/28/14 01287 
349-949-7855-42227 

C60 SUMMARY 
C60 SUMMARY 

0 ATG-REHAB SPECIALISTS 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 AUTO CARE TOWING 
BAL SHORT PAID INV 38602 

0 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 
SUB SERVICE 

0 BANUELOS DELGADO, CARLOS 
OVERPAYMENT ON ACCT 

0 BAUER COMPRESSORS 
SERVICE ON COMPRESSOR 
SERVICE ON COMPRESSOR 

0 BCS CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
DRYWALL & CABINET REPAIRS 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 01433 0 BELLINGER FOSTER STEINMETZ INC. 
207-387-7361-00000 

06/10/14 57274 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-410-7325-00000 

06/10/14 01439 
246-321-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
309-525-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
710-540-7361-00129 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 
720-594-7559-41202 
740-575-7361-00000 

06/10/14 01450 
710-530-7324-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 

06/10/14 01304 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/10/14 51005 
150-523-7505-00000 

RESOLUTIN NO. 28-14(CM)CONSULT 

0 BEST DOORS INC. 
DOORS REPAIRS 
DOORS REPAIRS 

0 BEWLEY'S CLEANING 
SIDEWALK CLEANING 
SIDEWALK CLEANING 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICE 

0 BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY 
LUMBER 
LUMBER 

0 BME INC. 
CO-GEN PARTS 

0 BODY BY HANK 
AUTO REPAIRS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

6 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209630 

1 209594 

1 209410 

1 209462 

1 209409 

1 209685 

1 209551 

1 209415 

1 209418 

$24.50 
24.50 

$15110.00 
9060.00 
6050.00 

$18796.00 
18796.00 

$1345.08 
89.76 

440.58 
359.73 
455.01 

$2653.00 
250.00 

2403.00 

$3012.00 
3012.00 

$1009.48 
288.93 
231.17 
112. 33 
377.05 

$24.20 
24.20 

$9283.90 
25.95 

2.81 
436.05 
117. 62 
122.00 
602.16 
150.00 
235.46 
50.00 
90.00 

154.21 
368.88 
149.95 
110. 00 
737.76 
357.90 
368.88 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

06/10/14 61145 
150-692-7770-00162 

06/10/14 56005 
730-910-7837-42121 
730-910-7834-42121 

0 BORJA, ROZANNE 
GYMNASTICS 

0 BRANDLEY, REINARD W. 
RESOLUTION NO. 39-14(CM) 
TC AGREEMENT 

INVOICE # 

05/28/14 53989 0 BRENDT D. CARLSON, M.D., INC. 
150-450-7361-00000 

06/10/14 01550 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 

05/28/14 01619 
730-560-7361-00000 
740-912-7855-42141 

06/10/14 65809 
780-293-7307-00000 

06/10/14 50708 
150-450-7323-00000 
150-450-7323-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/03/14 62393 
150-230-7359-00000 

06/04/14 62393 
260-339-7559-04001 
730-560-7562-00000 
150-691-7342-00159 
150-523-7505-00000 
730-560-7562-00000 
150-409-7232-00000 
730-560-7221-00000 
780-971-7813-07601 
710-540-7359-00000 
150-691-7342-00166 
730-560-7531-00000 
150-409-7232-00000 
150-410-7516-00000 
260-336-7533-03234 
150-409-7232-00000 
150-160-7232-00000 
150-409-7232-00000 

ANNUAL PHYSICALS 

0 BRODART CO. 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 

0 BUD'S ELECTRIC SERVICE, INC 
ELEC REPAIRS 
ELEC REPAIRS 

0 BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSEN, LLP 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF 

0 BURTON'S FIRE APPARATUS, INC. 
PARTS 
PARTS 
ACCESS DOOR 
VALVE KIT 

0 BUSINESS CARD 
MO COAST BREWERY 

0 BUSINESS CARD 
LED LIGHTS KELVIN 
JET FUEL TAX 
MO BAY AQUARIUM CAMP SPRINGFLD 
CABLE & CLAMP PW 
BOE SPECIAL TAX JET FUEL TAX 
MARRIOT PD TRAINING 
ROAD SIGN MATERIALS AIRPORT 
EMERG. SIGNS JJ KELLER 
TRAINING CSU SAC 
ASPARAGUS FEST TRIP PCS 
GATE CONTROLLER AIRPORT 
HYATT PD TRAINING 
COPS PLUS TRAINING PD 
SOFTBALL TRIP SJ STATE 
HYATT PD TRAINING 
HILTON CITY CLERK TRAINING 
HYATT PD TRAINING 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

7 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209463 

1 209694 

1 11112392 

1 209659 

1 209618 

1 209466 

45.00 
213.44 
252.07 

40.00 
100.00 
572.08 
217.76 

69.99 
10.00 
40.70 
69.96 

222.90 
34.95 

467.45 
698.00 
128.21 

33.28 
11. 72 

318.50 
50.00 

265.28 
50.00 
50.00 
50.00 
52.77 

279.67 
100.00 
112. 53 

60.00 
390.49 
197.52 

$458.87 
458.87 

$1737.06 
1737.06 

$684.48 
684.48 

$158.95 
158.95 

$9648.50 
6749.76 
2723.74 

175.00 

$5800.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

730-560-7359-00000 
150-110-7501-00000 
150-450-7331-00000 
150-110-7232-00106 
150-110-7232-00107 
120-279-7559-00121 
150-120-7232-00000 
710-530-7361-00000 
309-525-7361-00000 
765-550-7805-22003 
150-250-7361-00000 
150-130-7232-00000 
710-540-7559-00129 
730-910-7837-42121 
309-525-7361-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
710-530-7222-00000 
150-680-7222-00000 
260-336-7533-03234 
710-540-7359-00000 
730-560-7326-00000 
150-110-7232-00106 
150-110-7232-00103 
150-110-7232-00102 
150-410-7533-00000 
150-210-7501-00000 
150-110-7232-00106 
730-560-7562-00000 
150-692-7510-00163 
765-550-7805-22003 
260~339-7559-04001 

06/10/14 01665 
150-230-7501-00000 

06/10/14 66154 
150-523-7505-00000 

05/30/14 62407 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 63968 
150-688-7344-00000 

PAPA MEMBERSHIP 
COUNCIL CERTS 
COMPUTER CABLES 
LOAVES & FISHES DINNER 
AGRI-CULTURE LUNCHEON 
PAL VAN SALE FEE 
HILTON TRAINING PADILLA/VIDES 
DIRECT TV SVC 
VENTEK INTL 
COMPUTER UPGRADE WINDOWS 
GODADDY.COM CITY DOMAIN 
MIRAMONTE RESORT CONF A SMITH 
SCI W/SHOP SUPPLIES 
RADIO BATTERIES 
VENTEK INTL MONEY MACHINES 
PAGERS AMERICAN MESSAGING 
PAGERS AMERICAN MESSAGING 
PAGERS AMERICAN MESSAGING 
PAL SOCCER TRIP TIX 
ITSTECH TRAINING PW 
AIRPORT LANDING LIGHTS 
RED CROSS HEROES BFAST 
RED CROSS HEROES BFAST 
RED CROSS HEROES BFAST 
BATTERIES 
INTERVIEW PACKAGES SCANTRON 
DOWN TO EARTH 
BOE SPCL TAX JET FUEL 
T SHIRTS SOFTBALL 
COMPUTER SUPLS 
CORDLESS DRILL BTRS/STORG BINS 

0 BUSINESS FORMS UNLIMITED 
PAYROLL CHECKS 

0 C.D.FLEET SERVICE INC. 
ENGINE REPAIR 

0 CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 CAFE ELLA LLC 
LUNCH ADV COMMITTEE 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 59751 0 CAL-WEST LIGHTING & SIGNAL MAINTENANCE INC. 
305-923-7839-42061 
305-923-7334-00000 
710-540-7763-00052 

06/10/14 01935 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 
ANNUAL STREET LIGHT MAINTENANC 
CAL FRESH/2ND HAVEST FOOD BANK 

0 CALCON SYSTEMS, INC 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

8 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209629 

1 209444 

1 209555 

1 209467 

1 209468 

1 209549 

1 209589 

1 208787 

1 209605 

1 209691 

1 209660 

1 2 0 9 67 6 

5800.00 

$250.00 
250.00 

$992.30 
992. 30 

$94.22 
94.22 

$229.85 
229.85 

$17624.79 
4960.77 

424.19 
276.04 

11963.79 

$52. 72 
52. 72 

$2303.78 
414.47 
15 9. 8 0 

65.52 
1663.99 

$2561. 80 
2561.80 

$100.00 
100.00 

$15597.42 
4975.50 
5199.75 
5422.17 

$567.71 
319.46 
248.25 

$250.23 
27.80 
27.81 
27.80 
51. 31 

115. 51 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

720-913-7831-42102 

06/10/14 60998 
120-279-5895-00193 

05/30/14 51096 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 51246 
150-120-7232-00000 

06/10/14 02260 
730-560-7702-00000 

06/10/14 02299 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 

06/10/14 50641 
260-336-5890-03235 

06/10/14 55520 
250-935-7803-42041 
720-596-7324-00000 
150-160-7501-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 

05/28/14 58029 
720-596-7508-00000 

06/10/14 58029 
150-450-7359-00000 

06/10/14 66106 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 

06/10/14 64168 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 65372 
720-596-7702-00000 
150-230-7702-00000 
710-530-7702-00000 
150-160-7702-00000 
150-410-7702-00000 

NITRATE CONTROLS 

0 CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR MICRO 
REFUND RENTAL 

62252 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 
B.MARTIN DEL CAMPO 

0 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 
SUPPLIES CM LUNCHEON 

0 CARMEL MARINA CORP. 
UNIT RENTAL 

0 CASCADE FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
WILDLAND/STRUCTURE PPE 
WILDLAND/STRUCTURE PPE 
WILDLAND/STRUCTURE PPE 
WILDLAND/STRUCTURE PPE 

0 CASSIDY'S PIZZA 
PAL PIZZA 

0 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC 
JET FLASH DRIVE 
COMP SUPPLIES 
COMP SUPPLIES 
ADAPTERS 

0 CHAZ CUSTOM EMBROIDERY & DIGITIZING 
SAFETY VESTS AND CAPS 

0 CHAZ CUSTOM EMBROIDERY & DIGITIZING 
GUIDE ON FLAG FOR ACADEMY 

0 CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS US LLC 
ALUM SULFATE 
ALUMINUM SULFATE 
ALUM SULFATE 

0 CHEVROLET OF WATSONVILLE 
LOT PARTS 
LOT PARTS 

0 CINTAS DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

9 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209689 

1 209644 

1 209435 

1 209665 

1 209469 

1 209419 

1 209671 

1 209436 

1 209470 

1 209552 

1 209611 

1 209656 

1 209657 

1 209449 

$194.63 
194.63 

$1364.19 
248.83 

1115. 36 

$371.30 
371.30 

$223.95 
223.95 

$260.40 
52.08 
52.08 
52.08 
52.08 
52.08 

$300.00 
300.00 

$12604.12 
12604.12 

$1278.57 
449.02 
704.55 
125.00 

$2231.25 
2231. 25 

$1645.27 
1645.27 

$75.00 
75.00 

$122.00 
122.00 

$152.63 
7.63 

14.19 
130.81 

$802.12 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

06/10/14 66070 
150-315-7559-00000 

06/10/14 62949 
740-570-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

05/30/14 02861 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 64666 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 02888 
720-600-7501-00000 
150-690-7501-00000 
150-160-7501-00000 
150-210-7501-00000 
710-540-7559-00000 

06/04/14 51957 
150-210-7359-00000 

06/10/14 65296 
720-598-7537-42106 

05/30/14 03017 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 03015 
710-911-7835-33161 

06/10/14 50775 
150-450-7331-00000 

06/10/14 59083 
150-419-7559-00000 

06/10/14 63913 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 63913 
354-958-7551-00000 
354-959-7551-00000 
150-680-7551-00000 

05/30/14 65812 

0 CITRON INC.,DBA/PLANPACKS 
CLEAR PLAN BAGS 

0 CLEARBLU ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICE AGREEMENT 
PARTS 

0 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 COMMERCIAL TRUCK COMPANY 
TRUCK PARTS 

0 COMPUCOM SYSTEMS, INC. 
UPS BATTERY 
UPS BATTERY 
UPS BATTERY 
UPS BATTERY 
UPS BATTERY 

0 CONFLICT RESOLUTION CENTER OF 
COMM WORKSHOP 

0 CORIX WATER PRODUCTS, INC. 
SUPPLIES 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
S.CARRILLO 
R.CASTEEL 
O.LOPEZ 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
TRUNK SEWER REPLACE 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
RADIO REPAIR 

0 CRIME SCENE CLEANERS INC 
CLEANING 

0 CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES, INC. 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES, INC. 
SLUG BAIT 
SLUG BAIT 
SLUG BAIT 

0 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

10 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209584 

1 209649 

1 209464 

1 209465 

1 209471 

1 209472 

1 209631 

1 209550 

1 209473 

1 209619 

1 209437 

1 209474 

1 209558 

1 209607 

802.12 

$1799.18 
1799.18 

$16500.00 
16500.00 

$225.00 
225.00 

$389.00 
82.00 
82.00 
77.00 

148.00 

$476.80 
86.80 

390.00 

$160.82 
127.21 

33.61 

$267.00 
267.00 

$58.00 
58.00 

$737.25 
737.25 

$60.00 
60.00 

$286.15 
286.15 

$261.03 
261. 03 

$5885.98 
5865.98 

20.00 

$1140.00 
1140.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 55158 
150-315-7309-00000 

06/10/14 63304 
720-596-7324-00000 

06/10/14 01770 
710-530-7351-00000 

06/10/14 01770 
710-531-7351-00000 
710-530-7351-00000 
710-531-7351-00000 
710-531-7351-00000 

06/10/14 03118 
740-572-7361-00023 
730-560-7511-00000 

06/10/14 03220 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7324-00000 

06/10/14 61416 
120-279-5895-00161 

06/10/14 50646 
710-540-7559-00185 

06/10/14 03379 
150-450-7325-00000 

PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC. 
CHANGE ORDER TERM EXTENDED TO 

0 CSI SERVICES, INC. 
INSPECTIONS 

0 CWEA 
MECH TECH GRADE 1 

0 CWEA 
CERT RENEWAL 
CERTIFICATE RENEWAL 
RENEW CERT 
MEMBERSHIP 

0 D&G SANITATION 
PORT TOILET RENTAL 
DAY IN THE SKY EVENT 

0 DAVIS AUTO PARTS 
PARTS 
PARTS 

0 DE LA TORRE, ELIZABETH 
REFUND 

0 DELICIOUS FRESH AND MORE 
EARTH DAY SUPPLIES 

0 DEO'S APPLIANCE SERVICE 
DISWASHER FOR STATION 2 

INVOICE # 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

06/10/14 59801 
206-364-7307-00000 

0 DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT OUTSTANDING 
STATE ENT ZONE VOUCHERS 

05/30/14 03017 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 03589 
260-339-7559-04001 

06/10/14 52046 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-575-7324-00000 

06/10/14 58402 
150-523-7307-00000 

55719 DEVIN DERHAM-BURK 
E.SANTANA 

0 DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY 
CRAFT SUPPLIES 

0 DIXON & SONS TIRES INC. 
TIRES & FLAT REPAIRS 
TIRES & FLAT REPAIRS 

0 DP SOLUTIONS, INC. 
MAIN PROG SUPPORT 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

11 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209546 

1 209475 

1 209476 

1 209687 

1 209695 

1 209566 

1 209477 

1 209650 

1 209658 

1 209478 

1 209479 

1 285680 

1 209567 

$514.76 
347.93 
166.83 

$129.03 
129.03 

$2630.57 
2630.57 

$1400.00 
1400.00 

$267.00 
267.00 

$2227.91 
186.84 

87.52 
45.92 

1611.31 
136.66 
159.66 

$34.76 
24.87 

9. 8 9 

$3665.53 
3665.53 

$1380.86 
1380.86 

$167.82 
167.82 

$1269.59 
245.67 

26.72 
50.08 

181.06 
190.83 
464.37 
110.86 

$350.00 
350.00 

$211. 25 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

06/10/14 50367 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 03910 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 03911 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 DYNA SYSTEMS 
SHOP SUPPLIES 
FRAME RAIL 

0 EDWARD R BACON COMPANY 
PARTS 

0 EDWARDS TRUCK CENTER INC 
SERVICE 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 65931 0 EFFICIENT TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, LLC. 
150-250-7361-00000 

06/10/14 66155 
120-279-5895-00159 

06/10/14 52833 
150-680-7559-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

06/10/14 04170 
150-620-7212-00000 
150-410-7212-00000 

06/10/14 63391 
150-450-7533-00000 

06/10/14 63960 
730-560-7361-00000 

06/10/14 04282 
720-597-7361-00000 

06/10/14 04302 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 

05/30/14 66153 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 52852 

TECH SUPPORT 

0 ESPINOZA, JUANA 
REFUND 

0 FASTENAL COMPANY 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
DRAIN GUARD 
GLOVES 
SUPPLIES 

0 FEDEX 
SHIPPING CHARGES 
SHIPPING FEE 

0 FIRE SERVICE SPECIFICATION & SUPPLY 
SERVICE WORK HOLMATRO TOOLS 

0 FIRST ALARM SECURITY & PATROL, INC. 
SECURITY SERVICE 

0 FIRST ALARM, INC. 
ALARM SERVICE 

0 FISHER SCIENTIFIC 
LAB SUPPLIES 
PARTS 
PARTS 
LAB SUPPLIES 
LAB SUPPLIES 
LAB SUPPLIES 
LAB SUPPLIES 

0 FRANCISCO MIRELES-TAFOLLA 
PR 5/16/14 TS OMITTED 

0 FREEDOM TUNE-UP 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

12 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209595 

1 209480 

1 209609 

1 209655 

1 209680 

1 209540 

1 208791 

1 209481 

1 209667 

1 209638 

1 209482 

1 209637 

1 209603 

126.75 
84.50 

$232.00 
232.00 

$177.65 
177.65 

$100.00 
100.00 

$255604.30 
255604.30 

$1739.55 
287.10 

1452.45 

.$929.01 
312.91 
616.10 

$11543.78 
11543.78 

$825.00 
825.00 

$14.19 
14.19 

$800.00 
800.00 

$44538.01 
304.98 

4037.02 
35183. 96 

4652.81 
234.57 

43.35 
81. 32 

$100.00 
100.00 

$200.00 
200.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 56117 
740-572-7361-00023 

06/10/14 04707 
250-935-7857-42043 

06/10/14 58750 
720-596-7772-00000 

SMOG INSPECTIONS 
SMOG INSPECTIONS 

0 FREON FREE 
APPLIANCE PROCESSING 

0 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 
BOOKS 

0 GARLAND, MICHAEL 
WASHER REBATE 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 63912 0 GCS ENVIRONMENTAL EQUIPMENT SERVICES, INC. 
740-912-7805-07561 

06/10/14 65597 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 11442 
720-596-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

05/28/14 05030 
720-598-7537-42106 

06/10/14 05085 
720-596-7361-00000 

06/10/14 65001 
150-691-7533-00166 

06/10/14 62292 
710-540-7307-00000 

06/10/14 05209 
710-541-7506-00000 
720-913-7831-42102 
720-913-7831-42102 
720-913-7831-42102 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 
710-541-7506-00000 

06/10/14 62250 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 57888 
150-691-7342-00166 

PIGGY BACK PROPOSAL PO#POP0130 

0 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY 
LOT TIRES 
TIRES 

0 GRAINGER 
CAL GAS 
FILTERS 

0 GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 
PAVING SUPPLIES 

0 GREENLINE 
SERVICE 

0 GROCERY OUTLET 
SNACKS PCS 

0 GUTIERREZ CONSULTANTS, INC 
CONSULTING SERVICES FOR 

0 HACH COMPANY 
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 
CONTROLLER 
NITRATE ANALYZER 
NITRAX PLUS 
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

0 HANKES, CHRISTINA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 HARTNELL COLLEGE 
TRIP-PLANETARIUM 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

13 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209664 

1 208788 

1 209439 

1 209440 

1 209483 

1 209581 

1 209666 

1 209690 

1 209648 

1 209484 

1 209620 

1 209485 

1 209628 

$178.97 
178.97 

$3593.93 
1738.97 
1435.79 

42.27 
60.06 
3.95 

25.95 
31. 97 

223.45 
31. 52 

8.41 
8.41-

$4025.00 
4025.00 

$3196. 89 
3196. 89 

$2613.40 
2613.40 

$7200.00 
7200. 00 

$1415.38 
1415.38 

$152.87 
152.87 

$17.34 
17.34 

$742.71 
742.71 

$295.59 
295.59 

$458.00 
458.00 

$730.00 
91. 00 
91. 00 

548.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

06/10/14 64469 
710-540-7559-00129 

05/28/14 51675 
720-598-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 
730-560-7221-00000 
730-560-7325-00000 
150-692-7510-00210 
150-450-7325-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 
710-540-7559-00129 
260-339-7559-04001 
710-540-7559-00129 

05/30/14 05813 
130-000-2050-00000 

05/30/14 05813 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 05818 
710-532-7506-00000 

06/10/14 54757 
250-935-7803-42041 

06/10/14 64693 
150-450-7359-00000 

06/10/14 66077 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/10/14 63231 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 06009 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 59891 
150-510-7533-00000 

06/10/14 06079 
150-410-7361-00000 

06/10/14 60829 
720-596-7361-00000 
710-531-7361-00000 
720-597-7361-00000 

0 HERNANDEZ, GUSTAVO 
SCI W/SHOP REIMB 

0 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 
303800 

0 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 
303884 PTS 

0 IDEXX LABORATORIES INC. 
GAMMA IRRAD COLILERT 

0 INNOVATIVE INTERFACES, INC. 
RE INDEX 

0 INTERACT PUBLIC SAFETY SYSTEMS 
ANNUAL MAINT CONTRACT 

0 INTERMOUNTAIN SPECIALTY GASES 
CALIB METH GAS 

0 INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER 
BATTERY 

0 INTERSTATE BATTERY CO 
BATTERIES 

0 INTERSTATE TRAFFIC CONTROL PRODUCTS 
SIGNS 

0 J V TOWING 
STG TOWING 

0 JERRY ALLISON LANDSCAPING INC. 
LANDSCAPE SERVICE 
LANDSCAPE SERVICE 
LANDSCAPE SERVICE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

14 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209639 

1 209578 

1 209610 

1 209563 

1 209556 

1 209575 

1 209617 

1 209598 

1 209635 

1 209557 

1 209487 

1 209488 

1 209416 

1 209489 

1 209677 

$100.00 
100.00 

$1336.00 
622.00 
714. 00 

$386.00 
386.00 

$210.90 
210.90 

$7653.86 
7653.86 

$171.95 
171.95 

$3489.00 
3489.00 

$1806.41 
783.29 

1023.12 

$122.00 
122.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$797.13 
371.07 
154.07 
271.99 

$1170.00 
1170.00 

$2500.00 
2500.00 

$1181.00 
1181.00 

$11780.72 
11780.72 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

06/10/14 62396 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 54438 
246-321-7361-00000 
309-525-7361-00000 

06/10/14 59017 
150-680-7541-00000 

0 JIMENEZ, GLORIA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 K & D LANDSCAPING INC. 
LANDSCAPE MAINT 
LANDSCAPE MAINT 

0 KAY PARK-REC CORP. 
REPLACEMENT BBQ GRILLS 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 52417 0 KELLY-MOORE PAINT COMPANY, INC. 
740-570-7559-00024 

06/10/14 51608 
710-530-7551-00000 

06/10/14 53889 
720-596-7559-00000 

06/10/14 59748 
710-911-7835-33161 

06/10/14 56689 
150-450-7323-00000 
150-450-7323-00000 

06/10/14 61999 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 51681 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 06570 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 

06/10/14 06753 
150-409-7307-00000 

06/03/14 66157 
780-293-7533-00000 

06/10/14 06860 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 65393 
150-250-7361-00000 

PAINT 

0 KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS, INC. 
FERRIC CHLORIDE 

0 KEN GRADY COMPANY, INC. 
815 BELLOWS 

0 KESTREL CONSULTING INC. 
CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE CI 

0 KME FIRE APPARATUS 
MANAGER SYSTEM NEG OUTPUTS 
MODEM/VALVES 

0 KRAGEN AUTO PARTS 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 KULICH, PATTY 
WASHER REBATE 

0 L N CURTIS & SONS 
BOOTS 
STRAPS 
TIC BATTERIES 

0 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 
PROF SERVICES 

0 LODGE, AARON J. 
SETTLEMENT 

0 MAGGIORA BROS DRILLING CO. INC 
OH PUMP 

0 MAINLINE INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. 
VMWARE RENEWAL SUPPORT 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

15 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209682 

1 209491 

1 209490 

1 209571 

1 209492 

1 209585 

1 209493 

1 208789 

1 209569 

1 209582 

1 209494 

1 209573 

1 299495 

1 209438 

1 209640 

$59.68 
59.68 

$3614.16 
3614.16 

$4707.17 
4707.17 

$129.00 
129.00 

$56.14 
56.14 

$400.00 
200.00 
200.00 

$332.49 
43.16 

289.33 

$1027.55 
1027.55 

$217.00 
217.00 

$896.40 
295.00 
157.40 
244.00 
100.00 
100.00 

$921. 00 
921.00 

$113. 00 
113. 00 

$6269. 76 
6269.76 

$22195.14 
22195.14 

$243.93 
40.63 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

06/10/14 65685 
150-110-7357-00000 

06/10/14 06975 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 06970 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 53138 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 07063 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/10/14 55184 
720-596-7357-00000 
150-280-7357-00000 

06/10/14 07130 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

05/28/14 65885 
787-299-7320-00000 

06/10/14 53063 
250-935-7857-42043 

06/10/14 54802 
710-541-7315-07022 
710-541-7315-07026 
710-532-7315-00000 
710-534-7361-00000 
710-541-7315-07024 

06/10/14 07367 
150-450-7361-00000 

06/10/14 53542 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 07620 
150-280-7307-00000 

05/30/14 05078 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 62579 
150-230-7212-00000 

0 MALDONADO, JUAN 
BUS CARDS K.CERVANTEZ 

0 MARTY FRANICH CHRYSLER DODGE JEEP 
VEHICLE REPAIR 

0 MARTY FRANICH FORD-LINCOLN-MERCURY 
AUTO REPAIRS 

0 MCDONALD'S 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 MCMASTER CARR 
LIGHT BULBS 

0 MCQUADE,PATRICIA 
WATER QUALITY REPORT 
JUNE 2014 OUR TOWN NEWSLETTER 

0 MERCURY METALS, INC 
REPAIRS 
REPAIRS 

0 MES VISION 
CLAIMS 

0 MIGRANT MEDIA PRODUCTIONS 
DVDS 

0 MONTEREY BAY ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC. 
ANALYSIS 
ANALYSIS 
ANALYSIS 
ANALYSIS 
ANALYSIS 

0 MONTEREY BAY UNIFIED AIR 
PERMITS 

0 MORENO PETROLEUM COMPANY 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 MUNI SERVICES 
SALES TAX AUDIT 

0 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 NEOPOST, INC. 
MAIL MACHINE CHARGES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

16 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209577 

1 209560 

1 209599 

1 209625 

1 209645 

1 209696 

1 209636 

1 209684 

1 209647 

1 209496 

1 209497 

1 209498 

1 209499 

1 209500 

40.66 
40.66 
40.66 
40.66 
40.66 

$93.40 
93.40 

$100.00 
100.00 

$133.89 
133.89 

$80.00 
80.00 

$4735.10 
4735.10 

$1000.00 
1000.00 

$498.94 
314. 64 

42. 71 
97.05 
44.54 

$642.71 
642. 71 

$315.05 
315.05 

$1037.10 
1037.10 

$337.27 
337.27 

$39.40 
39.40 

$53.95 
53.95 

$97.34 
97.34 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

710-530-7212-00000 
720-596-7212-00000 
730-560-7212-00000 
740-570-7212-00000 
150-620-7212-00000 

06/10/14 54362 
150-626-7542-00000 

06/10/14 52233 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 57105 
710-541-7506-00000 

06/10/14 60342 
150-523-7562-00000 

06/10/14 63012 
710-532-7551-00000 

06/10/14 66156 
150-250-7359-00000 

MAIL MACHINE CHARGES 
MAIL MACHINE CHARGES 
MAIL MACHINE CHARGES 
MAIL MACHINE CHARGES 
MAIL MACHINE CHARGES 

0 NEW READERS PRESS 
BOOKS 

0 NOBLE, ALICIA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 
WATER BATH CONDITIONER 

0 NPM INC. 
TANK INSPECTION 

0 OLIN CORPORATION 
SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 

0 ORTEGA, CARLOS 
GLOBAL NETWORK ARCHITECTURE 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 62007 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 

0 OSUNA AUTO ELECTRIC & SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 
PARTS 

06/10/14 65760 
250-935-7857-42043 

06/10/14 63167 
710-541-7506-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
150-680-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
150-450-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
150-510-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
710-530-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
150-510-7211-00000 

LABOR AND BOLTS 
TRIMMER HEAD 
TWRENCH 

0 OVERDRIVE INC. 
E-BOOKS 

0 PACIFIC 4 
GLOVES 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
795 VISTA MONTANA 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
370 AIRPORT STE 100 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
PAJARO @ GRN VLY 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
W BEACH & LEE 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
HWY 129@ BLKB 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

17 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 PAGE 18 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 
CHECK 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME STATUS 
WO # AMOUNT G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # INV VEND 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1 209501 $981. 32 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
981. 32 740-572-7211-00000 500 2ND ST 

1 209502 $966.41 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
966. 41 150-510-7211-00000 FREEDOM/DAVIS 

1 209503 $33492.45 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
33492.45 710-532-7211-00000 401 PANABAKER 

1 209504 $2802.80 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
2802.80 309-525-7211-00000 260 RODRIGUEZ 

1 209505 $18. 96 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
18. 96 150-680-7211-00000 201 PACIFICA 

1 209506 $236.87 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
236.87 730-560-7211-00000 100 AVIATION WY 

1 209507 $255.58 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
255.58 150-688-7211-00000 26 W FRONT ST 

1 209508 $10.40 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
10.40 150-690-7211-00000 75 HOPE DR 

1 209509 $56.29 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
56.29 150-510-7211-00000 HARKIN SLU 

1 209510 $404.96 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
404.96 150-510-7211-00000 W BEACH AND MAIN 

1 209511 $2570.59 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
2570.59 710-531-7211-00000 PUFFIN LN 

1 209512 $10.79 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
10.79 354-959-7211-00000 1180 E LAKE 

1 209513 $219.81 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
219.81 150-510-7211-00000 CENTRAL AVE 

1 209514 $16745.87 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
16745.87 710-530-7211-00000 401 PANABAKER 

1 209515 $156.82 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
156.82 150-510-7211-00000 W 5TH & MAIN 

1 209516 $19.05 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
19.05 710-530-7211-00000 500 CLEARWATER LN 

1 209517 $49990.10 06/10/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209518 

1 209519 

1 209520 

1 209521 

1 209522 

1 209523 

1 209547 

1 209587 

1 209524 

1 209559 

1 209525 

49990.10 

$9.53 
9.53 

$3324.19 
3324.19 

$1190.29 
1190.29 

$45.30 
45.30 

$93.24 
93.24 

$1093.33 
320.04 
283.86 
332.08 

23.46 
130.04 

3.85 

$84.83 
84.83 

$1692.28 
20.00 

646.84 
7.53 

926.84 
91. 07 

$784.23 
9.08 

14.05 
27.65 

410.38 
94.18 
53.25 

142.57 
33.07 

$23606.55 
7887.04 

15719.51 

$6557.10 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

720-596-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
720-596-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
150-680-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
354-959-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
150-680-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08230 
150-417-7211-00000 

06/10/14 08300 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-572-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 

06/10/14 50555 
720-596-7770-00000 

51 BURCHELL 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
127 RIVERSIDE DR 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
GREEN VLY RD 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
125 AVIATION 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
37 DAVIS AVE 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
130 RODRIGUEZ 

0 PACIFIC TRUCK PARTS 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 

0 PAIVA,FRANCISCO/BERNARDETT 
REFUND CLOSED ACCOUNT 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 55375 0 PAJARO VALLEY FABRICATION INC. 
150-410-7361-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-572-7324-00023 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 08340 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-450-7325-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-572-7559-00000 
150-680-7541-00000 
730-560-7507-00000 
780-293-7533-00000 

06/10/14 52165 
260-336-7367-03234 
260-336-7367-03226 

06/10/14 08343 

DRAWER PANEL REPAIR 
CONTAINER REPAIR 
MFG ROUND SOLID 
CONTAINER REPAIR 
10 GAGE HR PLATE 

0 PAJARO VALLEY LOCK SHOP 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 
LOCKS AND REPAIRS 

0 PAJARO VALLEY PREVENTION & STUDENT 
RESOLUTION NO. 6-14(CM) 
RESOLUTION NO. 8-13 (CM) 

0 PAJARO VALLEY PRINTING 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

19 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209448 

1 209614 

1 209406 

1 209407 

1 208786 

1 209586 

1 209417 

1 209616 

1 209668 

1 208790 

1 209602 

1 11112389 

1 209526 

1 209527 

113. 93 
85.06 

146.48 
1546.13 
4665.50 

$54.00 
54.00 

$375.00 
375.00 

$218.50 
218.50 

$218.50 
218.50 

$2000.29 
2000.29 

$28085.23 
2495.50 

25589.73 

$5764.98 
5764.98 

$438.06 
217.62 
128.52 

22.98 
68.94 

$640.00 
640.00 

$22217.74 
22217.74 

$199.00 
199.00 

$241095.49 
241095.49 

$221. 66 
221. 66 

$138.30 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

730-560-7357-00000 
150-691-7501-00166 
150-523-7559-00000 
150-280-7357-00000 
720-596-7357-00000 

05/30/14 59033 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 59615 
150-690-7361-00000 

05/28/14 66105 
150-409-7359-00000 

05/28/14 66105 
150-409-7359-00000 

05/28/14 08559 
740-575-7323-00000 

06/10/14 55259 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 

06/04/14 60472 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 59675 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
730-560-7702-00000 
740-575-7559-00000 

06/10/14 65134 
305-923-7837-33101 

05/28/14 65844 
787-299-7318-00000 

06/10/14 57697 
150-626-7351-00000 

05/30/14 08840 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 08892 
740-575-7324-00000 

06/10/14 09035 

OPEN HOUSE FLYERS 
MAY CONTIGO NEWSLETTERS 
DRIVERS VEH INSPEC REPORT 
JUNE 2014 OUR TOWN NEWSLETTER 
WATER QUALITY REPORT 

0 PAL POLICE ACTIVITIES LEAGUE 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 PANTHER PROTECTIVE SERVICE 
SECURITY SERVICES 

0 PEREZ, JOSEPH 
MEAL ADVANCE 

0 PEREZ, JOSEPH 
MEAL ADVANCE 

0 PETERSON TRACTOR COMPANY 
REPAIR A/C EQUIP#NM07762 

0 POLYDYNE, INC 
CLARIFLOC 
POLYMER LOAD 

0 POWERPLAN 
SERVICE/PARTS 

0 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION,INC 
CYLINDER CHARGES 
CYLINDER DEMURRAGE/RENTAL 
CYLINDER CHARGES 
WELDING SUPPLIES 

0 PRECISION CONCRETE CUTTING INC. 
SIDEWALK REPAIR 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS 

0 PROLITERACY MEMBERSHIP 
MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 

0 PUBLIC EMP RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 QED ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS, INC. 
PUMP COUNTERS 

0 RADIO SHACK CORPORATION 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

20 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209528 

1 209613 

1 209583 

1 209693 

1 209529 

1 209530 

1 209662 

1 209654 

1 209570 

1 209588 

1 209624 

1 209572 

1 209646 

1 209544 

1 209554 

138.30 

$60.00 
60.00 

$4665.00 
4665.00 

$35.00 
35.00 

$336.01 
336.01 

$19.95 
19.95 

$288.05 
141.69 
146.36 

$280.00 
140.00 
140.00 

$310.00 
310.00 

$186.18 
186.18 

$40.00 
40.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$238.18 
166.18 

72. 00 

$126.00 
126.00 

$110.00 
110. 00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

720-598-7559-00000 

06/10/14 09070 
740-570-7324-00000 

06/10/14 59578 
720-596-7307-03180 

06/10/14 55025 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 66152 
150-450-7359-00000 

06/10/14 09100 
710-534-7361-00000 

06/10/14 09140 
150-315-7221-00000 
150-315-7221-00000 

NIKON COOLPIX 

0 RAYS UPHOLSTERY 
TARP 

0 RBF CONSULTING 
RESOLUTION NO. 65-10 

0 RDO EQUIPMENT CO. 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 RED WING SHOE STORE 
BOOTS 

0 REDSHIFT INTERNET SERVICES 
WEB HOSTING 

0 REGISTER PAJARONIAN 
PUBLIC HEARING ADS 
PUBLIC HEARING ADS 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 64437 
150-450-7222-00000 
150-450-7222-00000 

0 REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L 
MONTHLY SERVICE 

06/10/14 63855 
150-210-7307-00000 

06/10/14 53134 
150-250-7322-00000 

06/10/14 55436 
740-570-7091-00000 

06/10/14 60079 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 53497 
720-596-7771-00000 

06/10/14 63072 
710-540-7351-00000 
710-540-7232-00000 

06/10/14 50187 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 51102 
150-523-7505-00000 

MONTHLY SERVICE 

0 RENNE SLOAN HOLTZMAN SAKAI LLP 
PRO SERVICES 

0 RICOH USA, INC. 
IKON COPIER CHARGES 

0 ROCHA, DANIEL 
RESOLE BOOTS 

0 ROCHA, ESPERANZA 
WASHER REBATE 

0 ROCHA, RAMIRO 
LOW FLOW TOILET 

0 RODRIGUEZ, MARIA ESTHER 
REIMB EXPENSES 
REIMB EXPENSES 

0 ROUND TABLE PIZZA 
REFUND 

0 SAFARI SIGNS 
LOT DECALS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

21 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209414 

1 209597 

1 209612 

1 209413 

1 209531 

1 209604 

1 209627 

1 209532 

1 209441 

1 209445 

1 209608 

1 209579 

$373.99 
64. 94 

209.48 
99.57 

$300.00 
300.00 

$59.75 
59.75 

$542.50 
542.50 

$185.00 
140.00 

45.00 

$250.00 
250.00 

$75.00 
75.00 

$431. 40 
118. 02 
134.30 
128.21 

50.87 

$1213.57 
1213.57 

$2.00 
2.00 

$12189.08 
4011.28 
163.39 
326.78 

2344.69 
2834.86 

163.39 
2344.69 

$793.95 
24.03 
72.18 
48.12 
24.06 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

06/03/14 63029 
260-336-5890-03235 
150-688-7344-00000 
150-120-7232-00000 

06/10/14 56657 
740-575-7361-00000 

06/10/14 59557 
260-336-7232-03234 

06/03/14 59351 
150-691-7361-00158 

06/10/14 09487 
150-692-7351-00163 
150-692-7351-00210 

06/10/14 57988 
150-450-7351-00000 

06/10/14 60576 
720-596-7361-00000 

06/10/14 09839 
150-680-7533-00000 
740-575-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
730-560-7509-00000 

05/30/14 09882 
130-000-2050-00000 

05/30/14 55327 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 58676 
150-280-7765-00000 
202-367-7222-00000 
150-620-7222-00000 
710-530-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
730-560-7222-00000 
740-570-7222-00000 

06/10/14 54553 
150-220-7222-00000 
710-530-7222-00000 
710-531-7222-00000 
710-540-7222-00000 

0 SAFEWAY, INC. OUTSTANDING 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 SALA BROTHERS WATER TRUCKING, INC. OUTSTANDING 
LOAD WATER 

0 SALAS, CORESTA OUTSTANDING 
MEAL ADVANCE 

0 SANCHEZ, LUIS OUTSTANDING 
INSTRUCTOR STYLEZ DANCE CLASS 

0 SANCRA OUTSTANDING 
TEAM DUES 
TEAM DUES 

0 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY EMS INTEGRATION AUTHORITY OUTSTANDING 
EMSIA DUES ASSMNT 2013/14 

0 SCHALOW, FRED OUTSTANDING 
LANDSCAPE SERVICES 

0 SCOTTS VALLEY SPRINKLER & PIPE 
PRAK SUPPLIES 
PRAK SUPPLIES 
PRAK SUPPLIES 
PRAK SUPPLIES 

0 SEIU LOCAL 521 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 SEIU LOCAL 521 COPE 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 SIEMENS ENTERPRISE COMMUNICATIONS INC. 
QTR MAINT 
QTR MAINT 
QTR MAINT 
QTR MAINT 
QTR MAINT 
QTR MAINT 
QTR MAINT 

0 SPRINT 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

22 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209580 

1 209442 

1 209643 

1 209688 

1 209596 

1 209692 

1 209606 

1 209533 

24.06 
120.30 
24.06 
24.06 
96. 24 

120.30 
120.30 

48.12 
48.12 

$1014.04 
213.94 

18.15 
75.98 

705.97 

$175.00 
175.00 

$4265.50 
1287.50 
1469.50 
1508.50 

$33952.61 
33952.61 

$87.00 
87.00 

$ 66. 64 
50.38 
16.26 

$2083.20 
2083.20 

$3067.16 
74.85 
40.09 
22.86 
77.19 
14 .11 

117.74 
370.79 

90.35 
90.35 
92.17 
40.09 

160.36 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

710-541-7222-00000 
740-570-7222-00000 
740-571-7222-00000 
740-572-7222-00000 
740-575-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
720-597-7222-00000 
720-598-7222-00000 
150-680-7222-00000 

06/10/14 54553 
730-560-7222-00000 
150-450-7222-00000 
150-250-7222-00000 
150-409-7222-00000 

05/30/14 10338 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 62855 
740-572-7361-00023 
740-572-7361-00023 
740-572-7361-00023 

CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 

0 SPRINT 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 

0 ST OF CA FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
A.HERNANDEZ 

0 ST VINCENT DE PAUL 
RECYCLE MATTRESS/BOX SPINGS 
MATTRESS/BOX SPRING RECYCLE 
MATTRESS/BOX SPRING RECYCLE 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 65983 
150-510-7211-00000 

0 STATE OF CALIFORNIA ENERGY RESOURCES 
RETROFIT LOAN PAYMENT JUNE2014 

06/10/14 56142 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 66117 
150-691-7533-00166 
720-596-7559-00000 

06/10/14 58129 
150-680-7551-00000 

06/10/14 10680 
150-315-7501-00000 
150-691-7501-00166 
710-540-7559-00129 
260-339-7559-04001 
150-410-7501-00000 
150-160-7501-00000 
150-692-7510-00210 
710-530-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
150-230-7501-00000 
730-560-7501-00000 
150-450-7501-00000 

0 STONE CREEK 
FIRE INSPECTION 

0 TARGET BANK 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 TARGET SPECIALTY PRODUCTS 
FERTILIZER 

0 TAYLOR'S OFFICE CITY 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

23 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

209626 

209534 

209672 

209675 

209623 

209535 

209633 

209536 

209615 

209679 

209686 

209537 

209622 

209443 

209669 

195.84 
28.10 

1238.80 
239.89 

21. 56 
152.02 

$175.00 
175.00 

$4722.96 
4722.96 

$101. 73 
101. 73 

$435.00 
435.00 

$548.45 
453.45 

95.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$44.50 
44.50 

$1400.00 
1400.00 

$521. 86 
521.86 

$455.42 
455.42 

$1193.50 
1193.50 

$180.34 
180.34 

$272.00 
272. 00 

$437.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

740-570-7559-00000 
150-692-7510-00163 
720-597-7559-00000 
150-210-7501-00000 
150-130-7501-00000 
150-120-7501-00000 

06/10/14 60367 
710-531-7091-00000 

06/10/14 10704 
720-596-7324-00000 

06/10/14 65312 

06/10/14 65312 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/10/14 60061 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 10771 
150-690-7325-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 

06/10/14 61837 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 10924 
150-450-7361-00000 

06/10/14 59642 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/10/14 65567 
150-410-7325-00000 

06/10/14 65857 
170-231-7302-00000 

06/10/14 11065 
150-250-7322-00000 

06/10/14 60026 
150-523-7505-00000 

05/30/14 11070 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 65182 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

0 TELLEZ, RUBEN 
SAFETY BOOTS 

0 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS, INC. 
CHLORINE REGULATOR 

0 UNISSUED 

0 TENNANT SALES AND SERVICE COMPANY 
SWEEPER PARTS 

0 TERMINAL FREEZERS 
FIRE INSPECTIONS 

0 TINO'S PLUMBING, INC 
REPAIR 2ND ST CENTER 
RESTROOM CALLAGHAN PARK 

0 TORRES H., AGUSTIN 
WASHER REBATE 

0 TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION INC 
SERVICE 

0 TRITON CONSTRUCTION 
YEARLY INSPECTIONS 

O TWAcomm.com 
LOBBY PHONE 

0 UNION BANK 
BANKING SERVICES 

0 UNISYS CORPORATION 
MAINT 

0 UNITED ROTARY BRUSH CORPORATION 
BROOM DISC 

0 UNITED WAY OF SANTA CRUZ CO 
PAYROLL FOR - 053014 

0 URETSKY, ELY 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

24 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209545 

1 209539 

1 209663 

1 209561 

1 209590 

1 209591 

1 209592 

1 209642 

1 209538 

1 209641 

437.00 

$4671. 77 
3558.15 
1113. 62 

$88.97 
88.97 

$142.08 
9.27 

69.27 
29.27 
34.27 

$75.60 
75.60 

$477.08 
266.98 

91. 34 
16.40 

3.75 
95.39 
3.22 

$614.84 
36.31 

253.61 
38.01 
33.31 

253.60 

$454.99 
266.47 

93.06 
3.04 

72. 50 
5.28 

14. 64 

$100.00 
100.00 

$73.00 
73.00 

$5625.00 
5625.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-409-7359-00000 

06/10/14 50326 
710-530-7324-00000 
720-913-7855-42103 

06/10/14 11160 
150-410-7559-00000 

06/10/14 64465 
150-450-7516-00000 
150-450-7516-00000 
150-450-7516-00000 
150-450-7516-00000 

06/10/14 52255 
720-596-7232-00000 

06/10/14 55799 
720-597-7222-00000 
150-220-7222-00000 
720-598-7222-00000 
710-540-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
710-531-7222-00000 

06/10/14 55799 
150-315-7222-00000 
150-110-7222-00000 
150-450-7222-00000 
202-367-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 

06/10/14 55799 
720-597-7222-00000 
150-220-7222-00000 
710-540-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
710-531-7222-00000 
720-598-7222-00000 

06/10/14 62789 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/10/14 11143 
710-541-7506-00000 

06/10/14 62757 
740-570-7307-00000 

ADV TC INVESTIGATIONS WK1&2 

0 USABLUEBOOK 
ODORGONE 
SIEMENS PROBE LU 

0 VALLEY FEED 
FOOD ELLEX 

0 VAPOR CLEANERS 
TURNOUT PANTS REPAIR/CLEANING 
TURNOUT PANTS REPAIR/CLEANING 
TURNOUT PANTS REPAIR/CLEANING 
TURNOUT PANTS REPAIR/CLEANING 

0 VASQUEZ, JOAQUIN 
TRVL EXP CANV AWWA EXAM 

0 VERIZON WIRELESS 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 

0 
CELL 
CELL 
CELL 
CELL 
CELL 

VERIZON WIRELESS 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 

0 VERIZON WIRELESS 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 

0 VILLEGAS, HERMENEGILDO 
WASHER REBATE 

0 VWR INTERNATIONAL INC. 
SYRINGES 

0 WACTOR & WICK LLP 
CONSULTING SERVICES 

INVOICE # 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEN.D 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

25 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209447 $2935.59 
2935.59 

1 209541 $152.99 
152.99 

1 209542 $57.29 
57.29 

1 209543 $122.00 
122.00 

1 209621 $6018.40 
4118.40 
1900. 00 

1 209634 $119.47 
119. 4 7 

1 209574 $570.00 
570.00 

1 11112391 $202828.66 
98194.38 
73929.22 
30705.06 

1 11112390 $35950.31 
1959.05 

33991.26 

1 209661 $39.54 
39.54 

TOTAL # OF ISSUED CHECKS: 

TOTAL # OF VOIDED/REISSUED CHECKS: 

TOTAL # OF ACH CHECKS: 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 05/28/14 - 06/10/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

05/30/14 58532 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 11514 
150-315-7559-00000 

0 WAGEWORKS INC 
AF06989 

0 WATSONVILLE BLUEPRINT 
BOND COPY 

INVOICE # 

06/10/14 11515 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 WATSONVILLE CADILLAC BUICK GMC 
PARTS 

06/10/14 11517 
150-450-7770-00000 

06/10/14 59908 
710-540-7361-00421 
710-530-7559-00000 

06/10/14 61910 
720-596-7770-00000 

06/10/14 53652 
730-560-7770-00000 

05/30/14 11700 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

05/30/14 10334 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/10/14 6437 9 
150-620-7212-00000 

284 

0 

0 

TOTAL AMOUNT: 

TOTAL AMOUNT: 

TOTAL AMOUNT: 

0 WATSONVILLE DISCOUNT MALL 
REFUND FIRE INSPECT 

0 WATSONVILLE WETLANDS WATCH 
CONDUCT SLOUGH TRAIL MAINTENAN 
PAJARO RIVER PROJECT 

0 WILSON, CAROL 
REFUND ACCOUNT 

0 WILSON, RICHARD 
CLOSED AIRPORT ACCOUNT 

0 WIRE TRANSFER-IRS 
FEDERAL 
SOCIAL SECURITY 
MEDICARE 

0 WIRE TRANSFER-STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
SDI 77651115 
PIT 80038870 

0 ZOOM IMAGING SOLUTIONS 
SHIPPING CHARGES 

1504203.23 

0.00 

0.00 

TOTAL # OF UNISSUED CHECKS: 1 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

26 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

FUND TOTALS 

FUND 

120 
130 
150 
170 
202 
206 
207 
221 
246 
250 
260 
305 
309 
349 
354 
710 
720 
730 
740 
765 
780 
787 

GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 

FUND NAME 

TRUST FUND 
EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 
GENERAL FUND 
INVESTMENT FUND 
REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 
ENTERPRIZE ZONE 
RENTAL REHAB FUND 
INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 
CIVIC CENTER COMMON AREA 
LIBRARY FUND 
SPECIAL GRANTS 
GAS TAX 
PARKING GARAGE FUND 
PUBLIC FACILITIES IMPACT FEES 
SPECIAL DISTRICT FUNDS 
SEWER SERVICE FUND 
WATER OPERATING FUND 
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 
WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 
COMPUTER FUND - ISF 
WORKERS COMP/LIABILITY FUND 
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND - POOL 

TOTAL -

ISSUED TOTAL 

1,356.08 
523,539.01 
219,385.39 

455.42 
196. 70 

60.00 
5,942.14 

85.45 
1,852.78 
9,996.91 

25,025.02 
10,113.50 

7,529.10 
13,474.00 

1,274.01 
143,510.40 
176,063.39 

50,992.92 
283,894.00 

431.19 
5, 780.53 

23,245.29 

1,504,203.23 

RUN: THURSDAY JUN052014 09:33 

VOIDED/REISSUED TOTAL 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

PAGE 27 



REPORT: APEDIT 

Batch # 1868 

Account # 

130-000-2050-00000 

GENERATED: 12 AUG 13 07:53 

Account Name 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
GL Offsetting Entries 

Expenditure Summary 

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS PAYABLE 

RUN: THURSDAY MAY292014 09:45 PAGE 10 

Amount Acct Mth Date Acct Mth Total 

$523,539.01 2014/05 05/30/14 $523,539.01 



INFORMATION ITEMS 
June 10, 2014

1.0 MINUTES 

--Parks & Recreation Commission 
   May 1, 2014 

2.0 PROCLAMATIONS 

--Youth N.O.W. 
May 30, 2014 

--Kiyoko “Nancy” Iwami 
 June 5, 2014 

--Dr. Masako Miura 
  June 5, 2014 

CITY COUNCIL 10.2b



 

1 
 

 Minutes     
 CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
      

 Old City Council Chambers 
City Hall, 250 Main Street, Watsonville 

 
May 1, 2014       6:30 P.M. 

===================================================================== 

1.0    ROLL CALL                  
 

Commissioners:   DeHart, Garcia, Hurtado-Aldana, Lopez, Orozco, Rodriguez, 
Sauer  

Staff:   Parks and Community Services Director Ana Espinoza 
   Assistant Director Brad Blachly 
   Recreation Supervisor Jaime Jimenez 
                                   Recreation Coordinator Christian Miranda 
   Administrative Assistant I Desiree Moya   

      

2.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

a) Oral Communications from Commissioners & Members of the Public 
 

Commissioner DeHart commented that the Contigo Program newsletter 
included in the Commission packet was great because it talked about a 
participant field trip to Sierra Azul nursery.  Also, the Contigo Parent 
Leadership Committee has been provided with important information on 
bullying. DeHart asked who receives the newsletter.  Director Espinoza 
explained that the newsletter is distributed to nearby neighborhoods; 
Contigo Program participants and the sponsors that helped pay for its 
publication. DeHart suggested that the newsletter be provided to the City 
Council. Commissioner Garcia reported that she attended a PVUSD 
parent conference at Watsonville High School where Contigo staff 
provided a workshop on how parents can support their children to be 
successful in school.  Garcia suggested that in addition to the Migrant 
Parent Program, this workshop should be presented to other District 
parents. 
 
Commissioner Garcia also attended the Day of the Child/Earth Day event 
and one of the booths that she viewed was the Santa Cruz Discovery 
Children’s Museum that Commissioner Lopez was a volunteer. Garcia 
asked if Lopez could share more information. Commissioner Lopez 
explained that they are doing some community outreach to let people 
know that they are trying to open a children’s discovery museum in South 
County.  
 

Commissioner Garcia acknowledged the efficiency and ease in reviewing 
the May 1st meeting agenda packet emailed to the Commission.  The 
Commission had also received a paper agenda packet.  She requested 
that staff look into the possibility of the Parks and Recreation Commission 
receiving digital agenda’s instead of paper agenda packets. 



 

 2 

                                                          
b)      Correspondence Addressed/Referred to Commission 

 

 
3.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

3.1 Motion to Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of   
April 3, 2014 
 

   Commissioner Orozco moved to approve Consent Agenda 
Commissioner Garcia second that motion 

 
Chair Rodriguez took a vote: 
Ayes:  DeHart, Garcia, Hurtado-Aldana, Lopez, Orozco, 

Rodriguez, Sauer 
Noes:  None 
Abstains: None 
Absent:  None 

 
  
 

4.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 
 
 

6.0 PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS 
 

6.1 Report on the Results of the  Pre-Perception Survey Conducted in    
the Downtown Target  Neighborhood by Recreation Coordinator 
Christian Miranda 
 
 
Recreation Coordinator Christian Miranda provided an overview of the 
Neighborhood Development Program and reviewed the background on 
how the new Downtown target neighborhood was selected in 2013.  The 
goals of working in a target neighborhood are to increase awareness; 
engage residents; build a relationship and  trust with residents; address 
neighborhood issues and concerns; support residents to  create a 
neighborhood action plan that enables  them  to work together to reduce 
crime and to improve the overall  health of the neighborhood. 
 
An aspect of the Neighborhood Development Program is conducting a 
Safety Pre-Perception survey of residents in the target neighborhood.  The 
composition of the Downtown neighborhood is unique in that it will also 
include the participation of social service agencies, education and 
businesses.  The areas that were evaluated from the surveys were crime 
and safety, aesthetics of the neighborhood, neighborhood development, 
leadership and community involvement, and access to City programs and 



 

3 
 

services.  Staff also noted that an advisory committee known as AdCom 
has also been formed which will include representatives from all four stake 
holder groups.  AdCom will help guide the work in the Downtown target 
neighborhood.  
 
A total of 263 surveys were conducted—213 residents, 23 social services 
providers/education and 27 businesses were surveyed.  Staff reviewed the 
combined results of the survey. In April, staff held two neighborhood 
strategic meetings to present the results of the surveys to the residents.  
Priority areas for residents are crime and safety and more services for 
youth.  Staff responded to questions from the Commission regarding the 
survey results.         
 

6.2 Report on the Youth Soccer Program Affiliation with Club 
Universidad Nacional A.C. (PUMAS Soccer Club)  by Recreation 
Supervisor Jaime Jimenez  

 
Recreation Supervisor Jaime Jimenez provided a report on the Youth 
Soccer Program affiliation with the Club Universidad Nacional A.C 
(PUMAS Soccer Club).  In 2013, both the Commission and the City 
Council approved the affiliation with the PUMAS Soccer Club from Mexico, 
the Club Universidad Nacional (PUMAS Soccer Club). The reason for the 
PUMAS affiliation is to assist Youth Soccer Program participants to 
enhance and further develop their cognitive skills, motor skills, 
communication skills, social skills, and increase their self-esteem. 
 
In April, Maurico Pedroza, a former soccer player with the Pumas and who 
is currently the Affiliations Director for the PUMAS Soccer Club, came 
from Mexico to meet with the City’s Youth Soccer Program Coordinator, 
and League participants and volunteer coaches.  Local media such as 
Univision interviewed Mr. Pedroza and La Preciosa radio station 
conducted a phone interview as well.   
 
During Pedroza’s visit, he spent time at Ramsay Park Sotomayor soccer 
field and was able to see some of the soccer practices.  Mr. Pedroza 
provided training for the volunteer soccer coaches and League staff on the 
fundamentals of soccer.  The following day coaches used the skills they 
gained from the training. 
 
Mr. Pedroza’s provided the Parks and Community Services Department 
with a shield and certificate recognizing the City for its affiliation with the 
PUMAS Soccer Club.  
 
Staff answered questions from the Commission. 

 
 

7.0 NEW BUSINESS  
           None 

 
 



 

 4 

8.0   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None             

 
 

9.0  REPORTS 
9.1 Director’s Report  

Director Espinoza reported on special classes advertised in the recreation 
activity guide such as Styles Dance, Cardio Hula, Gymnastics and 
Aquatics programs.  She also informed the Commission that at the last 
City Council meeting, the City Council approved a plan to be submitted to 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development for a Community 
Block Grants Program funds (CDBG) to support projects that revitalize 
specific areas in the city.  Some of the projects approved by the City 
Council related to the Department are: ADA improvements to the 
Marinovich Community Center restrooms; expansion and relocation of the 
Ramsay skate park to another location at Ramsay Park and the 
renovation of the Ramsay Park public restroom near the soccer field.  The 
Ramsay skate park and public restroom renovation would require an 
allocation of Park Development funds by the City Council during their FY 
14-15 budget hearings. It is also desired that the community will help raise 
funds to support this project.  If the project moves forward, a community 
input and design process will be implemented.  A contingency project that 
will be included in the CDBG Plan, a longer-term project,  is the  
establishment of  a pocket park in front of City Hall that would be an 
aspect  of the Downtown improvement and revitalization strategy.    

 
 
     
10.0 ADJOURNMENT 

The next Commission meeting will be held on June 5, 2014 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS (Bolded Items included in current packet)  

3.1    Minutes of the April 3, 2014 Meeting  
6.1    Staff Report on Results of the Pre-Perception Surveys for the 
         Downtown Target  Neighborhood 

 6.2 Staff Report on the Youth Soccer Program Affiliation with Club 
Universidad Nacional A.C.  

9.1    Contigo Newsletter  
          
 

State of California) 

   )Ss. 

County of Santa Cruz) 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by 

the City of Watsonville, in the Parks & Recreation 

Department that I posted this Agenda on the outdoor 

bulletin board in front of City Hall, 250 Main Street   

    

 

Dated:       

 

Signature____________________________________ 








	Agenda
	Item 4.1a Rejection of Claim Nichols Resolution
	Item 4.1b Rejection of Claim Waidelich Resolution
	Item 4.2 Grove St. Pump Station Project Report
	Item 4.2 Grove Street Pump Station Resolution
	Item 4.3 Levee Pump Stations Report
	Item 4.3 Levee Pump Stations Resolution
	Item 4.4 SEATS for KIDS Program Report
	Item 4.4 SEATS for Kids Program Resolution
	Item 4.5 Skate Park Design Contract Report
	Item 4.5 Skate Park Design Contract Resolution
	Item 4.6 HOME Grant Report
	Item 4.6 HOME Grant Resolution
	Item 4.7 CalHome Grant Report
	Item 4.7 CalHome Grant Resolution
	Item 4.8 Homeland Security Grant Report
	Item 4.8 Homeland Security Grant Resolution
	Item 6.1a Appeal El Popo Report
	Item 6.1f Appeal El Popo Resolution
	Item 6.2a Atkinson Housing Project Report
	Item 6.2d Atkinson NOD Resolution
	Item 6.2e Atkinson SUP Resolution
	Item 6.2f Atkinson MOU Resolution
	Item 6.2g Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance
	Item 6.2h Atkinson Housing Project Loan Resolution
	Item 6.3a Budget Report
	Item 6.3d Budget & CIP Resolution
	Item 6.3e Budget Gann Limit Resolution
	Item 6.3f Budget Retirement Resolution
	Item 6.3g Budget Scorekeeper Game Officials Resolution
	Item 6.3h Budget VTO Program Resolution
	Item 6.3i Budget Community Social Service Grants Resolution
	Item 6.3j Budget Airport Fund Loan Resolution
	Item 6.3k Budget Set Aside Resolution
	Item 6.3l Budget 2000 Project Area Resolution
	Item 10.2a Report of Disbursements
	Item 10.2b Information Items



